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INTRODUCTION
Definitions

In this Annual Report, unless the context otherwise requires:
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« references to “Camtek,” the “Company,” “us,” “we”, “our” and the “Registrant” refer to Camtek Ltd., an Israeli company, and its consolidated subsidiaries (unless otherwise

indicated);

»

« references to “ordinary shares,” “our shares” and similar expressions refer to the Registrant’s ordinary shares, NIS 0.01 nominal (par) value per share;

« references to “dollars,” “U.S. Dollars”, “USD” and “$” are to United States Dollars;
« references to “shekels” and “NIS” are to New Israeli Shekels, the Israeli currency;
«  references to the “Companies Law” are to Israel’s Companies Law, 5759-1999;
« references to the “Israeli Securities Law” are to Israel’s Securities Law, 5728-1968;
«  references to the “SEC” are to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission; and
« references to the “Nasdaq Rules” are to rules of the Nasdaq Global Market.
Cautionary Language Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 20-F includes certain statements that are intended to be, and are hereby identified as, “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. We have based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and projections about future events.

Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “expects,” “plans,” “intends,” “anticipates,”
“believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “seeks,” “strategy,” “potential” or “continue” or the negative or other variations of these words, or other comparable words or phrases, but are not the only way
these statements are identified. These statements discuss future expectations, plans and events, contain projections of results of operations or of financial condition or state other “forward-looking”
information. When a forward-looking statement includes an underlying assumption, we caution that, while we believe the assumption to be reasonable and make it in good faith, assumed facts
almost always vary from actual results, and the difference between a forward-looking statement and actual results can be material. Forward-looking statements may be found in Item 4. “Information
on the Company” and Item 5. “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects” and in this Annual Report generally. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these
statements as a result of various factors, including all the risks discussed in “Risk Factors” and other cautionary statements in this Annual Report.

»

» » » ”

All of our forward-looking statements are qualified by and should be read in conjunction with those disclosures. These statements are only predictions that represent our views only as of the
date they are made and may change as time passes. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events discussed in this Annual Report might not occur. Except as may
be required by applicable law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.




Item 1.

Item 2.

Item 3.

D.

PART I

Identity of Directors, Senior Management and Advisers.
Not applicable.
Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable.
Not applicable.
Key Information.
[Reserved.]
Capitalization and Indebted,

Not applicable.
Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds.
Not applicable.

Risk Factors.

Summary of Risk Factors

Investing in our ordinary shares involves a degree of risk. These risks are discussed more fully below and include, but are not limited to, the following, any of which could have a material

adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows:

Risk Factors Related to Our Business, Markets, and Industry

Disruption to our business by negative effects on the semiconductor industry, including as a result of economic, political, legal, regulatory and other changes, in the global or local markets
in which we operate;

The impact of changes in global trade policies beyond our control, including with respect to tarifts;
The concentration of substantial majority of our sales in the Asia Pacific region, with China being our largest territory;
The effects of global economic trends such as recession, changing inflation, rising interest rates and economic slowdown;

The adverse effects on the terms on which we sell our products due to the high competitiveness of the markets we serve, that have dominant market participants, some with greater resources
than us;

Introducing new products may adversely affect our revenue, profitability and competitive position;

The expansion of our business within and/or beyond our current served markets, through acquisition activity;

‘We are be exposed to fluctuations in currency exchange rates which may result in additional expenses being recorded or in the prices of our products becoming less competitive;
The effects of the continuing sharp increase in demand for electronic components, while production capacity remains limited;

Risks associated with the levels of cash we maintain, which are higher than in the past;

The impact of cybersecurity risks and events, and compliance with the related regulatory framework; and

The effects of climate change or related legal or regulatory measures, and compliance with additional environmental, social, governance, health, export controls, and other laws, regulations,
and disclosure rules.




Risk Factors Related to Our Ordinary Shares
«  The risks associated with volatility of our share price, trading volumes, and price depressions;

« The effects of the controlling interest of our principal shareholders, Priortech and Chroma, that may exercise their control in ways that may be adverse to the interests of our other
shareholders; and

«  The impact of our ordinary shares being traded on more than one market.
Risk Factors Related to Our Operations in Israel

*  Conditions in the Middle East and Israel may adversely affect our operations, including the impact of the latest Israel-Hamas war_and continued hostilities along Israel’s borders;

«  The effects of Israeli governmental programs and tax benefits, as well as of governmental grants; and

*  Shareholders rights and responsibilities and the general corporate law framework in Israel, applicable to our shares and shareholders.
Risk Factors

There is a high degree of risk associated with our Company and business. If any of the following risks occur, our business, revenues, operating results and financial condition could be

materially adversely affected and the trading price of our ordinary shares could decline. Below are some of the main risks factors and challenges that we have been facing and may further face,

which could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition:

Risk Factors Related to Our Business, Markets, and Industry

: dAnct Tadi

Our business could be materially disrupted by negative effects on the
or local markets in which we operate.

industry, i g as a result of economic, political, legal, regulatory and other changes, in the global

As part of the semiconductor industry we face greater risks due to the unique nature of the semiconductor business, as strategically important industry to many countries and international in
nature. The semiconductor industry, including the semiconductor equipment industry, relies on a global supply chain. Political, geopolitical, economic and financial crises and instabilities have in the
past negatively affected the semiconductor industry and its end markets and could do so again in the future. Prolonged or increased use of trade barriers may result in a decrease in the growth of the
global economy and semiconductor industry and could cause turmoil in global markets, which in turn often results in declines in our customers’ electronic products sales and could decrease demand
for our products and services. Such circumstances could have a negative effect on our ability to sell to, ship products to, collect payments from, and support customers in certain regions based on
trade restrictions, embargoes, logistics restrictions and export control law restrictions. We may also experience a shortage of certain semiconductor components, increased costs, and delays in
shipments due to supply chain disruptions caused by geopolitical conflicts such as the recent hostilities impacting maritime shipment in the Red Sea, causing increases in shipment costs and delays in
lead-time, as well as increases in related insurance policies” premiums, and the ongoing conflict between Russia and Ukraine.

The growth in artificial intelligence (“AI”) applications has significantly increased demand and introduced new technological requirements in the advanced packaging segment at both the
wafer and panel process levels. Developments in the Al market, including related forecasts and investor expectations, could impact the semiconductor industry.




In addition, the semiconductor industry has been subject to significant downturns from time to time as a result of global economic conditions, as well as industry-specific factors such as
over-ordering in recent years which in turn results in excess inventory within our customers, built-in excess capacity, fluctuations in product supply, product obsolescence and changes in end-
customer preferences. Downturns, as those we have experienced in the past, may cause material reductions in the demand for the products and services that we offer, and may result in a decline in
our sales. In addition, our ability to significantly reduce expenses during such downturn may be limited because of our continuing need to invest in research and development; our continuing need to
market our new products; and our extensive ongoing customer service and support requirements worldwide.

We may be exposed to inventory-related losses on inventory purchased by us or by our contract manufacturers and other suppliers. Excess inventory may become obsolete or over-stated on
our balance sheet. The above listed risk factors could adversely affect our global sales, and as a result our inventory and supply chain, which could have a material adverse impact on our results of
operations and financial condition.

Changes in global trade policies beyond our control may adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Geopolitical tensions may result in export control restrictions, trade sanctions, tariffs and more generally international trade regulations which may impact our ability to sell and deliver our
systems, technology, and services. Changes in applicable social, political, regulatory and economic conditions or in laws and policies governing foreign trade, manufacturing, development and
investment in the territories and countries, where our customers are located, could adversely affect our business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows. Among other things, such
factors may affect our ability to sell our products and services in certain countries, such as China. Our business involves the sale of systems and services to customers in a number of countries,
including China, and includes technologies that may be the subject of increased export regulations or policies.

The U.S. government has enacted trade restrictions, reflecting national security concerns on conducting business with certain Chinese entities, active in the semiconductor industry. Among
other things, the U.S. Department of Commerce has added several Chinese semiconductor manufacturers to the U.S. EAR (Export Administration Regulations) Entity List (Supplement No. 4 to Part
744, Title 15). Additionally, as has been in the case in recent years, in 2024, the U.S. has continued to implement controls on certain advanced technology items, included certain semiconductor
manufacturing equipment (“SME”) items. These controls further restrict the export of certain controlled SME items to controlled end users and end uses, primarily in the context of China and
Chinese entities. The list of Chinese entities impacted by U.S. export control restrictions has increased since 2022, as the U.S. has placed additional China-related export controls on certain
semiconductor manufacturing items, and related items.

In September 2024, the U.S. Department of Commerce Bureau of Industry and Security (BIS) issued an interim final rule further restricting certain end uses and end users for, among other
things, certain advanced semiconductor manufacturing equipment.

In December 2024, BIS issued a package of rules designed to further impair China’s capability to produce advanced-node semiconductors with ‘military applications’, that can be used in the
next generation of advanced weapon systems and in Al and advanced computing. These regulatory measures include new controls on semiconductor manufacturing equipment additions to the Entity
List, the establishment of two new Foreign Direct Product (“FDP”) rules and corresponding de minimis provisions, relating to semiconductor manufacturing equipment and entities involved in
China’s advanced-node semiconductors production; further expanding U.S. control over certain foreign-made items and for certain controlled end-users and end-uses.

Since the introduction of each of these restrictions, we have put in place additional processes to ensure compliance with applicable restrictions. While we continue to conduct detailed
assessments and monitor new restrictions, any potential violations of such regulations, whether under U.S. or other jurisdictions, could have an adverse impact on our reputation, business, results of
operations and financials.

New export control regulations have also been introduced in other jurisdictions, including certain European countries, including Germany and the Netherlands which are adopting or
expected to adopt complimentary controls to the U.S. EAR; China on items related to gallium and germanium; and Japan on advanced semiconductor-manufacturing equipment.

The abovementioned measures can create legal and/or contractual exposure not only for U.S. companies or U.S. people, wherever located, but also for non-U.S. companies who act in
violation of applicable laws or in violation of contractual undertakings provided to business partners. In some cases, the abovementioned export restrictions might also be applicable to the products
or services which we export from countries other than the United States, should there be a U.S. nexus to our activities, should the products contain certain U.S. origin items above the applicable de
minimis threshold, or should they be produced using certain U.S.-controlled technology, software, or production equipment. In addition, sanctions and export controls imposed by the many countries
relevant to our business, including U.S., UK. and E.U. countries, significantly limit trade with Russian entities and individuals. These requirements vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction, and the
jurisdictional reach of these measures can reach across borders. In particular, the U.S has taken significant steps to impose its restrictions on U.S. people, wherever located, and to create legal
exposure for non-U.S. companies who continue to engage with sanctioned jurisdictions or who act in violation of applicable laws. The list of restricted customers and the scope of the global trade
restrictions are subject to change. These and further developments in multilateral and bilateral treaties, national regulation, and trade, national security and investment policies and practices have
affected and may further affect our business and the businesses of our suppliers and customers.




Even where U.S. and other global export controls do not apply directly to our products, they may impact our industry. Certain additional export administration regulations issued by the U.S.
Department of Commerce since October 2022, and which have increased in 2024, may have an adverse effect on the entire semiconductor manufacturing sector in China and reduce the demand for
semiconductors equipment from this sector and therefore indirectly affect our sales in China. Similarly, changes in relations between Taiwan and China may impact our ability to service our
customers in Taiwan. Furthermore, there are tensions between South Korea and North Korea. A worsening of relations between those countries or the outbreak of war could impact our ability to
service customers. Any such developments may result in a decrease in demand for our products and technologies as well as delays in payments from our customers. We have put in place risk-based
processes to review and account for compliance with these restrictions, where applicable. However, we cannot assure that we will be successful in our efforts, that our interpretations regarding the
applicability of restrictions to our business will be accepted by applicable regulators, or that all of our business partners will adhere to or successfully flow down applicable regulatory requirements.
Furthermore, these regulatory requirements are subject to rapid change and governments around the world are adopting a growing number of compliance and enforcement initiatives. It is possible
that the U.S. government will impose additional export controls on our products or systems, which could lead to further revenue losses. For example, it remains uncertain what changes, if any, the
new U.S. presidential administration will make with respect to U.S. export control policy. Any such changes could result in additional restrictions on our ability to sell products to customers in China
and other jurisdictions. Customers affected by current or future U.S. government sanctions, controls or threats of sanctions or controls may respond by developing their own solutions to replace our
products or by utilizing our foreign competitors’ products (who are not subject to the same export controls and can fulfill the orders). In addition, these export controls may also reduce overall global
demand for our customers’ products or for other products produced or manufactured in the U.S. or based on U.S. technology, in turn reducing demand for our products, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Increased restrictions on China exports may also lead to regulatory retaliation by the Chinese government, which may
adversely impact our business. International trade disputes could result in increases in tariffs and other trade restrictions and protectionist measures that could adversely impact our operations and
reduce the competitiveness of our products relative to local and global competitors.

The international environment in which we operate is affected by inter-country trade agreements and tariffs. As a result of recent revisions in the U.S. administrative policy there are, and
may be additional, changes to existing trade agreements, greater restrictions on free trade and significant increases in tariffs on goods imported into the United States. Therefore, there is current
uncertainty about the future relationship between the United States and other countries with respect to trade policies, taxes, government regulations, and tariffs, and we cannot predict whether, and to
what extent, U.S. trade policies will change in the future, including as a result of changes by the new U.S. presidential administration. For example, the U.S. has recently signaled its intention to
change U.S. trade policy, including potentially renegotiating or terminating existing trade agreements and leveraging tariffs. In February 2025, the U.S. imposed tariffs on imports from China,
Canada and Mexico. These additional tariffs or any future tariffs or retaliation by another government against such tariffs or policies have introduced significant uncertainty into the market. Future
actions of the U.S. administration and that of foreign governments, with respect to tariffs or international trade agreements and policies, remain currently unclear.

It has been and may continue to be increasingly difficult to keep up with the pace, complexity and scope of these changes. While we continue to monitor new sanctions and trade restrictions
that could arise, any alleged or actual violations of such laws whether U.S. or other jurisdictions, whether or not directly applicable to us, could have an adverse impact on our reputation, business,
results of operations and financials.




A substantial majority of our sales have been to manufacturers in the Asia Pacific region. The concentration of our sales and other resources within a particular geographical region,
subjects us to additional material risks.

In 2024, our sales in the Asia Pacific region (mainly China, Taiwan and South Korea) accounted for approximately 89% of our total revenues with sales to China being 31% of our total
revenues. A number of Asian countries have experienced or could experience political and economic instability. For instance, Taiwan and China encountered a number of continuous disputes, as
have North and South Korea (South Korea experienced political instability with the impeachment motion against the President Yoon Suk-Yeol) and Japan has experienced significant economic
instability for a number of years. Additionally, the Asia-Pacific region is susceptible to the occurrence of natural disasters, such as earthquakes, cyclones, tsunamis and flooding. Changes in local
legislation, changes in governmental policies, controls and regulations, trade restrictions, a downturn in economic or financial conditions, an outbreak of hostilities or other political upheaval, as well
as any further extraordinary events having an adverse effect on the economy or business environment in this region, would likely harm the operations of our customers in these countries, may cause a
significant decline in our future revenues and may have an adverse effect on our results of operations and cash flow. These general risks are heightened in China, which is our largest territory, where
the nature of the economy, local legislation, governmental policies and regulatory environment are rapidly evolving and where foreign companies may face the negative effects of changed
governmental policies, regulatory, business and cultural obstacles. Additionally, recent policies adopted by China with respect to trade, may present obstacles, such as regulatory restraints or
significant increases in tariffs on goods imported into these markets. China’s economy differs from the economies of most developed countries in many respects, including with respect to the amount
of government involvement, level of development, growth rate and control of foreign exchange, and allocation of resources and local preference of emerging local competitors. Our business is
subject to the risks associated with doing business in China, including: trade protection measures, and import and export licensing and control requirements; potentially negative consequences from
changes in tax laws; difficulties associated with the Chinese legal system, including increased costs and uncertainties associated with enforcing contractual obligations in China; historically, lower
protection of intellectual property rights; changes and volatility in currency exchange rates; and unexpected or unfavorable changes in regulatory requirements. In addition, we could face increased
competition as a result of China's programs to promote a domestic semiconductor industry and supply chains (including the Made in China 2025 campaign).

‘We may be affected by global economic trends such as recession, inflation, interest rates, and economic slowdown.

Recent inflation, geopolitical issues, increase in energy costs, increases in interest rates, unstable global conditions and changes in currency exchange rates have led to global economic
instability. In response to rising inflation in recent years, central banks in the markets in which we operate, including the United States Federal Reserve, have tightened their monetary policies and
raised interest rates, and such measures may continue. While interest rates have begun to decline and inflation is lower than in past quarters in the U.S., costs of labor, capital, employee
compensation, and other similar effects have increased in the recent past This has had, and may continue to have, an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations, as
well as on our customers’ spending behavior. We manage our available cash through various bank institutions and invest large portions of our cash reserves in bank deposits in Israel and abroad. Our
ability to access deposits at individual banking institutions can also be negatively affected by the bankruptcy of one or more of the banks in which or through which we hold or invest our cash
reserves, liquidity, credit deterioration, financial results, economic risk, political risk, regulatory changes, sovereign risk, exchange control, or other factors.

The markets we serve are highly competitive and have dominant market participants, some with greater resources than us. Such competition could adversely affect the terms on which we
sell our products and may negatively affect our financial results.

The markets that we serve are highly competitive. During market slowdowns, competition is intensified due to the reduced demand for the products that we manufacture. When competitors
respond to declining demand by offering discounts, free evaluation machines or more favorable credit terms, we may need to implement some or all of the same methods in order to maintain our
market position. These could mean lower prices for our products and a corresponding reduction in our gross margin, as well as more favorable payment terms to our customers and a corresponding
decline in our cash flow. If we have to lower prices to remain competitive and are unable to reduce our costs to offset price reductions or are unable to introduce new, higher performance products
with higher prices, our operating results may be adversely affected. Some of our competitors have greater financial, personnel and other resources and offer a broader range of products and services.
These competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies or changes in customer requirements, develop additional or superior products, benefit from greater
economies of scale, offer more aggressive pricing or devote greater resources to the promotion of their products. Our competitors may also develop products, including through the use of Al that
may have performance advantages over systems we currently offer or may offer in the future, which could similarly weaken our competitive position. Other competitors are local smaller
competitors, which target the low-end market and may offer products at lower prices. If we are unsuccessful in effectively responding to our competition, our financial results will be adversely
affected by reduced revenues as well as lower margins, which may lead to financial losses.




The impact of the latest regional instabilities and continued hostilities along Israel’s borders could impede our ability to operate and develop, manufacture and deliver products and
components and harm our business and financial results.

On October 7, 2023, the “Swords of Iron” war broke between Israel and the terrorist organizations in the Gaza Strip, following a surprise attack on Israel led by certain armed groups in the
Gaza Strip that included massacres, terrorism and crimes against humanity. As of the date hereof, the majority of the fighting is concentrated in the southern region of the State of Israel, and there
have been additional active hostilities, including with the Hezbollah (a Shia Islamist political party and militant group based in Lebanon), culminating in a 60-day cease fire agreed to between Israel
and the Hezbollah on November 27, 2024, the result of which is uncertain, and the Houthi movement which controls parts of Yemen. The Houthi movement in Yemen has targeted marine vessels in
the Red Sea, affecting those enroute to Israel or partly owned by Israeli businesses. In addition, most recently Israel has been involved in an armed operation with armed groups in the West Bank,
which also included mobilization of armed forces. We may lose business due to the ongoing and revived hostilities, which could also prevent or delay shipments of our products, winning competitive
procurement procedures, damage our facilities, harm our operations and product development and cause our sales to decrease. In the event that the hostilities and instabilities in our neighbor
countries and/or territories disrupt the ongoing operation of our or our Israeli subcontractors' facilities or the airports and seaports on which we depend to import and export our supplies and
products, our operations may be materially adversely affected. An inability to receive supplies and materials, shortages of materials or difficulties in procuring our materials, among others, may
adversely impact our ability to commercialize and manufacture our product candidates and products in a timely manner. This could cause a number of delays and/or issues for our operations,
including delay of the review of our product candidates by regulatory agencies, which in turn would have a material adverse impact on our ability to commercialize our product candidates. Although
the related market disruptions are impossible to predict, they could be substantial, particularly if the current situation continues for an extended period of time or if geopolitical tensions result in
expanded military operations on a global scale. See also “Risk Factors Related to Our Operations in Israel” below for more information.

We have expanded, and may further attempt to expand our activity within and/or beyond our current served markets, through acquisition activity. Such activity and the integration of
acquired businesses may adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition and trading price of our shares.

‘We continue to explore potential acquisition opportunities within our market or as a diversification effort in order to create a growth engine and implement a growth strategy. In addition, we
also explore acquisition opportunities aimed at obtaining technological improvement of our products, adding new technologies to our products and to diversify our business. For example, during
2023, we completed the acquisition of FormFactor, Inc.’s FRT Metrology (“FRT”). These strategic transactions involve numerous risks, which can jeopardize or even eliminate the benefits entailed
in such transactions, such as: (i) we may not be able to discover, or the target company may fail to provide us with, all relevant information and documents in relation to the transaction, which could
lead to a failure to achieve the objectives of acquisition and to a substantial loss; (ii) we may fail to reveal that the due diligence materials and documents provided contain untrue statements of
material facts or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, hence fail to achieve the objectives of acquisition and suffer a substantial loss; (iii) we may fail
to correctly assess the due diligence investigation findings, establish a correct investment thesis or establish a correct post-acquisition integration plan; (iv) the process of integrating an acquired
business including, for example, the operations, systems, technologies, products, and personnel of the combined companies, particularly companies with large and widespread operations and/or
complex products, may be prolonged due to unforeseen difficulties; (v) the implementation of the transaction may distract and divert management’s attention from the normal daily operations of our
business; (vi) we may sustain and record significant expenditure and costs associated with outstanding transactions that either did not or will not materialize or would fail to achieve its objectives;
(vii) there will be increased expenses associated with the transaction, and we may need to use a substantial portion of our cash resources or incur debt in order to cover such expenses, which the
combined companies may not be able to offset; (viii) we may incur unexpected accounting and other expenses associated with the transaction, such as tax expenses, write offs, amortization expenses
related to intangible assets, restructuring costs, litigation costs or such other costs derived from the acquisition; (ix) the transaction may harm our business as currently conducted (for example, there
may be a temporary loss of revenues, we may experience loss of current key employees, customers, resellers, vendors and other business partners or companies with whom we engage today or which
relate to any acquired company); (x) we may be required to issue ordinary shares as part of the transaction, which would dilute our current shareholders; (xi) we may need to assume material
liabilities of the acquired entity; (xii) in certain cases, acquisitions require special approvals, or are subject to scrutiny by the local authorities, and failing to comply with such requirements or to
receive such approvals, may prevent or limit our ability to complete the acquisitions as well as expose us to legal proceedings prior or following the consummation of such acquisitions. In some
cases, such proceedings, if initiated, may conclude in a requirement to divest portions of the acquired business; (xiii) the failure to successfully complete the integration associated with the
transaction (including integrating any acquired technology into our products), which may cause new markets we were aiming for not to materialize or in which competitors may have a stronger
market position; or (xiv) we may fail to effectively obtain the desired technological improvement.




Furthermore, we compete for acquisition and investment opportunities with other well-established and well-capitalized entities. There can be no assurance that we will be able to identify
acquisition or investment opportunities upon favorable terms. As a result, the anticipated benefits or cost savings of such acquisitions or other restructuring activities may not be fully realized, or at
all, or may take longer to realize than expected. Acquisitions involve numerous risks, any of which could harm our business, results of operations cash flow and financial condition as well as the
price of our ordinary shares.

Increased cyber-attacks, data breaches, risks and threats, along with changes in privacy and data protection laws could have an adverse effect on our business.

Threats to network and data security are constantly evolving and becoming increasingly diverse and sophisticated. Cyber-attacks, malicious internet-based activity, online and offline fraud,
and other similar activities threaten the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of our sensitive information and information technology systems, and those of the third parties upon which we rely.
Such threats are prevalent and continue to rise, are increasingly difficult to detect, and come from a variety of sources, including traditional computer “hackers,” threat actors, “hacktivists,” organized
criminal threat actors, personnel (such as through theft or misuse), sophisticated nation states, and nation-state-supported actors. Some actors now engage and are expected to continue to engage in
cyber-attacks, including without limitation nation-state actors for geopolitical reasons and in conjunction with military conflicts and defense activities. During times of war and other major conflicts,
we or the third parties upon which we rely may be vulnerable to a heightened risk of these attacks, including retaliatory cyber-attacks, that could materially disrupt our systems and operations, supply
chain, and ability to produce, sell and distribute our goods and services. Our servers and computer systems could be vulnerable to cybersecurity risks. Additionally, the integration of information
systems of business we have acquired and may acquire poses cybersecurity risks that, if not properly managed, could result in unauthorized access to sensitive data, operational disruptions, and
potential financial liabilities. An increasing number of organizations have disclosed breaches of their information security systems, some of which have involved sophisticated and highly targeted
attacks. Given the substantial increase of cyber-attacks in recent years, we have implemented network security technological, operational and organizational measures and drafted an internal global
information technology security policy. This policy, which follows industry best practices and focuses on Camtek’s network and information security, was reviewed by our audit committee and board
of directors. The possible cyber-attacks via unauthorized access, exploitation, manipulation, deception, corruption, disruption, damage, leak, theft or loss of our intellectual property or any other
digital assets could result in liabilities to us and other material costs. Cyber-attacks aimed at our digital assets could accumulate increased costs to prevent, respond to or mitigate these incidents. It is
also possible that our digital assets and business processes could be jeopardized, compromised or halted via cyber-attacks, without being noticed for some time. Although we have not yet
experienced any cyber-attacks that have materially affected our operations, we have experienced several failed attempts to penetrate our systems and cannot fully provide assurance that any potential
cyber incidents will not have a material impact on our company in the future. Even though we have invested in implementing various cyber security solutions in our networks and systems, in order to
mitigate and reduce our exposure to these cyber risks, we can provide no assurance that our current digital assets are fully protected against all sorts of cyber-attacks by malicious third parties. We
have purchased a cyber-liability insurance policy to cover certain security and privacy damages. However, we cannot be certain that our coverage will be adequate for liabilities actually incurred.






Furthermore, the increasingly growing capabilities of Al and its availability to public use and adoption, may be used to identify vulnerabilities in our systems craft sophisticated
cyberattacks. The rising adoption of Al and generative Al in daily operations, research and development activities, and products poses additional and new risks, including, without limitation, data
privacy and security risks, intellectual property infringement or leakage, ownership issues and/or confidentiality issues. Threats include potential data leaks, social engineering attacks, and decision-
making based on manipulated information. Growing regulatory requirements for information security and data protection add to the challenge. Furthermore, cyberattacks and security incidents are
expected to accelerate in both frequency and impact as the use of Al increases and attackers become increasingly sophisticated and utilize tools and techniques that are designed to circumvent
controls, avoid detection, and remove or obfuscate forensic evidence.

In addition, the potential liabilities associated with these events could exceed the insurance coverage we maintain as they could lead to financial losses, damage to our reputation, business
processes, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, we may further expend significant resources or modify our business activities to try to protect against security incidents. If our
third-party service providers experience a security incident or other interruption, we could experience adverse consequences. While we may be entitled to damages if our third-party service providers
fail to satisfy their privacy or security-related obligations to us, any award may be insufficient to cover our damages, or we may be unable to recover such award.

Since the beginning of the war between Israel and Hamas which began on October 7, 2023, and other hostilities with Hezbollah, Iran and other Iranian proxies, Israeli and Israeli associated
companies have become more frequently the target of cyberattacks. As such, the risk of a cyberattack against our information technology systems and data security has become heightened.

We are subject to various regulations and standards relating to data privacy and security. Failure to comply with any applicable privacy, security or data protection laws, regulations,
standards or other requirements could have an adverse effect on our business prospects, results of operations, and financial condition.

The regulatory framework for data and privacy protection issues is rapidly evolving worldwide. Comprehensive data protection laws, including the General Data Protection Regulation
(“GDPR”), which imposes stricter obligations and provides for greater penalties for noncompliance. Additionally, laws in all 50 U.S. states require businesses to provide notice to parties whose
personally identifiable information has been disclosed as a result of a data breach. The laws are not consistent, and compliance in the event of a widespread data breach is costly. Furthermore,
California enacted the California Consumer Privacy Act, or the CCPA, which provides for civil penalties for violations, as well as a private right of action for data breaches. The California Privacy
Rights Act, or the CPRA, significantly modifies the CCPA, potentially resulting in further uncertainty as the California Privacy Protection Agency is still working to promulgate final rules. In
addition, failure to comply with the Israeli Privacy Protection Law 1981 (the “PPL”) and its regulations, as well as the guidelines of the Israeli Privacy Protection Authority, may expose us to
administrative fines, civil claims (including class actions) and, in certain cases, criminal liability. In August 2025, a comprehensive amendment to the PPL is expected to enter into effect. This
amendment aims to strengthen the Israeli Privacy Protection Authority’s enforcement powers and grant it significant authority to impose administrative fines for non-compliance. The amendment is
also expected to introduce broader oversight capabilities, alongside mechanisms for monitoring adherence to privacy guidelines, thereby heightening the compliance requirements for organizations
that handle personal data in Israel. Other pending legislation may result in a change to the current enforcement measures and sanctions. We may be required to incur significant costs to comply with
such data and privacy protection laws, as applicable to our company (for example, we collect, use, maintain and otherwise process certain data about candidates and employees, or may fail to protect
the privacy of customers’ personal data against breaches of network or IT security), or else face an adverse effect on our business prospects and/or financial position. As we have a presence in
Europe, which was increased with the acquisition of FRT, our European subsidiaries are subject to the GDPR in relation to their collection, control, processing, sharing, disclosure, and other use of
data relating to their employees or customers. These laws and regulations constantly evolve and remain subject to significant change. In addition, the application and interpretation of these laws and
regulations are often uncertain. New privacy laws add additional complexity, requirements, restrictions and potential legal risk, require additional investment in resources to compliance programs,
and could result in increased compliance costs and/or changes in business practices and policies. Any inability to adequately address privacy and security concerns or comply with applicable privacy
and data security laws, rules and regulations could have an adverse effect on our business prospects, results of operations and/or financial position.
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Fluctuations in currency exchange rates may result in additional expenses being recorded or in the prices of our products becoming less competitive and thus may have negative impact
on our profitability.

We are a global company that operates in a multi-currency environment. As a major portion of the costs of our Israeli operations, such as personnel, subcontractors, materials and
facility-related costs, are incurred in NIS, an increase in the NIS value relative to the U.S. Dollar will increase our costs expressed in U.S. Dollars. We may, from time to time, take various measures
designed to reduce our exposure to these effects, but any such steps may be inadequate to protect us from currency rate fluctuations. In addition, although our products’ prices in most countries are
denominated in U.S. Dollars, in certain territories (currently, China, Europe and Japan) our products’ prices may be denominated in local currencies, and much of our service income in these
territories is denominated in local currencies. If there is a significant devaluation in the relevant local currencies in which we operate compared to the U.S. Dollar, we may be required to increase
those prices and as a result our products and services may become less competitive.

The global supply of electronic components, including integrated circuits, has experienced, and is likely to continue to experience, a sharp increase in demand, while production capacity
remains limited. This has had, and may continue to have, an adverse effect on the lead-time for our components and increase in their prices.

The global demand for electronic components has experienced a sharp increase, with a growing number of industries dramatically increasing their demand and consumption. If we are
unable to obtain components in a timely manner to fulfill our customers’ demand on technology and production capacity, or at a reasonable cost, we may be unable to meet commitments under our
contracts with customers, which could expose us to substantial liquidated damages and other claims and could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business
and prospects. In the current highly competitive business environment, our customers require us to fill orders within a very short period of time. Our products are complex and require essential
components and subsystems that are produced by a number of suppliers and subcontractors. In order to meet our customers’ needs in the timeframe they require, we usually need to pre-order
components and subsystems based on our forecasts of future orders, rather than on actual orders. While we believe that we have sufficient inventory to fill our customers” orders, our predictions may
not correspond to our actual future needs and our suppliers and subcontractors cannot always supply such components and subsystems within a shorter than anticipated time frame; this concern is
heightened due to the supply chain obstacles detailed above. Our inability to anticipate rapid market changes or the implications of the global components shortage may cause an increase of
inventory which could result in material inventory write-offs, which we have incurred in the past, or may alternately limit our ability to satisfy customer orders, which could result in the loss of sales
and could cause customers to seek products from our competitors. To date, we have successfully managed our supply chain, but if these factors continue or become more severe, they may have an
adverse effect on our supply chain and on our ability to fulfill customer orders in a timely manner, which could in turn have an adverse effect on our position in the market and on our business and
operations.

‘We maintain high levels of cash, which subjects us to additional material risks.

Our company maintains a significant amount of our assets in cash or cash equivalent instruments. Such assets are managed in accordance with the provisions our investment policy, which
was adopted by our management and our Board’s Investment Committee (the “Investment Committee”) and approved by our Board. Maintaining a significant amount of our assets in cash exposes
us to several risks, including the following: (i) The value of our cash holdings can be eroded by inflation. Over time, high inflation rates can significantly decrease the purchasing power of cash,
potentially reducing the real value of our liquid assets. While our cash reserves are managed and invested by our finance team, with the assistance of external professional counsels, and under the
supervision of our Investment Committee, we may not efficiently and effectively manage our funds to yield sufficient interest levels, and as a result may fail to protect our cash reserves against
inflation influences; (ii) Concentration of our cash in few financial institutions or instruments may pose a risk if a banking counterparty faces liquidity or solvency issues; (iii) If our cash is held in
different currencies, we face the risk of currency fluctuations, which can adversely affect the value of our cash holdings and our financial results when these amounts are repatriated or converted into
our reporting currency; and (iv) The interest income generated from our high levels of cash may be subject to taxation at rates that may vary from our expectations. While we base our tax positions
upon professional accountants’ opinions interpreting tax laws and guidance, tax authorities may challenge such interpretations and levy taxes greater than we anticipate. We continuously evaluate the
most effective use of our cash, but there can be no assurance that our strategies will yield the best possible returns for our shareholders or safeguard the value of our cash reserves.
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‘We may face significant risks and uncertainties in devel

ing and introducing new products that may adversely affect our revenue, profitability and competitive position.

P

‘We operate in a highly competitive and rapidly evolving industry that requires us to continuously develop and introduce new products that meet the changing needs and expectations of our
customers and the semiconductor device manufacturing technology. Developing and introducing new products involves significant technical, operational, regulatory and financial challenges and
uncertainties, such as:

the ability to anticipate and respond to customer requirements and preferences;

the ability to obtain and maintain necessary intellectual property rights and licenses;

the ability to obtain and maintain necessary certifications and approvals from relevant authorities and standards bodies;

the ability to source, manufacture and deliver high-quality components and systems in a timely and cost-effective manner;

the ability to achieve and maintain adequate levels of performance, reliability, functionality and compatibility of our products;

the ability to price our products competitively and profitably;

the ability to market and sell our products effectively and efficiently;

the ability to manage inventory levels and avoid obsolescence or excess inventory;

the ability to withstand and mitigate potential product liability claims, warranty claims, recalls, defects, errors, failures, breaches, cyberattacks or other disruptions;

the ability to cope with potential changes in trade policies, tariffs, sanctions, export controls or other regulatory or geopolitical factors that may affect our global operations and supply
chain; and

the ability to protect our products and systems from unauthorized use, copying, modification or reverse engineering.

If we fail to successfully develop and introduce new products that gain general market acceptance, or if we experience delays, difficulties, defects or disruptions in doing so, we may not be
able to generate sufficient revenue and cash flow to recover our investments, which may result in a write down of inventory. We may also lose market share, customer loyalty, competitive advantage
and reputation, and face pricing pressure and litigation risk. Any of these consequences could adversely affect our revenue, profitability and competitive position.
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We occasionally use Open Source codes during our development process and in our software products. An unintentional breach of Open Source li might pel us to p
certain confidential and proprietary codes, incur damages, and result with intellectual property infringement claims that could be expensive and could disrupt our business.

We occasionally use open source software components under open source licenses. As certain open source copyright licenses may be categorized as “copyleft licenses” that place certain
requirements and restrictions on users, we maintain a process to assure the use of permissive licenses that guarantee the freedom to use, modify and redistribute, and creating proprietary derivative
works, in order to avoid any limitations on our IP and exposure of confidential proprietary software. Nonetheless, if we do not correctly monitor and manage those licenses, fail to maintain their
terms (for example, to provide adequate copyright notices, or avoid modifications) or otherwise fail in identifying limited open source codes, we might be subject to third party copyright and to
reciprocity obligation requiring us to make our code open for use by others as well. Such claims may harm our development efforts and competitive advantage and expose us to copyright
infringement claims that could be expensive and could disrupt our business.

Technology in the markets in which we operate is rapidly evolving, and we may not be able to adequately predict these changes or keep pace with emerging industry standards, which
could lead to a loss of revenues or adversely affect our profits.

The markets for our products are characterized by changing technology, evolving industry standards, changes in end-user requirements and new product introductions. Our future success
will depend on our ability to accurately predict new market needs and requirements and to enhance accordingly our existing products and develop and introduce new technologies for the markets in
which we operate. These products must keep pace with technological developments and address the increasingly sophisticated needs of our customers. If we fail to anticipate correctly, or if we are
unable to keep pace with, technological changes, products offered by our competitors or emerging industry standards, our ability to generate revenues may be negatively affected. Adopting new
technologies may also result in material inventory write-offs which would adversely affect our results of operations. We cannot assure you that we will successfully forecast technology trends or that
we will anticipate innovations made by other companies and respond with our own innovation in a timely manner, which could affect our competitiveness in the market.

Our operating results have varied and will likely continue to vary significantly from quarter to quarter and from our expectations for any specific period, making it difficult to predict
future results.

Our quarterly operating results have varied in the past and could continue to vary from quarter to quarter or from our expectations for any specific period in the future, as we cannot assure
you that we will be able to maintain improving trends and convert our backlog into sales, profitability and positive operating cash flows. This complicates our planning processes, reduces the
predictability of our earnings and subjects our stock to price and volume fluctuations. Period-to-period comparisons of our results of operations may not always provide indications of our future
performance. Some of the factors that may influence our operating results include: global economic conditions and worldwide demand for electronic equipment; instability in the global markets and
in the geopolitical environment that may lead to delays in shipments due to supply chain disruptions caused by geopolitical conflicts such as the changing security situation in the Middle East and the
recent hostilities impacting maritime shipment in the Red Sea, and the ongoing conflict between Russia and Ukraine; changes in demand for our systems; changes made by customers to orders for
our systems and/or installation schedules; product introductions and the market penetration period of new products; rapid shifts in industry capacity; the size, timing and shipment of substantial
orders; timing of evaluation and qualification of our products by new customers; lack of visibility/low levels of backlog from the preceding quarter; product mixes; pricing of our products; timing of
new product, upgrades or enhancements; level of operating expenses such as R&D expenses, agent commissions; fluctuations in interest rates; an outbreak of a contagious disease, which may cause
us or our suppliers and/or customers to temporarily suspend our operations in the affected city or country; and our profitability may be seriously harmed by currency fluctuations because most of our
revenues are generated in U.S. Dollars, but a significant portion of our expenses is incurred in currencies other than U.S. Dollars (mainly New Israeli Shekels). In light of these factors and the
cyclical nature of the markets we target, we expect to continue to experience significant fluctuations in our quarterly operating results.

The widespread outbreak of an illness or any other communicable disease, or any other public health crisis, and the governmental and societal responses thereto, could adversely affect
our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Widespread outbreaks of disease or other public health crises and responses thereto have in the past and may in the future negatively impact the global economy, disrupt global supply chains
and create significant volatility and disruption of financial markets. For example, during the COVID-19 pandemic, which resulted in authorities imposing, and businesses and individuals
implementing, numerous measures to try to contain the virus, our global operations, which require physical presence in many stages of our business activities, were particularly vulnerable to the
consequences of such measures. The new working environment that emerged as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, with many employees working remotely, also increased the exposure of many
companies, including us, to cyber-attacks and data security breaches. Future outbreaks of disease, including a resurgence of COVID-19, could similarly have a material adverse impact on the global
economy, our supply chain and our business operations. It is not possible to predict the impact of future outbreaks of disease or the government responses thereto. Any disruptions caused by any new
outbreaks of disease that may emerge in the future could have a material adverse impact on our operational and financial performance, including our ability to execute our business strategies in the
expected time frame or at all.




A longer sales process for new products may increase our costs and delay time to market of our products, both of which may negatively impact our revenues, results of operations, cash
flow and may result in inventory write-offs.

Our sales process to new and existing customers usually involves: demonstrations and testing against industry benchmarks in our sales centers; sales and technical presentations and
presentations regarding our products’ competitive advantages; and installation of the systems at the customer’s site for side-by-side competitive evaluations for a period of approximately six months.
More evaluation time is devoted during the initial market penetration period for new products such as new products under our Eagle product line, and for new customers in new markets, since these
circumstances usually require qualification of the systems by the customers and engineering efforts to fix errors, customize tasks and add new features. This evaluation time may be further extended
in sales involving multiple new products. Considering the above factors, the length of time until we recognize revenue can vary and affect our revenues, and results of operations. The long sales
process may cause an increase in inventory levels and a risk for inventory write downs and write-offs; for more details regarding recent inventory write downs and write-offs see Item 5.A —
“Operating Results — Critical Accounting Policies — Valuation of Inventory”.

We depend on our intellectual property and litigation to enforce or defend our intellectual property rights may be costly and expose us to risks. If we are unable to protect our proprietary
technologies, we may not be able to compete effectively as well as incur significant expenses.

Our intellectual property, including our patents, is material to the conduct of our business. Our success depends on our continued ability to use our intellectual property and on the adequate
protection and enforcement of such intellectual property. There can be no assurance that the steps we take to protect and maintain our rights in our intellectual property will be adequate, or that third
parties will not infringe, misappropriate or violate our intellectual property. If any of our efforts to protect our intellectual property is not adequate, or if any third party infringes, misappropriates or
violates our intellectual property, the value of our products may be harmed. As a result, if we are unable to successfully protect, maintain, or enforce our rights in our intellectual property, there could
be a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. In addition, to the extent that we do, from time to time, institute litigation to enforce our intellectual property rights, such
litigation could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and could negatively affect profits, regardless of whether we are able to successfully enforce such rights. Third parties, including
one of our competitors in the field of semiconductor wafer inspection equipment, previously asserted claims, and may assert additional claims in the future, that we have infringed their patents or
intellectual property rights. We may in the future face such intellectual property claims against us, which, even if without merit, could lead to protracted litigation, could cause delays in introducing
new products, could be costly to defend and could divert management’s attention from our business. As a result, any such claim could harm our business and cause a decline in our results of
operations and financial condition, which in turn may materially and adversely affect our business and results of operations. Successful claims against us could impose on us monetary awards for
damages, as well as for plaintiff’s attorney’s fees and other costs, and could limit our ability to sell products in certain jurisdictions. Additional costs and expenses may also be incurred in the event
of out of court settlement of claims against us, which could result in monetary consequences and affect our profitability. We differentiate our products and technologies from those of our competitors
by using our intellectual property for the development of our products. We rely on a combination of patents, copyrights, trade secrets, trademarks, confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements to
protect our intellectual property. These measures may not be adequate to protect our proprietary technologies and it may be possible for a third party, including a competitor, to copy or otherwise
obtain and use our products or technologies without authorization or to develop similar technologies independently. The inability to protect our intellectual property may affect our competitive
advantage and we may incur significant expenses.




We depend on a number of key personnel who would be difficult to replace.

Our continued growth and success significantly depend on the managerial and technical skills of the members of our senior management and key employees. If our operations rapidly
expand, we believe that we will need to promote and hire qualified engineering, administrative, operational, financial and marketing personnel. In particular, we may find it difficult to hire key
personnel with the requisite knowledge of our business, products and technologies. The process of locating, training and successfully integrating qualified personnel into our operations can be
lengthy and expensive. During periods of economic growth, competition for qualified engineering and technical personnel is intense.

Compliance with environmental, social, governance, health, export controls, and other laws, regulations, and disclosure rules and potential liabilities could materially impact our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Due to our global operations, we must comply with certain international and domestic laws, disclosure requirements, export control regulations and restrictions which may expose our
business to risks. In addition, our business is subject to numerous domestic laws and regulations designed to protect the environment, including with respect to discharges and management of
hazardous substances, wastes and emissions and soil and ground water contamination. The failure to comply with current or future environmental requirements could expose us to criminal, civil and
administrative charges and monetary liability. We believe that we have complied with these requirements and that such compliance has not had a material adverse effect on our results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows. Although we are not presently aware of any liability that could be material to our business, financial condition or operating results, due to the nature of our business
and environmental risks, we cannot provide assurance that any such material liability will not arise in the future. There is an increasing focus on corporate environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) responsibility in the semiconductor industry. We published our first ESG report, which is available on our website, in August 2023. A number of our customers have adopted, or may adopt,
procurement policies that include ESG provisions or requirements that their suppliers should comply with, or they may seek to include such provisions or requirements in their procurement terms
and conditions. An increasing number of investors are also requiring companies to disclose corporate ESG policies, practices and metrics. Legal and regulatory requirements, as well as investor
expectations, on corporate ESG practices and disclosure, can be unpredictable, and may be difficult and expensive for us to comply with, given the complexity of our supply chain and
manufacturing. If we are unable to comply or are unable to cause our suppliers or contract manufacturers to comply, with such policies or provisions or meet the requirements of our customers and
our investors, a customer may stop purchasing products from us or an investor may sell their shares, and may take legal action against us, which could harm our reputation, revenue, and results of
operations.




Climate change, or legal or regulatory measures to address climate change, may negatively affect us.

Climate change resulting from increased concentrations of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases in the atmosphere could present risks to our operations. Changes in climate patterns
leading to extreme heat waves or unusual cold weather at some of our locations can lead to increased energy usage and costs, or otherwise adversely impact our facilities and operations and disrupt
our supply chains and distribution systems. Concern over climate change can also result in new or additional legal or regulatory requirements designed to reduce greenhouse gas emissions or
mitigate the effects of climate change on the environment. Any such new or additional legal or regulatory requirements may increase the costs associated with, or disrupt, sourcing, manufacturing
and distribution of our products, which may adversely affect our business and financial results. In addition, any failure to adequately address stakeholder expectations with respect to ESG matters
may result in the loss of business, adverse reputational impacts, diluted market valuations and challenges in attracting and retaining customers and talented employees. In addition, our adoption of
certain standards or mandated compliance to certain requirements could necessitate additional investments that could impact our cash position and expected cash runway.

We may fail to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes Oxley Act”) imposes certain duties on us and our executives and directors, including the requirements of Section 404 (Assessment of
Internal Control), which requires (i) management’s annual review and evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting and (ii) an attestation report issued by an independent registered
public accounting firm on our internal control over financial reporting, in connection with the filing of our Annual Report on Form 20-F for each fiscal year. We have documented and tested our
internal control systems and procedures in order for us to comply with the requirements of Section 404. Our efforts to comply with such requirements have resulted in increased general and
administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention, and we expect these efforts to require the continued commitment of resources. In addition, while our assessment of our
internal control over financial reporting resulted in our conclusion that as of December 31, 2024, our internal control over financial reporting was effective, we cannot predict the outcome of our
testing in future periods. If we fail to maintain the adequacy of our internal controls, we may not be able to ensure that we can conclude on an ongoing basis that we have effective internal controls
over financial reporting. Failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could result in investigation or sanctions by regulatory authorities, and could have a material adverse
effect on our operating results, investor confidence in our reported financial information, and the market price of our ordinary shares.

Risk Factors Related to Our Ordinary Shares

Our share price and trading volumes have demonstrated significant volatility in the past and may continue to fluctuate in the future. Such share price volatility could limit investors’
ability to sell our shares at a profit, could limit our ability to raise funds successfully and may cause additional exposure for securities class action litigation.

The stock market in general and the market price of our ordinary shares, in particular, are subject to fluctuation. As a result, changes in our share price may be unrelated to our operating
performance. The price of our ordinary shares has experienced significant volatility in the past and may continue to do so in the future. During the period from January 1, 2024 through March 5,
2025, the closing price of our ordinary shares ranged from $----67.02 to $137.24 per share. The price volatility of our shares and periodic volatile trading volume may make it difficult for investors to
predict the value of their investment, to sell shares at a profit at any given time or to plan purchases and sales in advance. A variety of factors may affect the market price and the trading volume of
our ordinary shares, including: global economic conditions, which generally influence stock market prices and volume fluctuations, including as a result of the effects of inflation, interest rates and
the current war between Russia and Ukraine; investors’ views of the attractiveness of our new products; changes in expectations as to our future financial performance and/or announcements of
actual results that vary significantly from such expectations; the announcement by us or our competitors of corporate transactions, merger and acquisition activities or other similar events impacting
our financial performance; changes in financial estimates by securities analysts; our earnings releases and the earnings releases of our competitors; market conditions relating to our customers”
industries; announcements of technological innovations or new products by us or our competitors; other announcements, whether by us or others, referring to our financial condition, results of
operations and changes in strategy; large block transactions in our ordinary shares; additions or departures of our key personnel; future offerings or sales of our ordinary shares; and announcements
of significant claims or proceedings against us. Many of these factors are out of our control, and we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our financial results will not necessarily be
indicative of our future performance.




Moreover, the market prices of equity securities of companies that have a significant presence in Israel may also be affected by the changing security situation in the Middle East and
particularly in Israel. As a result, these companies may experience volatility in their share prices and/or difficulties in raising additional funds required to effectively operate and grow their
businesses. Thus, market and industry-wide fluctuations and political, economic and military conditions in the Middle East may adversely affect the trading price of our ordinary shares, regardless of
our actual operating performance. Further, as a result of the volatility of our stock price, we could be subject, and were subject in the past, to securities litigation, which could result in substantial
costs and could divert management’s attention and Company resources from business. Securities class action litigations are being brought from time to time against companies following periods of
volatility in the market price of their securities, and in the past, one was brought against us. Although this claim was dismissed, we cannot guarantee that similar litigation would not be brought
against us in the future.

Sales of our ordinary shares may depress our share price.

Offerings of ordinary shares by us and any issuances or sales of a substantial number of ordinary shares in the public market or otherwise, or the perception that such sales may occur, could
cause the market price of our ordinary shares to decline or could impair our ability to raise capital through a future sale of our ordinary shares. In addition, we have issued a substantial number of
ordinary shares in connection with the settlement of restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and exercise of options to purchase our ordinary shares, and in the future we may issue additional shares in
connection with the exercise of existing options, which are eligible for, or may become eligible for, unrestricted resale. Any sales of such shares in the public market or otherwise could reduce the
prevailing market price of our ordinary shares, as well as make future sales of ordinary shares by us less attractive or not feasible, thus limiting our capital resources.

Our principal shareholders, Priortech and Chroma, hold a controlling interest in us and have the ability to exercise their control in ways that may be adverse to the interests of our other
shareholders. Our relati p with Priortech and Chroma may give rise to a conflict of interests.

-

As of March 5, 2025, Priortech Ltd. (“Priortech”) and Chroma ATE Inc. (“Chroma”), beneficially hold in the aggregate 38.24% of our issued and outstanding ordinary shares. As a result
of the voting agreement between Priortech and Chroma, according to which they vote together in Camtek’s shareholders meetings and therefore are deemed to be joint controlling shareholders of
Camtek, they have the ability to influence the outcome of certain matters submitted to a vote of Camtek’s shareholders, including the election of members of its board of directors and the approval of
significant corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership may also have the effect of making it more difficult to obtain approval for a change in control of Camtek. Mr. Rafi Amit, our Chief
Executive Officer, and Mr. Yotam Stern, a member of our Board, hold, as of March 5, 2025, an aggregate of approximately 29.06% of the voting power at Priortech’s general meeting of
shareholders, through a voting agreement with David Kishon, Itzhak Krell (deceased) (through Eyal Krell, Israel Shai Krell and Galit Drori Krell), Haim Langmas (deceased), Zehava Wineberg
(deceased) and Hanoch Feldstien (including the estates of the foregoing deceased founders, the “Priortech Founding Members™), governing inter-alia joint voting at Priortech’s general meetings of
shareholders and the right of first refusal among themselves (the “Priortech Voting Agreement”), and as such may be deemed to control Priortech. Messrs. Amit and Stern also hold various
positions in Priortech and its affiliated companies, which may give rise to conflicts of interest. Mr. Amit, who serves as our Chief Executive Officer on a 90% position, acts as a member of
Priortech’s board of directors and provides management services to Priortech on a 10% basis. Mr. Stern holds several other positions in the Priortech group including the position of Chief Executive
Officer at Priortech. In addition, in the framework of the series of definitive agreements signed in February 2019, in which Chroma acquired ordinary shares from Priortech and additional new shares
were issued to Chroma by Camtek, Leo Huang, the chairman of the board of directors and a controlling shareholder of Chroma, and I-Shih Tseng, a director and Business Unit President of Chroma,
were appointed to serve as members of our board of directors, which may give rise to conflicts of interest. Despite our efforts to conduct ourselves by Israeli law procedural requirements concerning
interested party transactions, including with respect to audit committee, board of directors and shareholder approvals (including the special majority requirement in appropriate cases), we cannot be
certain that the possible conflicts of interest in any of these transactions and activities is fully eliminated. For more details regarding our senior management arrangements, see Item 6.B -
“Compensation — Employment Agreements” below.




If we are classified as a passive foreign investment company, our U.S. shareholders may suffer adverse tax consequences.

There is a risk that we may be classified as a passive foreign investment company (“PFIC”). Our treatment as a PFIC could result in a reduction in the after-tax return of U.S. holders of our
ordinary shares and may generally cause a reduction in the value of our shares. For U.S. federal income tax purposes, we will generally be classified as a PFIC for any taxable year in which either:
(i) 75% or more of our gross income is passive income, or (ii) at least 50% of the average value of our total assets (generally determined on a quarterly basis) for the taxable year consist of assets that
produce or are held for the production of passive income. Based on an analysis of our current income, assets, activities and market capitalization and expectations about our future, income, assets,
activities and market capitalization, we do not believe that we were a PFIC for the taxable year ended December 31, 2024, and do not expect to be a PFIC for the current year or in the foreseeable
future. However, there can be no assurance that the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) will not challenge our analysis or our conclusion regarding our PFIC status. This is a factual determination
that must be made annually after the close of each taxable year. The value of our assets for purposes of the PFIC determination may be determined by reference to the public price of ordinary shares,
which could fluctuate significantly. Therefore, there can be no assurance that we will not be classified as a PFIC for the current taxable year or in the foreseeable future. If we were a PFIC at any
time when a U.S. holder acquired or held our ordinary shares, such U.S. holder generally will be subject to the PFIC rules with respect to such ordinary shares. If we were determined to be a PFIC
for U.S. federal income tax purposes, highly complex rules would apply to U.S. holders owning our ordinary shares and such U.S. holders could suffer adverse U.S. tax consequences. For more
information, please see Item 10.E below - “U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations— Tax Ce if We Are a Passive Foreign Investment Company”.

Our ordinary shares are traded on more than one market and this may result in price variations.

In addition to being traded on the Nasdaq Global Market, our ordinary shares are traded on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange (“TASE”). Trading in our ordinary shares on these markets take
place in different currencies (U.S. Dollars on Nasdaq and NIS on TASE) and at different times (resulting from different time zones, trading days and public holidays in the United States and Israel).
The trading prices of our ordinary shares on these two markets may differ due to these and other factors. Any decrease in the price of our ordinary shares on one market could cause a decrease in the
trading price of our ordinary shares on the other market.

Risk Factors Related to Our Operations in Israel
Conditions in the Middle East and Israel may adversely affect our operations.

Our headquarters and main facility (the sole manufacturing and integration facility of the majority of our product lines are located in the North of the State of Israel. Accordingly, political,
economic and military conditions in Israel and the surrounding region may directly influence our operations. Specifically, we could be adversely affected by hostilities involving Israel; the
interruption or curtailment of trade between Israel and its present trading partners; a downturn in the economic or financial condition of Israel; and a full or partial mobilization of the reserve forces
of the Israeli army. Since its establishment in 1948, Israel has been subject to a number of armed conflicts that have taken place between it and its Middle Eastern neighbors. While Israel has entered
into peace or normalization agreements with Egypt, Jordan, UAE, Bahrain, Morocco and Sudan, it has no peace arrangements with any other neighboring or other Arab countries. Further, all efforts
to improve Israel’s relationship with the Palestinians have failed to result in a peaceful solution, and there have been numerous periods of hostility, acts of terror against Israeli civilians, as
experienced recently once again in Israel, as well as civil insurrection of Palestinians in the West Bank and the Gaza Strip. Israel is engaged, from time to time, in armed conflicts with Hamas (a
militia group and political party controlling the Gaza Strip). These conflicts have involved missile strikes against civilian targets in the south and center parts of Israel.

On October 7, 2023, the “Swords of Iron” war erupted between Israel and the terrorist organizations in the Gaza Strip, as described above. Our facilities did not sustain any damage and in
accordance with the instructions of the Israeli National Emergency Management Authority, there is currently no limitation or denial of access or activity limitation in our facilities. None of our
employees were directly harmed as a result of the war. As of the date hereof, we operate continuously, and so far the situation in Israel does not have a material effect on our operations and business.
We monitor closely the directives of the Israeli National Emergency Management Authority and where needed, make required adjustments to our operations in accordance with such directives,
including by instructing our workforce to work remotely. In addition, the normalization agreements that Israel has entered into with some Arab countries in the Middle East may affect the geo-
political condition in the Middle East in general, and the relations between Israel and Iran in particular. All of the above raise a concern as to the stability in the region which may affect the security,
social, economic and political landscape in Israel and therefore could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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In addition, in January 2024 the International Court of Justice, or ICJ, issued an interim ruling in a case filed by South Africa against Israel in December 2023, in connection with the
“Swords of Iron” war, and ordered Israel, among other things, to take steps to provide basic services and humanitarian aid to civilians in Gaza and in November, 2024, the International Criminal
Court, or ICC, issued arrest warrants for Isracli Prime Minister Benjamin Netanyahu and former Israeli Minister of Defense Yoav Gallant based on allegations of war crimes. Companies and
businesses may terminate, and may have already terminated, certain commercial relationships with Israeli companies following the ICJ and ICC decisions. The foregoing efforts by countries,
activists and organizations, particularly if they become more widespread, as well as rulings by the ICJ, ICC and other international tribunals, may materially and adversely impact our business and
supply chains. There are concerns that companies and businesses will terminate, and may have already terminated, certain commercial relationships with Israeli companies following the ICJ and the
ICC decisions. The foregoing efforts by countries, activists and organizations, particularly if they become more widespread, as well as rulings by the ICJ, ICC and other international tribunals, may
adversely impact our ability to cooperate with research institutions and collaborate with other third parties.

Furthermore, certain countries, primarily in the Middle East but also in Malaysia and Indonesia, as well as certain companies and organizations in different parts of the world, continue to
participate in a boycott of Israeli brands and others doing business with Israel and Israeli companies. The boycott, restrictive laws, policies or practices directed towards Israel or Israeli businesses
could, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on our business in the future. In addition, should the BDS Movement, the movement for boycotting, divesting and sanctioning
Israel and Israeli institutions (including universities) and products become increasingly influential in the United States and Europe, this may also adversely affect our business and financial condition.
Further deterioration of Israel’s relationship with the Palestinians or countries in the Middle East could expand the disruption of international trading activities in Israel, may materially and
negatively affect our business conditions, could harm our results of operation and adversely affect the Company’s share price.

Our business may also be disturbed by the obligation of personnel to perform military service. Our employees who are Israeli citizens are generally subject to a periodic obligation to
perform reserve military service, generally until they reach the age of 45 (or older, for reservists with certain occupations), but during military conflicts, these employees may be called to active duty
for longer periods of time, as occurred, and may continue to occur, during the “Swords of Iron” war. In case of further regional instability such employees, who may include one or more of our key
employees, may be absent for extended periods of time which may materially adversely affect our business. Furthermore, our Company’s insurance does not cover loss arising out of events related to
the security situation in the Middle East. While the Israeli government generally covers the reinstatement value of direct damages caused by acts of war or terror attacks, we cannot be certain that
such coverage will be maintained.

Another risk for political, social and economic instability in Israel is associated with the extensive changes that began in early 2023 by the current Israeli government with respect to Israel’s
judicial system. In response to such developments, individuals, organizations and financial institutions, both within and outside of Israel, have voiced concerns that the proposed changes may
negatively impact the business environment in Israel including due to reluctance of foreign investors to invest or conduct business in Israel, as well as to increased currency fluctuations, downgrades
in credit rating, increased interest rates, increased volatility in securities markets, and other changes in macroeconomic conditions. Such proposed changes may also adversely affect the labor market
in Israel or lead to political instability or civil unrest. To the extent that any of these negative developments do occur, they may have an adverse effect on our business, our results of operations and
our ability to raise additional funds, if deemed necessary by our management and board of directors, and to attract or retain qualified and skilled “talents” and personnel. We can give no assurance
that the political, economic and security situation in Israel will not have a material adverse impact on our business in the future.

Moreover, on February 9, 2024, the international rating agency Moody’s announced the downgrade of Israel’s credit rating to A2 (from a level of A1) and also lowered the rating outlook
from “stable” to “negative”. In its report, Moody’s estimated that the broad implications of the “Swords of Iron” war significantly increase the political risks in the State of Israel, weaken the
legislative and executive authorities, and significantly impact Israel’s budgetary stability in the foreseeable future. In April 2024, S&P Global Ratings also announced the downgrade of Israel’s rating
from AA- to A+, and maintained the rating outlook as “negative”, mainly due to the escalation of tensions between Israel and Iran, as detailed above, and the geopolitical risks that Israel has been
dealing with since the outbreak of the “Swords of Iron” war.
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Our ability to take advantage of Israeli government programs and tax benefits may change, which could increase our tax expenses.

‘We have previously participated in certain Israeli government programs and enjoyed certain tax benefits, particularly tax exemptions, resulting from our “Approved Enterprise” status,
provided to us due to our manufacturing facilities in Israel. In order to continue to be eligible for these programs, or similar programs, and tax benefits, we must continue to meet certain conditions,
including making specified investments in fixed assets and equipment. If we fail to meet such conditions in the future, these tax benefits could be cancelled, and we could be required to refund any
tax benefits already received. Further, these programs and tax benefits may not continue in the future at their current levels or at any level. The termination or reduction of these tax benefits would
likely increase our tax liability. For information regarding the above-mentioned tax benefits, see Item 10.E— “Taxation — Israeli Taxation - Tax Benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of
Capital Investments, 1959” Below.

The government grants we received for know-how research and development expenditures impose certain restrictions on utilization of the funded grants and may expose us to payment of
royalties in tion with the cialization thereof.

We have received government grants from the Israel Innovation Authority (the “IIA”) for the financing of a portion of our research and development expenditures over the years. Although
we repaid 100% of the amount of the grant (as adjusted for fluctuation in the USD/NIS exchange rate), even following full repayment of any IIA grants (together with the applicable interest), and
unless otherwise agreed by the applicable authority of the IIA, we must nevertheless continue to comply with the requirements of the Encouragement of Industrial Research and Development Law,
1984 and the regulations promulgated there under (together, the “R&D Law”), with respect to technologies the development of which was financed by approved R&D program using financing from
such grants (“Financed Know-How”). In addition to the obligation to pay royalties to the IIA, the R&D Law requires that products which incorporate Financed Know-How be manufactured in
Israel and prohibits the transfer of the Financed Know-How and any right derived therefrom to third parties, unless otherwise approved in advance by the IIA. Such prior consent may be given by the
IIA subject to payment of increased royalties. Although as of the date of this Annual Report, no Financed Know-How is used or incorporated in our current or currently anticipated product lines,
these restrictions and requirements for payment could in the future — if and as applicable — impair our ability to sell such Financed Know-How, or to outsource or transfer manufacturing activities
with respect to any product or technology based on Financed Know-How, outside of Israel. Furthermore, the consideration available to our shareholders in a transaction involving the transfer outside
of Israel of Financed Know-How (such as a merger or similar transaction) may be reduced by any amounts that we are required to pay to the IIA. For more information regarding the above-
mentioned and other restrictions imposed by the R&D Law and regarding grants received by us from the IIA (and the repayment thereof), see Item 4.B - “Business Overview — The Israel
Innovation Authority” below.

It may be difficult to enforce a U.S. judgment against us or our officers and directors, or to assert U.S. securities law claims in Israel.

We are incorporated under the laws of the State of Israel. Service of process upon our directors and officers, all of whom reside outside the United States, may be difficult to obtain within
the United States. Furthermore, because the majority of our assets and all of our directors and officers are located outside the United States, any judgment obtained in the United States against us or
any of them may not be collectible within the United States. Further, it may be difficult for an investor to assert U.S. securities law claims in original actions instituted in Israel. Israeli courts may
refuse to hear a claim based on an alleged violation of U.S. securities laws reasoning that Israel is not the most appropriate forum to bring such a claim. In addition, even if an Israeli court agrees to
hear such a claim, it is not certain whether Israeli law or U.S. law will be applicable to the claim. If U.S. law is found to be applicable, the content of applicable U.S. law must be proved as a fact by
an expert witness, which can be a time-consuming and costly process. Certain matters of procedure will also be governed by Israeli law. There is little binding case law in Israel addressing these
matters. Under certain circumstances, Israeli courts might not enforce judgments rendered outside Israel, which may make it difficult to collect on judgments rendered against us or our non-
U.S. officers and directors.
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Being a foreign private issuer exempts us from certain SEC requirements and Nasdaq Rules, which may result in less protection than is afforded to investors under rules applicable to
domestic issuers.

We are a “foreign private issuer” within the meaning of rules promulgated by the SEC. As such, we are exempt from certain provisions under the Exchange Act applicable to U.S. public
companies, including: the rules under the Exchange Act requiring the filing with the SEC of quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K; the sections of the Exchange Act
regulating the solicitation of proxies, consents or authorizations in respect of securities registered under the Exchange Act, including extensive disclosure of compensation paid or payable to certain
of our highly compensated executives as well as disclosure of the compensation determination process; the provisions of Regulation FD aimed at preventing issuers from making selective
disclosures of material information; and the sections of the Exchange Act requiring insiders to file public reports of their stock ownership and trading activities and establishing insider liability for
profit realized from any “short-swing” trading transaction (a purchase and sale, or sale and purchase, of the issuer’s equity securities within less than six months). In addition, we are permitted to
follow certain home country corporate governance practices and law instead of those rules and practices otherwise required by Nasdaq for domestic issuers. For instance, we have relied on the
foreign private issuer exemption with respect to shareholder approval requirements for equity-based compensation plans, with respect to the Nasdaq requirement to have a separate compensation
committee and a formal charter for such committee, and with respect to the quorum requirement for the convening of general meetings of sharcholders; See in Item 16G. “Corporate Governance”
below. Following our home country corporate governance practices, as opposed to the requirements that would otherwise apply to a U.S. company listed on Nasdagq, may provide less protection to
investors than is afforded under the Nasdaq Rules applicable to domestic issuers.

Provisions of Israeli law may delay, prevent or make undesirable an acquisition of all or a significant portion of our shares or assets.

Israeli corporate law regulates mergers and acquisitions and requires that a tender offer be effected when certain thresholds of percentage ownership of voting power in a company are
exceeded (subject to certain conditions), which may have the effect of delaying, preventing or making more difficult a merger with, or acquisition of, us. See Item 10.B - “Memorandum and Articles
- Anti-Takeover Effects of Israeli Laws; Mergers and Acquisitions Under Israeli Law” below. Further, Israeli tax considerations may make potential transactions undesirable to us, or to some of
our shareholders whose country of residence does not have a tax treaty with Israel, granting tax relief to such shareholders from Israeli tax. With respect to mergers, Israeli tax law allows for tax
deferral in certain circumstances but makes the deferral contingent on the fulfillment of numerous conditions, including a holding period of two years from the date of the transaction during which
certain sales and dispositions of shares of the participating companies are restricted. Moreover, with respect to certain share swap transactions, the tax deferral is limited in time, and when such time
expires, the tax becomes payable even if no actual disposition of the shares has occurred. See Item 10.E - “Taxation - Israeli Taxation” below. In addition, in accordance with the Restrictive Trade
Practices Law, 1988 and under the R&D Law, approvals regarding a change in control (such as a merger or similar transaction) may be required in certain circumstances. For more information
regarding such required approvals please see in Item 4.B - “Business Overview - The Israel Innovation Authority” below. In addition, as a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of
Israel, we are subject to the Israeli Economic Competition Law, 1988 and the regulations promulgated thereunder (formerly known as the Israeli Antitrust Law, 1988), under which we may be
required in certain circumstances to obtain the approval of the Israel Competition Authority (formerly known as the Israel Antitrust Authority) in order to consummate a merger or a sale of all or
substantially all of our assets. These provisions of Israeli law could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control and may make it more difficult for a third-party to acquire us, even if
doing so would be beneficial to our shareholders and may limit the price that investors may be willing to pay in the future for our ordinary shares.
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Shareholder rights and responsibilities are governed by Israeli law which differs in some respects from the rights and responsibilities of shareholders of U.S. companies.

Since we are incorporated under Israeli law, the rights and responsibilities of our shareholders are governed by our articles of association, as amended from time to time (our “Articles”) and
Israeli law. These rights and responsibilities differ in some respects from the rights and responsibilities of shareholders in United States-based corporations. In particular, a shareholder of an Israeli
company has a duty to act in good faith and in a customary manner in exercising its rights and performing its obligations towards the company and other shareholders and to refrain from abusing its
power in the company, including, among other things, in voting at the general meeting of shareholders on certain matters, such as an amendment to a company’s articles of association, an increase of
a company’s authorized share capital, a merger of a company and approval of related party transactions that require shareholder approval. A shareholder also has a general duty to refrain from
discriminating against other shareholders. In addition, a controlling shareholder or a shareholder who knows that it possesses the power to determine the outcome of a shareholder vote or to appoint
or prevent the appointment of an Office Holder in a company, or who otherwise has the power to direct a company’s operations, has a duty to act in fairness towards such company. Israeli law does
not define the substance of this duty of fairness and there is limited case law available to assist us in understanding the nature of this duty or the implications of these provisions. These provisions
may be interpreted to impose additional obligations and liabilities on our shareholders that are not typically imposed on shareholders of U.S. corporations.

Item 4. Information on the Company.

A. History and Develop of the Company

Our legal and commercial name is Camtek Ltd. We were incorporated under the laws of the State of Israel in 1987 and operate under the Companies Law. Our headquarters are located in
Ramat Gavriel Industrial Zone, P.O. Box 544, Migdal Ha’Emek 23150, Israel, and our telephone number is +972-4-604-8100. Other than Israel, we currently have operations in the Asia Pacific
region, North America and Europe. Our agent for service of process in the United States is Camtek USA, Inc., located at 1815 NW 169TH PL Ste 1080, Beaverton, Oregon 97006-7365, Tel:
510-624-9905. We have been a public company since July 2000. Our ordinary shares are listed on the Nasdaq Global Market and on the TASE.

In November 2020, we issued 4,025,000 ordinary shares in a public offering, which included the full exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase 525,000 ordinary shares, at a price of
$17.00 per share, raising $64.3 million net of underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering expenses. In November 2021, we closed an offering of $200 million aggregate principal
amount of 0% Convertible Senior Notes due 2026 (“Convertible Notes™) in a private offering to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act, which included the
full exercise of underwriters” option to purchase an additional $25 million of Convertible Notes, raising $194.5 million net of underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering expenses.

In February 2019, the Company signed a series of definitive agreements, referred to as the “Chroma Transaction”, in the framework of which Chroma acquired a total of 6,117,440
ordinary shares from Priortech at a price of $9.50 per share, and an additional 1,700,000 new shares were issued to Chroma by the Company, at the same price of $9.50 per share; as of March
10,2024, Chroma holds 17.32% of our ordinary shares, while Priortech holds 21.31% of our ordinary shares. The Chroma Transaction was closed in June, 19, 2019 (the “Chroma Closing Date”),
following the occurrence of closing conditions defined therein, including the approval of the Chroma Transaction by the Company’s shareholders in our 2019 annual general meeting of shareholders,
dated June 3, 2019 (the “2019 AGM”) as well as the grant of approvals by certain regulatory bodies, including the Committee on Foreign Investment in the United States (CFIUS) and the Taiwan
Overseas Foreign Investment Commission (MOEAIC).

In addition, the Company entered into a Technological Cooperation Agreement with Chroma under which the Company granted Chroma a license for an application under Company’s
triangulation technology platform. In addition, Priortech and Chroma entered into a voting agreement according to which they vote together in the Company’s shareholders meetings and have joint
control over the Company (the “Chroma Voting Agreement”). Under the Chroma Voting Agreement, Chroma is entitled to nominate individuals for two seats on the Company’s Board and
Priortech is entitled to nominate three members. The remaining seats are held by two external directors. The Company also entered into a Second Amended and Restated Registration Rights
Agreement with Priortech and Chroma, according to which Chroma is entitled to the same rights Priortech has with respect to registration of our shares (see Item 7.B. — “Related Party
Transactions™).

On November 1, 2023, we announced the closing of the acquisition of FRT for $100 million in cash. FRT, headquartered in Bergisch Gladbach, Germany, is a leading supplier of high-

precision metrology solutions for the Advanced Packaging and Silicon Carbide markets. This acquisition is intended to leverage Camtek’s and FRT’s advanced technologies of Advanced Packaging
and Silicon Carbide that require new inspection and metrology steps in the semiconductor manufacturing processes.
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For a discussion of material cash requirements, including capital expenditures, see Item 5.B - “Liguidity and Capital Resources” below.

The SEC maintains an Internet web site at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports and other material that are filed through the SEC’s Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis and Retrieval, or
EDGAR, system. Our website is located at www.camtek.com. The information on our website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report.

B. Business Overview.
Our Business

Camtek is a developer and manufacturer of high-end inspection and metrology equipment for the semiconductor industry. Camtek’s systems inspect IC and measure IC features on wafers
throughout the production process of semiconductor devices, covering the back-end-of-line (BEOL) of the front-end and mid-end and up to the beginning of assembly (Post Dicing). Camtek’s
systems inspect wafers for the most demanding semiconductor market segments, including Advanced Packaging, Chiplets, HBM, Compound Semiconductors, Memory, CMOS Image Sensors,
Power, RF and MEMS, serving the industry’s leading global IDMs, OSATs, and foundries.

Semiconductors wafers are scanned under the advanced optic heads (2D Inspection and metrology and 3D metrology) in our systems, and advanced software and algorithms are
implemented on the scanned and measured wafers data. As a result, our systems automatically detect and measure good dice and defected dice. Hence, the total end product quality is enhanced by
ensuring that only known good dice will be shipped to end-users. The systems are easy to operate and offer high accuracy and productivity in high volume manufacturing environments. These
systems incorporate proprietary advanced image processing software and algorithms, as well as advanced electro-optics and precision mechanics and are designed for easy operation and
maintenance. Our global, direct customer support organization provides responsive, local pre- and post- sales support for our customers through our wholly owned subsidiaries located in 8 offices
around the world.

Inspection and Metrology are implemented at various stages along the semiconductor manufacturing process. Camtek’s systems serve various manufacturing stages starting from the Back-
end-of-line (BEOL) of the front-end, through Inspection and Metrology of bumps in the mid-end, inspection of wafers and the inspection of post-diced wafers in the back end (Assembly).

Our Markets

The semiconductor manufacturing industry produces integrated circuits mainly on silicon wafers but also on other materials and on compound semiconductors (for example, Silicon Carbide
— SiC, Gallium Nitride — GaN, and Gallium Arsenide - GaAS). Each wafer contains numerous integrated dice containing microelectronic devices. The growth of the semiconductor manufacturing
industry in the past few years has been driven largely by demand from electronics such as smartphones and the proliferation of applications including the Internet of Things and cloud computing.
Continued growth is expected with the enhancements of existing products, and the inclusion of emerging technologies such as Al as well as rapid growth in automotive, electrical and autonomous
vehicles and industrial electronics. The effect of such market growth trends on the demand for Inspection and Metrology systems is driven by three main factors: (i) growing electronic devices
manufacturing volume requires more equipment, (ii) applications such as automotive and mobile phones require a higher level of reliability and hence more Inspection and Metrology and (iii) new
packaging technologies, such as Chiplets and HBM, require more inspection and metrology steps (as described in more detail below).

In the fast-growing advanced packaging market segment, which includes a wide variety of devices and technologies, new inspection and measurements steps become crucial to ensure a
known-good-package. The bumps and hybrid bonding are becoming the main interface instead of the conventional wire bonding. There is a wide variety of bump types and sizes which are used for
different packaging technologies. Camtek’s systems are equipped with state-of-the-art metrology and inspection capabilities designed to address many of those inspection and metrology steps,
including bump height, die stack planarity, RDL dimensions and surface defects. These are examples of typical process steps where inspection and metrology are critical to ensure high quality
products.
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Wafers with hundreds of millions of bumps in very dense architecture are becoming more common and require 100% inspection and metrology due to the packaging reliability requirements.
The high cost of packages which combine multiple dice requires Known Good Dice in order to ensure that each die in the package is fully functional. Camtek’s systems are designed to deliver 100%
Inspection and Metrology in high volume manufacturing environment, without compromising on throughput and performance. We expect that the two fastest growing segments in advanced
packaging will be the Chiplets, which are becoming the standard for high performance computing, and Fan Out Wafer Level Packaging (FOWLP). Camtek’s flexible inspection and metrology
systems utilize a wide variety of technologies to address the complex requirements of these growing segments.

The shift of memory devices to advanced packaging is growing to support high-end systems. A good example is High Bandwidth Memory (HBM) of DRAM dice stacked on top of each
other enabling higher bandwidth at less power consumption. Camtek provides 100% inspection and metrology of all the components in the stack ensuring known-good-package.

Another fast-growing segment is the CMOS image sensors (“CIS”) used for cameras. With the growing number of cameras in each mobile phone and the increase in the number of pixels
per each sensor and reduction in the size of each pixel, a high-resolution inspection is mandatory. Camtek has developed unique capabilities to address these requirements and its systems are being
used by the largest CIS manufacturers.

As 5G continues to expand its reach, it may open new possibilities for Camtek. SG smartphones benefit from enhanced performance and broader bandwidth, as a result of the use of more
RF filters (up to triple the previous number) with much finer dimensions. These challenges require more accurate and, in many cases, 100% inspection and metrology. Camtek offers dedicated

inspection solutions to support the growing RF manufacturing market, enabling high-volume manufacturing at high throughput.

Compound semiconductors are undergoing a major expansion addressing many new applications and using various materials such SiC, GaN, GaAs and others, to improve the performance
of new devices such as Power and Face Recognition applications.

The compound semiconductors manufacturing process is unique and requires dedicated solutions for Inspection and Metrology. Compound Semiconductors have unique properties,
including high temperature and heat resistance, enhanced frequency and faster operation, which are some of the key demands in various advanced applications such as the automotive, Al and mobile
devices. Camtek’s offering includes the inspection of epitaxial layers, inner cracks within the epitaxial layer, surface topography, bow measurement, data analysis and more.

During the last couple of years, Camtek has penetrated the Back-end-of-Line (BEOL) of the Front End manufacturing process addressing the challenges of defect-free and high-yield wafer
manufacturing. The variety of defects calls for detection optimization, fast screening and categorization of the high-volume manufacturing environment, while maintaining high throughput. Camtek’s
platforms can handle these challenges and detect all defects of interest at high volume manufacturing rate.

Product Lines
Inspection and Metrology Systems
Our systems consist of:
« an electro-optical assembly unit which captures the image of the inspected product and which consists of a video camera, precision optics and illumination sources;

«  aprecise, movable table, that holds the inspected product; and

« an electronic hardware unit, which operates the entire system and includes embedded components that process and analyze the captured image by using our proprietary algorithms.
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The inspected and measured product is placed on a designated platform and is scanned under the optical assembly unit. The optical assembly unit then captures images of the product, while
the electronic hardware unit processes the image using the analysis algorithms. Detected discrepancies are logged and reported as defects per the user definitions. The image of the defect is
immediately available for verification by the system operator. Our systems can also compile and communicate statistical reports of inspection findings via the customer’s factory information system.

We offer a broad range of systems for automated optical Inspection and Metrology of semiconductor wafers. We invest significant resources in R&D to provide our customers with
advantageous performance, low cost of ownership, high reliability and ease of operation. We believe that a significant part of our competitive advantage derives from our R&D innovative
capabilities which enable us to adapt our technologies to evolving market needs and customers’ requirements.

Over the years, our Inspection and Metrology products for the semiconductor industry included the Falcon, Condor, Gannet and Eagle products lines. As of today, we produce and sell the
Eagle platform, the Hawk platform and the MicroProf platform, and have phased out all other models.

Product Function

Hawk Launched on February 2025, this brand-new product family — the Hawk — a new cutting-edge platform is engineered for cutting edge advanced packaging: Chiplets, HBM
and Hybrid Bonding. Designed for high-end applications such as, the Hawk supports detection of 150 nanometer defects size and measurement of 500 million micro
bumps at pitches less than 12 micron

Eagle G5 Launched in September 2024, the Eagle G5 was developed on the well-known Eagle product family and is engineered to deliver unmatched speed and efficiency.
Featuring significantly higher throughput and new optimized optics, the Eagle G5 offers higher resolution for enhanced detection and metrology. The system provides
innovative solutions for Multi-RDL, FOWLP, 2.5D, and CMOS Image Sensors. With the introduction of Clear-Sight Technology (CSI) for Multi-Layer RDL, the Eagle
G5 achieves enhanced detection capabilities, down to 1.4pm L/S at twice the throughput.

EagleT-i /Plus The Eagle-i system family is designed for high volume 2D inspection, delivering superior 2D inspection and 2D metrology capabilities. The system utilizes the most
advanced algorithms enabling detection of down to sub-micron defects and measuring two-micron line and space redistribution layer (“RDL”). The Eagle-i system family
includes the EagleT-I and EagleT-I Plus models, which were designed for better accuracy and optical resolutions and higher throughput.

EagleT-AP / Plus The Eagle-AP system family addresses the fast-growing advanced packaging market using state of the art technologies, both software and hardware, that deliver superior
2D and 3D inspection and metrology capabilities on the same platform. The EagleT-AP metrology capabilities support the wide spectrum of bump sizes and all bump
types, including copper pillars, micro-bumps, solder and gold bumps, meeting the advanced packaging market requirements, including measurement of bumps down to
2um (microns) and providing high throughput. The Eagle-AP system family includes the EagleT-AP and EagleT-AP Plus models, equipped with higher throughput and
improved metrology capabilities.

Golden Eagle Designed mainly for Fanout Panel-Level-Package (FO-PLP) applications, Camtek’s Golden Eagle is used for the inspection and metrology of standard panel sizes. The
Golden Eagle addresses the challenges of Fanout Wafer Level Packaging (FOWLP), while providing a robust system that addresses high-volume manufacturing
requirements.

In addition, we intend to offer certain software solutions we develop, such as the Automatic Defect Classification
(ADC), which provides automatic defect classification of color images, utilizing deep learning techniques, and will enable our customers to reduce and even eliminate manual verification.

With the acquisition of FRT in November 2023, Camtek added the following products and metrology capabilities to its portfolio. These products are divided into three categories: Fully
Automated Wafer Metrology, Semi-automated with MHU and Manual Metrology.
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Product Function

MicroProf® AP The FRT MicroProf® AP is a fully automated wafer metrology tool for a wide range of applications at different 3D packaging process steps, e.g. for the measurement of|
photoresist (PR) coatings and structuring, through silicon vias (TSVs) or trenches after etching, p-bumps and Cu pillars, as well as for the measurement in thinning,
bonding and stacking processes. With its modular multi-sensor concept, the flexible MicroProf AP measuring tool is designed to perform a variety of measuring tasks in
advanced packaging. We also offer a variety of semi-automated metrology equipment.

Customers

We target wafer manufacturers and companies involved in the testing, assembly and packaging of semiconductor devices.

Our customers are semiconductor manufacturers, among them outsourced semiconductor assembly and test (OSAT), integrated device manufacturers (IDMs) and wafer level packaging
subcontractors. Our customers, many of whom have multiple facilities, are located throughout Asia, Europe and North America. In 2024, three individual customers accounted for 15%, 10% and

10% of our total revenues. In 2023, one customer accounted for 15% of our total revenues. As of December 31, 2024, our installed base was over 3,000 systems.

The following table shows our revenues classified by geographical region for each of the last three years:

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

U.S. Dollars (In thousands)
Asia Pacific 133,772 67,773 63,455
China 132,556 149,510 141,959
Korea 117,135 47,425 43,256
United States 29,282 41,118 54,741
Europe 16,489 9,549 17,498
Total 429,234 315,375 320,909

Marketing and Customer Support

‘We have established a global distribution and support network throughout the territories in which we sell, install and support our products, including the Asia Pacific region, North America
and Europe. We believe that this is an essential factor in our customers’ decision to purchase our products. We primarily utilize our own employees to provide these customer support services. We
may expand our network into additional territories as market conditions warrant.

We have a distribution rights agreement with a Japanese company, under which this company sells, installs and supports our products in Japan.

As of December 31, 2024, 284 of our employees were engaged in our worldwide marketing and support efforts, including support and marketing administration staff. Due to the
concentration of customers in the Asia Pacific region, we have significantly expanded our marketing and support teams in this region.

Our marketing efforts include participation in various trade shows and conventions, publications and trade press, product demonstrations performed at our facilities and regular contact with
customers by marketing personnel. We generally provide a 12-month warranty to our customers. In addition, for a fee, we offer service and maintenance contracts commencing after the expiration of
the warranty period. Under our service and maintenance contracts, we provide prompt local, on-site customer support. Our experienced local teams have been able to install and support our

customers throughout the pandemic with virtual support, as needed, from our experts in the headquarters.

‘We take various measures to secure customers’ payment on a case-by-case basis by means of letters of credit. Also, we receive advanced payments before shipment from most customers.
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Manufacturing

Our manufacturing activities consist primarily of the assembly and final integration of parts, components and subassemblies, which are acquired from third-party vendors and
subcontractors. The manufacturing process for our products generally lasts six to twelve weeks. We utilize subcontractors for the production of subsystems, and our current main product, the Eagle
system, is manufactured by two Israeli contractors who perform most of the material planning, procurement, manufacturing, testing and assembly work with respect to such systems.

We rely on single source and limited source suppliers and subcontractors for a number of essential components and subsystems of our products. We have increased our inventories and
production capacity to meet our needs taking in account the global shortage. During times of rapid increase in demand in the semiconductor fabrication industry, the delivery time of suppliers in this
industry is extended. However, to date, we have been able to obtain sufficient units of these components to meet our needs in a timely fashion.

Our manufacturing facilities are located in Migdal Ha’Emek, Israel, and in Bergisch Gladbach, Germany.

Competition

The markets in which we operate are highly competitive. Our main competitors are Onto Innovations, Skyverse, ATI Electronics Pty Ltd., Cheng Mei Instrument Technology Co., ASTI Holding
Limited, Toray Industries Inc. ., Nova, Bruker, Unity and, for some limited applications, KLA-Tencor Corporation.

We believe that the principal elements of a sustainable competitive advantage are:
«  ongoing research, development and commercial implementation of new image acquisition, processing and analysis technologies;

«  product architecture based on proprietary core technologies and commercially available hardware. Such architecture supports shorter time-to-market, flexible cost structure, longer
service life and higher margins;

+  fast response to evolving customer needs;

«  ability to maintain competitive pricing;

«  product compatibility with customer automation environment; and

«  strong pre- and post-sale support (applications, service and training) deployed in immediate proximity to customer sites.
We believe that we compete effectively on all of these factors.
The Israel Innovation Authority

The Government of Israel encourages research and development projects in Israel through the IIA (the Israel Innovation Authority), pursuant to and subject to the provisions of the R&D
Law. Under the R&D Law, research and development projects which are approved by the Research Committee of the IIA are eligible for grants, in exchange for repayment by way of royalty
payment of royalties from revenues generated by the products and/or services developed within the framework of such approved project and subject to compliance with certain requirements and

restrictions under the R&D Law as detailed below, which must generally continue to be complied with even following full repayment of all IIA grants (as adjusted for fluctuation in the USD/NIS
exchange rate), with applicable interest.

29




We received grants from the IIA for several projects and may receive additional grants in the future. Under the terms of certain IIA plans, a company may be required to pay royalties
ranging between 3% to 6% (depending on the terms and conditions of the specific plan and the classification of the company), of the revenues generated from its products or services incorporating
know-how developed with, or are a derivative of, funds received from the ITA (“IIA Products”), until 100% of the dollar value of the grant is repaid (plus LIBOR interest applicable to grants
received on or after January 1, 1999 and until July 1, 2017; the interest applicable to grants received on or after July 1, 2017, and until January 1, 2024 is: (i) LIBOR interest until December 31,
2023, and (ii) thereafter, 12 months Term SOFR as published in the first trading day of each year by CME Group, or by any other party authorized by the Federal Reserve, or in alternative
publication by the Bank of Israel, with the addition of 0.71513%; the interest applicable to grants received on or after January 1, 2024 is 12 months Term SOFR as published in the first trading day of
each year by CME Group, or by any other party authorized by the Federal Reserve, or in alternative publication by the Bank of Israel).

The R&D Law generally requires that a product incorporating Financed Know-how be manufactured in Israel. However, subject to receipt of an approval from the IIA, some of the
manufacturing volume may be performed outside of Israel. Such approval is subject to the repayment of increased royalties, in an amount of up to 300% of the total grant amount, plus applicable
interest, and an increase of 1% in the royalty rate, depending on the extent of the manufacturing that is to be conducted outside of Israel.

The R&D Law also provides that Financed Know-How and any right derived therefrom may not be transferred to third parties, unless such transfer was approved in accordance with the
R&D Law. The research committee operating under the IIA may approve the transfer of Financed Know-How between Israeli entities, provided that the transferee undertakes all the obligations in
connection with the R&D grant as prescribed under the R&D Law. In certain cases, the research committee may also approve a transfer of Financed Know-How outside of Israel, in both cases
subject to the receipt of certain payments, calculated according to a formula set forth in the R&D Law. In the case of transfer outside of Israel, a payment of up to six times the total amount of the
grants plus applicable interest, and in the case the R&D activity related to the know-how remains in Israel, a payment of three times of such total amount. These approvals are not required for the
sale or export of any products resulting from such R&D activity or based on such Financed Know-How.

Further, the R&D Law imposes reporting requirements on certain companies with respect to changes in the ownership of a grant recipient. The grant recipient, its controlling shareholders,
and foreign interested parties of such companies must notify the IIA of any change in control of the grant’s recipient or the holdings of the “means of control” of the recipient that result in an Israeli
or a non-Israeli becoming an interested party directly in the recipient. The R&D Law also requires the new interested party to undertake to comply with the R&D Law. For this purpose, “control”
means the ability to direct the activities of a company (other than any ability arising solely from serving as an officer or director of the company), including the holding of 25% or more of the “means
of control”, if no other shareholder holds 50% or more of such “means of control.” “Means of control” refers to voting rights or the right to appoint directors or the chief executive officer. An
“interested party” of a company includes a holder of 5% or more of its outstanding share capital or voting rights, its chief executive officer and directors, someone who has the right to appoint its
chief executive officer or at least one director, and a company with respect to which any of the foregoing interested parties owns 25% or more of the outstanding share capital or voting rights or has
the right to appoint 25% or more of the directors. Accordingly, in certain cases, any non-Israeli who acquires 5% or more of our ordinary shares may be required to notify the IIA that it has become
an interested party and to sign an undertaking to comply with the R&D Law. In addition, the rules of the ITA may require additional information or representations with respect to such events.

As of December 31, 2024, we have repaid (including interest accrued by Camtek) all outstanding grant amounts to the IIA. As of the date of this Annual Report, no Financed Know-How is
utilized in our current or currently anticipated activities.

At the end of 2021, the publication of the LIBOR ceased, and alternative interests were applied throughout the worldwide economy, including the SOFR interest. The interest applicable to

grants received on or after January 1, 2024 is 12 months Term SOFR as published in the first trading day of each year by CME Group, or by any other party authorized by the Federal Reserve, or in
alternative publication by the Bank of Israel.
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Capital Expenditures
The following table shows our capital expenditures in fixed assets for the last three years:

December 31,

2024 2023 2022
(U.S. Dollars in thousands)
Machinery and equipment* 8,719 8,155 6,162
Right of use (ROU) assets 7,035 2,573 2,079
Computer equipment and software 1,651 1,061 1,438
Building and leasehold improvements 4,149 2,974 3,600
Vehicles 37 34 3
Office furniture and equipment 247 111 117
Total 21,838 14,908 13,399

* including transfer of inventory to fixed assets in the aggregate of $4,533, $4,541, and $2,893 in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
Material Effects of Governmental Regulations

The following EU directives, which represent the European standard required in order to sell in Europe, apply to our business: Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC, Low Voltage Directive
(LVD) 2014/35/EU, EMC Directive (EMC) 2014/30/EU, and RoHS2 Directive (RoHS2) 2011/65/EU. The following SEMI Standards, which define uniform standards for manufacturers in the
semiconductor fabrication industry and production equipment producers, apply to us: SEMI S-2 (safety requirements for sale of equipment in the semiconductor fabrication) and SEMI S-8
(ergonomic requirements for sale of equipment in the semiconductor fabrication industry). We comply with the above-mentioned governmental regulations during the systems’ design process, which
is conducted in accordance with the Company’s quality assurance manual ISO9001:2015. In addition, all modules of systems are tested by independent laboratories that certify their compliance with
these governmental regulations and have required accreditation.

C. Organizational Structure
Through its affiliated companies, one of our principal shareholders, Priortech, engages in various aspects of the electronic production, including, advance packaging designs for the
semiconductor industry and advanced organic coreless substrate technology. As of March 5, 2025, Priortech holds 21.09% of our outstanding ordinary shares and is a party to the Chroma Voting

Agreement. Under the Chroma Voting Agreement, Priortech is entitled to nominate three Board members. We have no revenues from sales to affiliates and subsidiaries of Priortech.

The following table shows the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned by us or by our subsidiaries (except for Camtek HK Ltd., in which Priortech holds no more than one
percent of the voting rights), together with each subsidiary’s jurisdiction of incorporation, as of the date of this Annual Report:

Name of Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Incorporation
Camtek H.K. Ltd. Hong Kong
Camtek USA Inc. New Jersey, USA
Camtek (Europe) NV Belgium

Camtek Germany GmbH Germany

Camtek Inspection Technology (Suzhou) Ltd. China

Camtek Japan Ltd. Japan

Camtek Inspection Technology Limited Taiwan

Camtek South East Asia Pte Ltd. Singapore
Camtek Korea Ltd. South Korea
Camtek Germany Holding GmbH Germany

FRT GmbH Germany
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D. Property, Plants and Equipment

Our main office, manufacturing and research and development facilities are located in the Ramat Gavriel Industrial Zone of Migdal Ha’Emek in northern Israel. These facilities occupy
124,000 square feet of which 45,500 square feet are devoted to the manufacturing of our products. Our facilities in Germany occupy 15,200 square feet of which 7,000 square feet are devoted to the
manufacturing of our products.

Our sales offices and demonstration centers, which we lease in various locations around the world, occupy an aggregate of approximately 58,500 square feet.
Item4A. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.
ItemS5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects.
A. Operating Results
General

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes to those statements
included therein, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”). The following discussion does not address certain
items in respect of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, in reliance on amendments to disclosure requirements adopted by the SEC. A discussion of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2022
may be found in “Item 5 — “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects” of our Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on March 21,
2024.

Overview

We design, develop, manufacture and market automated solutions dedicated for enhancing production processes and yield for the semiconductor fabrication industry, principally based on
our Inspection and Metrology core technology; see in Item 4.B “Business Overview - Our Business” above.

We sell our systems internationally. The majority of sales of our systems in 2024 were to manufacturers in the Asia Pacific region, including South Korea, China, Taiwan and South East
Asia, due to, among other factors, the migration of the electronic manufacturers into this region following the development and growth of electronics industry centers.

In the year ended December 31, 2024, our sales in the Asia Pacific region (mostly China, Taiwan and South Korea) accounted for approximately 89% of our total revenues.

In addition to revenues derived from the sale of systems and related products, we generate revenues from providing maintenance and support services for our products. We generally provide
a one-year warranty with our systems. Accordingly, service revenues are not earned during the warranty period.
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In regular market conditions, the demand for our systems is characterized by short notice. To meet customers’ needs for quick delivery and to realize the competitive advantage of the ability
to do so, we have to pre-order components and subsystems based on our forecast of future orders, rather than on actual orders. This need is compounded by the fact that, in times of increasing
demand in our markets, our suppliers and subcontractors tend to extend their delivery schedules or fail to meet their delivery deadlines. To compensate for these unscheduled delays, we build
inventories further into the future, which increases the risk that our forecast may not correspond to our actual future needs. The uncertainties involved in these longer-term estimates during regular
times of business expansion tend to increase the level of component and subsystem inventories (See also in Item 3.D. - “Risk Factors - A longer sales process for new products may increase our
costs and delay time to market of our products, both of which may negatively impact our revenues, results of operations, cash flow and may result in inventory write-offs” above and under Item
5.A - “Operating Results - Critical Accounting Policies - Valuation of Inventory” below). Compared to our sales cycles for repeat orders from existing customers, we have longer sales cycles for
new customers in our markets as well as for new customers in new markets. In addition, the selling cycle in our markets typically takes several quarters from first contact to revenue recognition,
including on-site evaluation. Naturally, repeat orders take less time.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and related disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to revenue recognition, accounts receivable, inventories, intangible assets, contingent
liabilities, long-lived assets, income taxes, share-based payments and leases. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Results may differ from
these estimates due to actual outcomes being different from those on which we based our assumptions. These estimates and judgments are regularly reviewed by management on an ongoing basis at
the end of each quarter prior to the public release of our financial results.

Critical accounting policies are those that, in management’s view, are most important to the portrayal of a company’s financial condition and results of operations and most demanding on
their calls on judgment, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain and may change in subsequent periods. We believe our most critical
accounting policies and estimates relate to:

Revenue Recognition. The Company’s contracts with its customers include performance obligations to provide its products or to service the installed products. A product sale contract may
include an extended warranty (that is, for longer than the twelve-month standard warranty) as well as installation, both of which are considered separate performance obligations.

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts for sales of products when the Company transfers control of the product to the customer. This generally occurs upon shipment whereas
previously it was generally upon installation at the customer’s premises. Revenues from the contract are recognized in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to
receive once the product is operating in accordance with its specifications and signed documentation of the arrangement, such as a signed contract or purchase order, has been received. Payment
terms with customers may vary, but are generally based on milestones within the delivery process such as shipping and installation. Payment terms do not include significant financing components.

The Company does not incur costs in obtaining a contract except for agents’ commissions, which are incurred upon the recognition of revenues. Service revenues from maintenance
contracts are recognized ratably over the contract period.

Service revenues consist mainly of contracts charged under time and material arrangements. Service revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized ratably over the contract period.

Contracts with customers may include multiple performance obligations. For such arrangements, the Company allocates revenue to each performance obligation based on its relative
standalone selling price. The Company generally determines standalone selling prices based on the prices charged to customers.

The Company’s multiple performance obligations consist of product sales, installation services and non-standard warranties. For cases in which product revenue has been recognized but
installation has not occurred as of the balance sheet date, a fixed amount is deferred from revenue in respect of the installation services yet to be performed. A non-standard warranty is one that is for
a period longer than 12 months. Accordingly, income from a non-standard warranty is deferred as unearned revenue and is recognized ratably as revenue commencing with and over the applicable
warranty term.
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The Company records contract liabilities when the customer has been billed in advance of the Company completing its performance obligations. These amounts are recorded as deferred
revenue in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Marketable Securities. The Company accounts for marketable securities in accordance with ASC Topic 320, “Investments — Debt Securities”. The Company’s investments in marketable
securities consist of high-grade treasury, corporate and municipal bonds.

Investments in marketable securities are classified as available for sale at the time of purchase. Available for sale securities are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices, with
unrealized gains and losses, reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in shareholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses on sales of marketable securities, are included in financial
income (expenses), net. The amortized cost of marketable securities is adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of discount to maturity, both of which, together with interest, are included
in financial income (expenses), net.

The Company classifies its marketable securities as either short term or long term based on each instrument’s underlying contractual maturity date. Marketable securities with maturities of
12 months or less are classified as short-term and marketable securities with maturities greater than 12 months are classified as long-term.

The Company accounts for Credit losses in accordance with ASU 2016-13, Topic 326 “Financial Instruments — Credit Losses: Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments”. The
guidance requires the Company to determine whether a decline in fair value below the amortized cost basis of an available for sale debt security is due to credit related factors or noncredit related
factors. A credit related impairment should be recognized as an allowance on the balance sheet with a corresponding adjustment to earnings, however, if the Company intends to sell an impaired
available for sale debt security or more likely than not would be required to sell such a security before recovering its amortized cost basis, the entire impairment amount would be recognized in
earnings with a corresponding adjustment to the security’s amortized cost basis.

The Company did not recognize an allowance for credit losses on marketable securities as there were no expected credit losses for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Valuation of Inventory. Inventories consist of completed systems, partially completed systems and components, and are recorded at the lower of cost, determined by the moving — average
basis, or net realizable value. We review inventory for obsolescence and excess quantities to determine that items deemed obsolete or excess inventory are appropriately reserved. In making the
determination, we consider forecasted future sales or service/maintenance of related products and the quantity of inventory at the balance sheet date, assessed against each inventory item’s past usage
rates and future expected usage rates. Changes in factors such as technology, customer demand, competing products and other matters could affect the level of our obsolete and excess inventory in
the future.

In the years 2024 and 2023 we wrote-off inventory in the amount of approximately $4.3 million and $1.2 million, respectively which were related to damaged, obsolete, excess and slow-
moving inventory. These amounts are included in the item line called “Cost of revenues” in the consolidated statements of operations. The write-offs create a new cost basis and are a permanent
reduction of inventory cost. Inventory that is not expected to be converted or consumed in 2024 is classified as non-current. As of December 31, 2024, an $11.9 million portion of our inventory was
classified as non-current. Management periodically evaluates our inventory composition, giving consideration to factors such as the probability and timing of anticipated usage and the physical
condition of the items, and then estimates a charge (reducing the inventory) to be provided for slow moving, technologically obsolete or damaged inventory. These estimates could vary significantly
from actual requirements based upon future economic conditions, customer inventory levels or competitive factors that were not foreseen or did not exist when the inventory write-offs were
established.
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Business acquisitions. The Company accounted for business combination in accordance with ASC No. 805, "Business Combinations". Under ASU No. 2017-01, “Business Combinations
(Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business, the Company first determines whether substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset
or a group of similar identifiable assets. If this threshold is met, the single asset or group of assets, as applicable, is not a business.

ASC No. 805 requires recognition of assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and any non-controlling interest at the acquisition date, measured at their fair values as of that date. Any excess of
the fair value of net assets acquired over purchase price and any subsequent changes in estimated contingencies are to be recorded in earnings.

When the Company acquires a business, the purchase price is allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets, net of liabilities assumed. Any residual purchase price is recorded as
goodwill. The allocation of the purchase price requires management to make significant estimates in determining the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, especially with respect to
intangible assets. The Company uses the Discounted Cash Flow Method to assign fair values to acquired identifiable intangible assets. These estimates can include, but are not limited to, the cash
flows that an asset is expected to generate in the future, forecasted future revenue, forecasted operating results, discount rates and the appropriate weighted-average cost of capital. These estimates
are inherently uncertain and unpredictable.

These models are based on reasonable estimates and assumptions given available facts and circumstances, including industry estimates and averages, as of the acquisition dates and are
consistent with the plans and estimates of management.

During the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the acquisition date, adjustments to the fair value of these tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed
may be recorded, with the corresponding offset to goodwill. Upon the conclusion of the measurement period or final determination of the fair value of assets acquired or liabilities assumed,
whichever comes first, any subsequent adjustments are recorded to the Company’s consolidated statements of income (loss).

Intangible assets. Patent registration costs are capitalized at cost and amortized, beginning with the first year of utilization, over its expected life of ten years. The technology, trade names
and customer relationships acquired in the FRT acquisition are to be amortized over their expected lives of 5 years, 10 years, and 2 years, respectively.

We review our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets
to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of the long-lived
asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized as computed by subtracting the fair market value of the asset from its carrying value.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets. We apply ASC Subtopic 360-10, “Property, Plant and Equipment”. This Statement requires that long-lived assets be reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of the long-lived asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an
impairment charge is recognized as computed by subtracting the fair market value of the asset from its carrying value. We prepare future cash flows based on our best estimates including projections
and financial statements, future plans and growth estimates.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes under ASC Subtopic 740-10 Income Taxes — Overall. Deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts as well as in respect of tax losses and other deductions which may be deductible for tax purposes in future years,
based on tax rates applicable to the periods in which such deferred taxes will be realized. The rates applied are those enacted in law as of December 31, 2024. In assessing the realizability of deferred
tax assets, we consider whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible and during which the carry-forwards are available. Valuation allowances are
established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount considered more likely than not to be realized.
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Our financial statements include deferred tax assets, net, which are calculated according to the above methodology. If there is an unexpected critical deterioration in our operating results and
forecasts, we would have to increase the valuation allowance with respect to those assets. We believe that it is more likely than not that those net deferred tax assets included in our financial
statements will be realized in subsequent years.

Stock Option and Restricted Share Plans. We account for our employee stock-based compensation awards in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation. ASC
Topic 718 requires that all employee stock-based compensation is recognized as a cost in the financial statements and that for equity-classified awards such cost is measured at the grant date fair
value of the award. We estimate grant date fair value using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model. Forfeitures are recognized when they occur.

Leases. Results and disclosure requirements are presented under Topic 842, Leases. Under Topic 842, we determine if an arrangement is a lease at inception. ROU assets and lease liabilities
are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of remaining lease payments over the lease term. For this purpose, we consider only payments that are fixed and determinable at the
time of commencement. As most of our leases do not provide an implicit rate, we use its incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at commencement date in determining the
present value of lease payments. Our incremental borrowing rate was 6.0% in 2024, based on our understanding of what our credit rating was at that time. Our lease terms may include options to
extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that we will exercise such options. When determining the probability of exercising such options, we consider contract-based, asset-based,
entity-based, and market-based factors. Lease agreements may contain variable costs such as common area maintenance, insurance, real estate taxes or other costs. Variable lease costs are expensed
as incurred on the consolidated statements of income. Our lease agreements generally do not contain any residual value guarantees or restrictive covenants.

Operating lease ROU assets are presented as property, plant and equipment on the consolidated balance sheet. The current portion of operating lease liabilities is included in other current
liabilities and the long-term portion is presented within long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

For operating leases, the ROU asset is subsequently measured throughout the lease term at the carrying amount of the lease liability, plus initial direct costs, plus (minus) any prepaid
(accrued) lease payments, less the unamortized balance of lease incentives received. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ROU assets for operating leases are periodically reduced by impairment losses. We use the long-lived assets impairment guidance in ASC Subtopic 360-10, Property, Plant, and Equipment —
Overall, to determine whether an ROU asset is impaired, and if so, the amount of the impairment loss to recognize.

Finance lease ROU assets consist of real estate at a German subsidiary, for which a purchase option is reasonably certain to be exercised, and are presented as property, plant and equipment
on the consolidated balance sheet. The asset is depreciated over the expected useful life of the asset. The carrying amount of the liability includes the present value of future lease payments and the
exercise price of the option.

Comparison of Period-to-Period Results of Operations

The following table presents consolidated statement of operations data for the periods indicated as a percentage of total revenues:

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

Total Revenues 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Total cost of revenues 51.09% 53.19% 50.19%
Gross profit 48.91% 46.81% 49.81%
Operating expenses:

Research and development expenses 8.92% 9.98% 8.99%
Selling, general and administrative expenses.. 14.82% 16.09% 15.42%
Total operating expenses 23.74% 26.07% 24.42%
Operating profit 25.18% 20.74% 25.40%
Financial income , net 5.40% 7.04% 2.08%
Income tax expenses (2.96%) (2.85%) (2.57%)
Net income 27.61% 24.93% 24.91%
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Year Ended D ber 31, 2024 ed to Year Ended December 31, 2023

P

Revenues. Revenues increased by 36% to $429.2 million in 2024 from $315.4 million in 2023, due primarily to an increase in the number of product units sold.

Gross Profit. Gross profit consists of revenues less cost of revenues, which includes the cost of components, production materials, labor, depreciation, factory and service center overheads
and provisions for warranties. These expenditures are only partially affected by sales volume. Our total gross profit increased to $210.0 million in 2024 from $147.6 million in 2023, an increase of
$62.3 million, or 42%. Our gross margin increased to 48.9% in 2024, compared to a gross margin of 46.8% in 2023, mainly as a result of economies of scale from increased sales and mix of products
sold.

Research and Development Costs. Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries, materials consumption and costs associated with subcontracting certain development
efforts. Total research and development expenses for 2024 increased by 22% to $38.3 million from $31.5 million in 2023 due to higher investment in new products and technologies, as well as an
increase in headcount.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of expenses associated with salaries, commissions, promotion and travel,
professional services and rent costs. Our selling, general and administrative expenses increased by 25% to $63.6 million in 2024 from $50.8 million in 2023, mainly due to increased salary expenses

and professional services.

Financial Income, Net. We had net financial income of $23.2 million in 2024 compared to $22.2 million in 2023. Foreign currency expense, net, resulting from transactions not denominated
in U.S. Dollars, amounted to $0 in 2024 compared to income of $0.1 million in 2023.

Provision for Income Taxes. Income tax expense was $12.7 million in 2024, an increase of $3.7 million from the $9.0 million expense in 2023.

Net Income. We realized net income of $118.5 million in 2024 compared to net income of $78.6 million in 2023, due to increased revenues and financial income, offset by increased
operating expenses.

B. Liquidity and Capital Resources
At December 31, 2024, our cash and cash equivalent deposit and marketable securities balances totaled approximately $501.2 million compared to approximately $448.6 million at
December 31, 2023. The year-to-year increase in cash and cash equivalents and deposits results from positive operating cash flow. Our cash is invested in bank deposits spread among several banks,

primarily in Israel and in international bonds.

Our working capital was approximately $496.1 million in 2024 and $450.1 million in 2023. The increase is mainly attributed to increased current assets, offset by increased current
liabilities.

Our capital expenditures during 2024 were approximately $10.4 million, mainly to increase our production capacity and to support our R&D, operations and IT activities.
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Cash flow from operating activities
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 totaled $122.2 million and $79.3 million, respectively.
During 2024 and 2023, cash provided by operating activities was primarily attributed to net income.

Cash flow from investing activities

Cash flow used in investing activities in 2024 was $55.9 million, due to investment in marketable securities, short- and long-term deposits and fixed and intangible assets. Cash flow used in
investing activities in 2023 was $107.5 million, due to investment in short-term deposits and fixed and intangible assets.

Cash flow from financing activities
Cash flow used in financing activities in 2024 was $60.0 million, due to a dividend payment. Cash flow provided by financing activities in 2023 was $0.2 million.

Our principal liquidity requirement is expected to be for working capital and capital expenditures, as well as acquisitions. We anticipate funding these cash requirements and capital
expenditures through a combination of cash flow from operations and existing balances of cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits.We anticipate that our existing capital resources and cash
flows from operations will be adequate to satisfy our liquidity requirements for at least the next 12 months. If available liquidity is not sufficient to meet our operating obligations as they come due,
our plans include pursuing alternative financing arrangements or reducing expenditures as necessary to meet our cash requirements.

Effective Corporate Tax Rate

Camtek’s production facility in Israel has been granted “Approved Enterprise” status under the Investment Law (as defined in Item 10.E — “Taxation — Israeli Taxation - Tax Benefits
Under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959 below). We participate in the Alternative Benefits Program and, accordingly, income from our Approved Enterprise will be
tax exempt for a period of 10 years, commencing on the first year in which the Approved Enterprise first generates taxable income, due to the fact that we operate in Zone ”A” in Israel.

On April 1, 2005, an amendment to the Investment Law came into effect (the “Amendment”) and significantly changed the provisions of the Investment Law. The Amendment limits the
scope of an enterprise which may be approved by the Investment Center by setting criteria for the approval of a facility as a “Beneficiary Enterprise”; such criteria generally require that at least 25%
of the Beneficiary Enterprise’s income will be derived from export. Additionally, the Amendment enacted major changes in the manner in which tax benefits are awarded under the Investment Law
so that companies no longer require Investment Center approval in order to qualify for tax benefits.

In addition, the Amendment provides that terms and benefits included in any certificate of approval issued prior to December 31, 2004, will remain subject to the provisions of the
Investment Law as they were on the date of such prior approval. Therefore, our existing Approved Enterprise will generally not be subject to the provisions of the Amendment. As a result of the

Amendment, tax-exempt income generated under the provisions of the new law, as part of a new Beneficiary Enterprise, will subject us to taxes upon distribution or liquidation.

Camtek has been granted the status of Approved Enterprise, under the Investment Law, for investment programs for the periods which ended in 2007 and 2010, and the status of Beneficiary
Enterprise according to the Amendment, for a period which ended in 2014. In addition, Camtek elected 2010 as the year of election for a period which ended in 2021.

On December 29, 2010, the Investment Law was amended to significantly revise the tax incentive regime in Israel commencing on January 1, 2011. For more information, see Item 10.E —
“Taxation — Israeli Taxation — Tax Benefits Under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959 below.
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During the years 1998-2006 the company was subject to tax in accordance with the Approved and Beneficiary Enterprise under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments. As
such, the Company has income that was exempt from tax. Distribution of dividend from the exempt income requires the Company to pay income tax on the amount of the dividend distributed at the
tax rate that would have been applicable to it in the year the income was produced if it had not been exempt from tax. In February 2022, the Company, in a settlement with the Israeli Tax
Authorities, elected to take advantage of the temporary rule of 2022 in Israel and pay a reduced tax rate on its historical exempt earnings to allow the Company to distribute dividends from these
earnings in the future with no additional corporate tax liability. The Company’s Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2021, included a one-time tax expense of $5,315, as a result of
this settlement.

Foreign Currency Fluctuation

See Item 3.D — “Risk Factors — Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Our Markets — Fluctuations in currency exchange rates may result in additional expenses being recorded or
in the prices of our products becoming less competitive and thus may have negative impact on our profitability” above.

C. Research and Development, Patents and Licenses.

We believe that intensive R&D is essential to our business. We devote substantial R&D resources to developing new products and to improving our existing products to meet our customers’
evolving needs. We have dedicated teams with expertise in image processing software and algorithms, electronic hardware, electro-optics, physics, mechanics and systems design.

Our R&D efforts are primarily focused on:

« improving our defect detection capabilities while reducing the number of false alarms, simplifying operation and reducing the level of user expertise required to realize the benefits of
our systems;

* increasing the throughput of our Inspection and Metrology systems;
«  providing unique technological solutions to our customers; and
« adding capabilities to expand our market segments.

In addition, we are focusing our efforts on leveraging our core technologies, expertise and experience into continually enhancing the value to the user and the return on investment from our
products. We believe that our internal multi-disciplinary expertise will enable us to maintain and enhance our technological edge.

As of December 31, 2024, we had 174 employees engaged in R&D, 153 of whom are based in our headquarters in Israel and 24 in our facilities in Germany. We also use subcontractors for
the development of some of the hardware components of our systems. Our R&D expenses were $38.3 million and $31.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively,
representing 8.9% and 10.0% of the total revenues for the years then ended.

‘We will continue to devote our R&D resources to maintaining and extending our technology leadership position.

Our R&D costs are expensed as incurred.

In general, we rely on a combination of our copyrights, trade secrets, patents, trademarks and non-disclosure agreements to protect our proprietary know-how and intellectual property. We
also enter into confidentiality agreements with our employees and with all of the subcontractors who develop and manufacture components for use in our products. We also employ specialists whose

main role is to maintain and protect our intellectual property from both professional and legal perspectives. We cannot be certain that actions we take to protect our proprietary rights will be adequate
nor can we be certain that we will be able to deter reverse engineering or that there will not be independent third-party development of our technology.
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We have 140 issued and applied-for patents worldwide, of which 98 are registered patents and 6 U.S. provisional applications. These patents relate to our proprietary technology and know-
how developed for Inspection and Metrology and Functional Inkjet Technology tools. We also have one registered trademark in each of the U.S., Israel, Singapore and Japan.

D. Trend Information

The OECD has forecasted the world GDP to grow by 3.3% in 2025 See "Item 3D. Risk Factors" above. The semiconductor industry will probably be influenced by weakness or
uncertainties in global economic conditions. According to SEMI organization, the global total semiconductor equipment sales forecast to reach a record of $139 billion in 2026. Wafer Fab
Equipment segment sales are projected to expand 6.8% in 2025.. See "Item 3D. Risk Factors - Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Our Markets — Our business could be materially disrupted
by negative effects on the semicond industry, includii
specific trend information regarding the markets in which we operate see Item 4.B - “Business Overview - Our Markets” above.

g as a result of ec ic, political, legal, regulatory and other changes, in the global or local markets in which we operate.” For

E. Critical Accounting Estimates

See Item 5.A “Operating Results — Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.”
Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees
A. Directors and Senior Management

The following table lists the name, age and position of each of our current directors and senior management:

Name Age Title

Rafi Amit 76 Director and Chief Executive Officer
Moty Ben-Arie 70 Director, Chairman of the Board of Directors
Orit Stav 54 Director

Yotam Stern 72 Director

Leo Huang 71 Director

1-Shih Tseng 63 Director

Yael Andorn 54 Director*

Yosi Shacham-Diamand 71 Director*

Moshe Eisenberg 58 Chief Financial Officer

Ramy Langer 71 Chief Operating Officer

Orit Geva Dvash 53 Vice President - Human Resources

* Ms. Yael Andorn and Prof. Yosi Shacham-Diamand serve as our external directors (as such term is defined under the Companies Law) since October 2018.
Set forth below is a biographical summary of each of the above-named directors and senior management.

Rafi Amit has served as our Chief Executive Officer since January 2014, and previously as our Chairman of the Board of Directors from the 2019 AGM until December 31, 2022. Between
2010 and March 2017, Mr. Amit also served as our Active Chairman of the Board of Directors. Previously, Mr. Amit served as our Chief Executive Officer from January 1998 until August 2010 and
as Chairman of the Board of Directors from 1987 until April 2009. Since 1981, Mr. Amit has also served as the President and director of Priortech and has been the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Priortech since 1988 until February 2025. From 1981 until 2004, Mr. Amit served as Priortech’s Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Amit holds a B.Sc. in Industrial Engineering and
Management from Technion - Israel Institute of Technology.

Moty Ben-Arie serves as our Chairman of the Board since January 1, 2023. From March 2017 until the 2019 AGM, Mr. Ben-Arie also served as our Chairman of the Board of Directors.
Mr. Ben-Arie is the co-founder and serves as the Chairman of the board of directors of Invisicare Ltd. Mr. Ben-Arie has served as a consultant to entrepreneurs and investors since 2014. Previously,
Mr. Ben-Arie served as the CEO of Sital Technology from 2012 until 2014. From 2006 until 2011, Mr. Ben-Arie also served as a managing partner of Vertex Ventures, where he focused on
investments in Israeli-related hi-tech companies and evaluation of companies in the field of telecommunication, IT, test equipment, medical equipment and multidisciplinary systems. During these
years, Mr. Ben-Arie served as a member of the fund investment committee, managed investments in several companies and served as a board member in companies in their early stages, including
Color Chip Inc., Multiphi, Expand Networks, Comability and Ethos Networks. From 2000 until 2006, Mr. Ben-Arie also served as a partner of Walden Israel Ventures, where he focused on
investments in Israeli-related hi-tech companies. During these years, Mr. Ben-Arie managed investments in several companies and served as a board member in companies from early stage,
including Color Chip Inc. and Passave. From 1998 until 2000, Mr. Ben-Arie served as a director in Radcom Ltd., as a consultant in Walden Israel, and financed seed phases for new startups. From
1991 until 1998, Mr. Ben-Arie served as the co-founder and CEO of Radcom Ltd., Israel. From 1978 until 1982, Mr. Ben-Arie served as an electronic engineer and a project manager in Elisra Ltd.
Mr. Ben-Arie holds an MBA from Tel Aviv University, and a B.Sc. in Electrical Engineering from the Technion - Israel Institute of Technology.
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Orit Stav has served on our Board of Directors since September 24, 2020. Ms. Stav is an experienced investment manager with 20 years of experience in the field of Venture Capital &
Private Equity, as well as in the technology sector. Ms. Stav is a co-founder and serves as a managing partner at Israel Innovation Partners, a business advisory firm that specializes in building
business relationship between global companies and Israeli technology start-ups. Currently, Ms. Stav serves as a board member in Menora Mivtachim Holdings Ltd., Doral Group Renewable Energy
Resources Ltd., Innoviz Technologies Ltd., IBI — Underwriting & Issuing Ltd., EFI Capital Real Estate Ltd. From 2014 until 2015, Ms. Stav served as a managing partner of EVA Ventures venture
capital. From 2010 until 2012, Ms. Stav served as a country manager in Wimdu GmbH, an international internet company. From 2006 until 2009 she served as an investment manager in Siemens
Venture Capital, and from 1998 until 2005 served as an investment partner in Platinum Neurone Ventures, PNV, an Israeli venture capital fund. Ms. Stav holds an MBA from the University of
Hertsfordshire, U.K., and a B.A. in Economies and Management from Tel Aviv University.

Yotam Stern has served on our Board of Directors since 1987. From May 2009 until August 2010, Mr. Stern served as the Chairman of the Board of Directors and from 2001 until 2012,
Mr. Stern served as our Executive Vice President, Business & Strategy. From 1998 until 2001, Mr. Stern served as our Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Stern served in the past as the Chief Financial
Officer of Priortech and has been serving as a director of Priortech since 1985 and as its Chief Executive Officer since 2004. He holds a B.A. in Economics from Hebrew University of Jerusalem.

Leo Huang has served on our Board of Directors as a representative of Chroma since June 3, 2019. Mr. Huang co-founded Chroma in 1984 and has been serving as chairman of the board of
directors of Chroma since October 23, 1984. Mr. Huang was the QA Engineer of TIMEX Corp. from 1975 to 1977 and served as the Sales Manager of Philips Electronics Industries (Taiwan) Ltd.
from 1978 to 1984. Mr. Huang holds a bachelor’s degree in Electronics Engineering from National Chiao Tung University in 1973.

1-Shih Tseng has served on our Board of Directors as a representative of Chroma since June 3, 2019. Mr. Tseng joined Chroma in 1998, serving as a director since June 6, 2012, and as
Business Unit President of Chroma since July 1, 2007. Mr. Tseng was a Research Assistant at Pennsylvania State University from 1986 to 1992 and served as the Project Manager of Institute for
Information Industry from 1992 to 1998. Mr. Tseng received his PhD degree in Mechanical Engineering from Pennsylvania State University in 1992.

Yael Andorn has served on our Board of Directors since October 3, 2018, and she is currently the Chairperson of our Audit Committee. Ms. Andorn is the founder and CEO of CapitalA,
and serves on the Boards of Directors of Israeli public companies such as EI-Al Airlines and Castro. Ms. Andorn previously served on private and public boards, including Midroog-Moody’s Rating,
Oil Refineries (Bazan), Retalix, The National Lottery, Clal Health Insurance and Clal Credit Insurance, and as head of the Investment Committee of the Teacher’s Saving Fund. Ms. Andorn served
as director general of Israel’s Ministry of Finance between 2013 and 2015 and as Partner at Viola Credit between 2012 and 2013. Between 2005 and 2011, Ms. Andorn served as CEO at Amitim and
also served on its investment committee. Ms. Andorn held several positions at Israel’s Ministry of Finance Budget Department, Bank of Israel and IDF 8200 Intelligence Unit. Ms. Andorn holds a
Bachelor of Economics and a Master in Business Administration from the Hebrew University of Jerusalem.
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Yosi Shacham-Diamand has served on our Board of Directors since October 3, 2018. Since 2001, Prof. Shacham-Diamand serves as The Bernard L. Schwartz Academic Chair for nano
scale information technologies in the Department of Electrical Engineering - Physical Electronics, and in the Department of Material Science and Technology, Faculty of Engineering, Tel Aviv
University. Prof. Shacham-Diamand currently serves on the advisory board of CartaSense Ltd. and SolChip Ltd., and previously served as consultant to numerous manufacturing companies such as:
Zoran Inc., Intel Inc., Applied Materials Inc., Nova Instruments Inc., as well as to numerous investment and holding companies in Israel and abroad. Prof. Shacham-Diamand previously served on
the board of directors of PCB Ltd. (today, Priortech Ltd.) and “RAMOT” by Tel Aviv University. He is a visiting professor at Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan (Since 2004) and a visiting professor
at the Department of Electronics and Telecommunication, The Politecnico di Torino, Torino, Italy (Since 2018), and serves as a distinguished international Chair Professor in Feng Chia University,
Taichung, Taiwan (since 2012). Since 2014, Prof Shacham-Diamand serves as a member of the MAGNET committee, Ministry of Trade and Industry. Prof. Shacham-Diamand holds a D.Sc. EE,
M.Sc. EE, and B.Sc. EE (Summa-cum Laude), all from the Technion- Israel Institute of Technology, Haifa, Israel, and also completed postdoctoral research at U.C. Berkeley, CA, USA.

Moshe Eisenberg has served as our Chief Financial Officer since November 2011. From 2010 to 2011, Mr. Eisenberg served as the Chief Financial Officer of Exlibris, a global provider of
library automation solution for the academic market. Prior to that, from 2005 to 2009, Mr. Eisenberg served as the Chief Financial Officer of Scopus Video Networks Ltd., a leading provider of
digital compression, decoding & video processing equipment. Prior to that, Mr. Eisenberg held various professional and managerial positions at Gilat Satellite Networks Ltd. and its wholly owned
U.S. subsidiary, Spacenet Inc. Mr. Eisenberg holds an MBA from Tel Aviv University and a B.Sc. in Agricultural Economics from the Hebrew University of Jerusalem.

Ramy Langer has served as our Chief Operating Officer since November 2017, following the consummation of the PCB Sale Transaction. Prior to his appointment as Chief Operating
Officer he served as Vice President - Semiconductors Division from February 2014. From 2007 until 2012, Mr. Langer served as the Chief Executive Officer (and co-founder) of Infinite Memory
Ltd., a fab-less developer of products based on Saifun Semiconductors Ltd.’s technology. From 2005 until 2007, Mr. Langer served as Vice President- Business Development of Saifun, where he
marketed non-volatile memory IP. From 2002 until 2005, Mr. Langer served as Managing Director of Infineon Flash, a fab-less developer of products based on Saifun’s technology using Infineon
DRAM process. From 1999 until 2002, Mr. Langer served as Vice President- Marketing & Sales of Tower Semiconductors Ltd., manufacturer of integrated circuits. Prior to that, Mr. Langer held
various executive positions at Kulicke and Soffa Industries, Inc., a leading global semiconductor assembly equipment manufacturer. Mr. Langer holds a B.Sc. in Electronic Engineering from the
Technion — Israel Institute of Technology and a M.Sc. in Electronic Engineering from Drexel University, Philadelphia.

Orit Geva Dvash has served as our VP Human Resources (“HR”) since November 2017. Previously, since 2014, Ms. Geva Dvash served as our HR Director. From 2008 to 2014, Ms. Geva
Dvash served as our HR manager. From 2002 to 2008, Ms. Geva Dvash served at various HR positions at IBM research lab. Ms. Geva Dvash holds a Masters in political science from Haifa
University and B.A. in political science and English literature from Haifa University.

Arrangements Involving Directors and Senior Management

In accordance with the terms of the Chroma Voting Agreement, at the 2019 AGM Mr. Leo Huang and Mr. I-Shih Tseng were appointed for service as our directors (see Item 4.A. — “History
and Develoy of the Company”).

Except for the Chroma Voting Agreement, there are no arrangements or understandings of which we are aware relating to the election of our directors or the appointment of executive
officers in our Company. In addition, there are no family relationships among any of the individuals listed in this Section A (Directors and Senior Management).

B. Compensation
Aggregate Executive Compensation
The aggregate remuneration paid by us for the year ended December 31, 2024, to all persons listed in Section A (Directors and Senior Management) above, was approximately $4.9 million.

This sum includes $0.1 million paid to provide pension, retirement or similar benefits, amounts expended by us for automobiles made available to all our executive officers, and other fringe benefits
commonly reimbursed or paid by companies in Israel.
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We have a performance-based bonus plan which includes our executive officers. The plan is based on our overall performance, and individual performance. Up to 50% of the performance
objectives of our executive officers may be qualitative, provided that with respect to our Chief Executive Officer such portion shall not exceed three monthly base salaries. The measurable
performance objectives can change year over year, and are a combination of financial parameters, such as revenues, booking, operating or net income and collection. The plan for our executive
officers is reviewed and approved annually by our Audit Committee (in its capacity as our Compensation Committee) and Board of Directors, as is any bonus payment to an executive officer made
under such plan (provided that with respect to the bonus plan for our CEO we also obtain shareholder approval — see in Item 6.B - “Compensation — Employment Agreements” below).

We compensate our independent directors for serving on our board of directors by payment of cash fees in accordance with regulations promulgated under the Companies Law concerning
the remuneration of external directors (the “Remuneration Regulations™), reimbursement for expenses and the award of share options or RSUs. Messrs. Rafi Amit and Yotam Stern, as well as
Chroma’s representatives on our Board, do not receive compensation for their service as our directors. See Item 6.C “Board Practices - Remuneration of Directors” below.

Individual Compensation of Covered Office Holders

The table below presents the compensation granted to our five most highly compensated Office Holders (as such term is defined in the Companies Law; see Item 6.C - “Board Practices —
External Directors — Qualification” below) during or with respect to the year ended December 31, 2024. We refer to the five individuals for whom disclosure is provided herein as our “Covered
Office Holders”. All amounts specified below are in terms of cost to the Company, as recorded in our financial statements.

Name — and  Principall, . oo (USD) @) Bonus (USD) (3) Equity-Based Compensation (USD)| (o ysp) (5) Total (USD)
Position (1) 4)

Rafi Amit — Chief Executive 375,760 362,887 951,346 164,960 1,854,953
Oftficer

Ramy Langer - Chief 351,891 216,243 565,960 1,134,094
Operating Officer

Moshe Eisenberg - Chief 315,960 180,202 439,667 935,829
Financial Officer

Orit Geva-Dvash - Vice 196,716 65,718 234,734 497,168
President, Human Resources

Yael Andorn — Director, 69,199 54,332 123,531
Chairwoman of the Audit

Committee

Total 1,240,327 825,050 2,260,906 219,292 4,545,575
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a

=

All Covered Office Holders are employed on a full-time (100%) basis, except for Mr. Amit who dedicates 90% of his time to his role as our Chief Executive Officer and except for Ms. Yael
Andorn who serves as an external director in the Company’s Board of Directors.

(2) Salary cost includes the Covered Office Holder’s gross salary plus payment of social benefits made by the Company on behalf of such Covered Office Holder. Such benefits may include, to
the extent applicable to the Covered Office Holder, payment, contributions and/or allocations for saving funds (e.g. Managers’ Life Insurance Policy), education funds (referred to in
Hebrew as “Keren Hishtalmut™), pension, severance, risk insurances (e.g. life, or work disability insurance), payments for social security and tax gross-up payments, vacation, car, medical
insurance and benefits, phone, convalescence or recreation pay, and other benefits and perquisites consistent with the Company’s policies.

(€]

=

Represents annual bonuses paid in accordance with the Covered Office Holder’s performance of targets as set forth in his or her bonus plan and approved by the Company’s Audit
Committee and Board of Directors and/ or any special one-time bonuses as approved by the Company’s Audit Committee and Board of Directors in accordance with the Company’s
Compensation Policy.

4

=

Represents the equity-based compensation expenses recorded in the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024, for each Covered Office Holder,
based on the options” fair value on the grant date, calculated in accordance with accounting guidance for equity-based compensation.

s

=

Includes relocation expenses which may consist of, to the extent applicable to the Covered Office Holder: housing, schooling, car, medical insurance and travel expenses for the Covered
Office Holder and family members residing with him abroad.

Employment Agreements

‘We maintain written employment agreements with our employees, including all of our executive officers, that contain customary provisions, including non-compete and confidentiality
agreements.

With respect to our Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Amit spends 90% of his time in service as our CEO, and under his employment agreement his compensation includes: (i) an annual base
salary ; (ii) an annual performance-based bonus; and (iii) an annual grant of equity. At our 2024 annual general meeting of shareholders, held on September 25, 2024 (the “2024 AGM”), our
shareholders approved an increase in Mr. Amit’s annual base salary, effective as of January 2024 to US$375,760 (the “CEO Base Salary”). In addition, our shareholders approved a three-year cash
bonus plan for Mr. Amit, for the years 2024-2026 (inclusive) pursuant to which Mr. Amit’s annual on target cash bonus for each of these years shall be equal to not more than the CEO Base Salary,
conditioned upon his performance in each of these years measured against criteria pre-determined by our Compensation Committee and Board of Directors, with respect to the applicable year (the
“CEO Cash Bonus Plan”).

According to the annual equity plan, Mr. Amit’s annual grant of equity for each of these three years shall not exceed 400% of the CEO Base Salary, and at least 50% of Mr. Amit’s annual
grant of equity shall be subject to performance-based vesting (and with respect to the 2024 annual equity grant, 40%).

Further, Mr. Amit’s employment agreement contains confidentiality provisions for the term of Mr. Amit’s service and thereafter, and non-compete provisions for the term of Mr. Amit’s
service and for a six-month period after the termination of his service. It provides that all intellectual property developed by Mr. Amit, or in which he took part, during or in connection with his
services, is our sole property. The employment agreement may be terminated by the Company at any time, by written notice of termination delivered to Mr. Amit six months in advance. We may,
however, immediately terminate the employment of Mr. Amit in various circumstances, including in the case of a breach of fiduciary duty.

As Mr. Amit may be deemed, together with the Priortech Founding Members and Chroma, to control the Company (see Item 3.D - “Risk Factors- Our principal shareholders, Priortech
and Chroma, hold a controlling interest in us and will be able to exercise their control in ways that may be adverse to your interests. Our relationship with Priortech and Chroma may give rise
to a conflict of interests” above), in accordance with the Companies Law, his terms of employment must be approved by the Company’s sharcholders at least once every three years, and,
accordingly, were last re-approved at the 2024 AGM. Mr. Amit does not receive any compensation in consideration for his service as a member of our Board of Directors.
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C. Board Practices
Corporate Governance Practices

We are incorporated in Israel and therefore are subject to various corporate governance practices under the Companies Law, relating to matters such as external directors, audit and
compensation committees, internal auditor and approvals of interested parties transactions. These matters are in addition to the Nasdaq Rules and other relevant provisions of U.S. securities laws.
Under applicable Nasdaq Rules, a foreign private issuer such as us may generally follow its home country rules of corporate governance in lieu of comparable Nasdaq Rules, except for certain
matters such as composition and responsibilities of the audit committee and the independence of its members. See Item 3.D — “Risk Factors - Being a foreign private issuer exempts us from certain
SEC Requirements and Nasdaq Rules, which may result in less protection that is afforded to investors under rules applicable to domestic issuers” above. For information regarding home country
rules followed by us see Item 16G —Corporate Governance” below.

General Board Practices

Our Articles provide that our Board of Directors shall consist of not less than five and not more than ten directors, including the external directors. Currently, our board consists of eight
members. According to the Chroma Voting Agreement (see Item 4.A. — “History and Develop t of the Company”), Chroma is entitled to nominate two members, and Priortech is entitled to
nominate three members, to the Company’s Board. Chroma’s current nominees are Leo Huang and I-Shih Tseng, and Priortech’s nominees are Rafi Amit and Yotam Stern. At the 2024 AGM, each
of Messrs. Rafi Amit, Yotam Stern, Moty Ben-Arie, Leo Huang, I-Shih Tseng and Orit Stav were re-appointed for service as our directors. All directors were appointed following the
recommendation by the Company’s Nomination Committee, and each of our directors (other than the external directors) is serving an approximately one-year term, which is due to expire at our 2025
annual general meeting of shareholders (the “2025 AGM”). In addition, following the recommendation of our Nomination Committee and Board of Directors, our shareholders approved, at our 2024

AGM, the re-appointment of Ms. Yael Andorn and Prof. Yosi Shacham-Diamand as external directors in accordance with the Companies Law, for an additional term of three years each.

In February 2025, the Board of Directors nominated Lior Aviram as Executive Chairman of the Board, effective June 1, 2025, subject to shareholder approval at the 2025 AGM. Upon Mr.
Aviram’s appointment, the board will be increased to nine members. Following Mr. Aviram’s appointment, Mr. Ben-Arie is expected to remain a non-executive member of our Board, subject to re-
election at the 2025 AGM.

In accordance with the Companies Law, our Board of Directors retains all the powers in managing our Company that are not specifically granted to the shareholders. For example, the Board
may make decisions to borrow money for the Company, and may set aside reserves out of our profits, for whatever purposes it sees fit.

The Board of Directors may pass a resolution when a quorum is present (in person or via telecommunication), and by a vote of at least a majority of the directors present when the resolution
is put to vote. A quorum is defined as at least a majority of the directors then in office who are lawfully entitled to participate in the meeting but not less than two directors. The Chairman of the
Board is elected and removed by the Board members. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors are recorded and kept at our offices. In addition, the Board of Directors may pass a resolution
by way of a written resolution signed by all members of our Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, appoint a committee of the Board and delegate to such committee all or any of the powers of the Board, as it
deems appropriate. Notwithstanding the foregoing and subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Board may, at any time, amend, restate or cancel the delegation of any of its powers to any
of its committees. Our Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee, also serving as a Compensation Committee, and a Nomination Committee. For information regarding the duties,
responsibilities and composition of each of our committees, see Item 6.C — “Board Practices - Committees of the Board of Directors” below.

Our Articles provide that any director may appoint as an alternate director, by written notice to us or to the Chairman of the Board, any individual who is qualified to serve as director and

who is not then serving as a director or alternate director for any other director. An alternate director has all of the rights and obligations of a director, excluding the right to appoint an alternate for
himself. Currently no alternate directors serve on our board.
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Election, Terms and SKills of Directors

Directors, other than external directors, are elected by a resolution of the shareholders at the annual general meeting and serve until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
shareholders, unless earlier terminated in the event of such director’s death, resignation, bankruptcy, incapacity or removal by a resolution of the shareholders.

According to the Companies Law, a person who does not possess the skills required and the ability to devote the appropriate time to the performance of the office of director in a company,
taking into consideration, among other things, the special requirements and size of that company, shall neither be appointed as a director nor serve as a director in a public company. A public
company shall not convene a general meeting the agenda of which includes the appointment of a director, and a director shall not be appointed, unless the candidate has submitted a declaration that
he or she possesses the skills required and the ability to devote the appropriate time to the performance of the office of director in the company, that sets forth the aforementioned skills and further
states that the limitations set forth in the Companies Law regarding the appointment of a director do not apply in respect of such candidate.

A director who ceases to possess any qualification required under the Companies Law for holding the office of director or who becomes subject to any ground for termination of his/her
office must inform the company immediately and his/her office shall terminate upon such notice.

Independent Directors

Under the Nasdaq Rules, a majority of our directors is required to be independent. The independence criteria under the Nasdaq Rules excludes, among others, any person who is: (i) a
current or former (at any time during the past three years) employee of a company or its affiliates; or (ii) an immediate family member of an executive officer (at any time during the past three years)
of a company or its affiliates.

In addition, under the Companies Law, an “independent director” is either an external director or a director appointed or classified as such who meets the same non-affiliation criteria as an
external director, as determined by the company’s audit committee, and who has not served as a director of the company for more than nine consecutive years. For these purposes, ceasing to serve as
a director for a period of two years or less would not be deemed to sever the consecutive nature of such director’s service. However, as our shares are listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market, we
may also, in accordance with the Companies Regulations (Alleviation for Public Companies whose shares are Traded on the Stock Exchange Outside of Israel), 2000 (the “Alleviation
Regulations™), classify directors who qualify as independent directors under the relevant non-Israeli rules, as “independent directors” under the Companies Law. In addition, the Alleviation
Regulations provide that “independent directors” may be elected for additional terms that do not exceed three years each, beyond the nine consecutive years permitted under the Companies Law,
provided that, if the director is being re-elected for an additional term or terms beyond the nine consecutive years, the company’s audit committee, followed by the board of directors, have approved
that considering the expertise and special contribution of the director to the work of the board of directors and its committees, the appointment for an additional term of service is beneficial to the
company.

Seven of our eight members of the Board - Mses. Yael Andorn and Orit Stav and Messrs. Yotam Stern, I -Shih Tseng, Leo Huang, Yosi Shacham-Diamand and Moty Ben Arie - qualify as
independent directors under the Nasdaq Rules. Four of our eight members of the Board - Mses. Yael Andorn and Orit Stav and Messrs. Yosi Shacham-Diamand and Moty Ben Arie - qualify as
independent directors under the Companies Law.

External Directors

Under the Companies Law, we are required to appoint at least two external directors. Each committee of a company’s board of directors which is authorized to exercise the board of
directors’ authorities is required to include at least one external director, except for the audit committee and the compensation committee, which are required to include all of the external directors.
The Alleviation Regulations allow companies whose shares are traded on Nasdaq and which do not have a controlling shareholder (within the meaning of the Companies Law) to exempt themselves
from the requirement to have external directors on their board of directors and from related requirements imposed by the Companies Law concerning the composition of the audit and compensation
committees, provided that they continue to comply with the relevant U.S. securities laws and the Nasdaq Rules applicable to U.S. domestic issuers, regarding the independence of the board of
directors and the composition of the audit and compensation committees. Currently, the relief provided in the Alleviation Regulations does not apply to us.
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Qualification. To qualify as an external director, an individual or his or her relative, partner, employer, any person to whom such person is directly or indirectly subject to, or any entity
under his or her control may not have, as of the date of appointment, or may not have had during the previous two years, any affiliation with the company, any entity controlling the company on the
date of the appointment or with any entity controlled, at the date of the appointment or during the previous two years, by the company or by its controlling shareholder (and in a company that does
not have a shareholder or an affiliated group of shareholders holding 25% or more of the company’s voting rights, such person may not have any affiliation with any person who, at the time of
appointment, is the chairman, the chief executive officer, the chief financial officer or a 5% shareholder of the company). In general, the term “affiliation” includes: an employment relationship, a
business or professional relationship maintained on a regular basis, control and service as an Office Holder; “Control” is defined in the Israeli Securities Law as the ability to direct the actions of a
company but excluding a power that is solely derived from a position as a director of the company or any other position with the company; a person who is holding 50% or more of the “controlling
power” in the company — voting rights or the right to appoint a director or a general manager — is automatically considered to possess control. The Companies Law defines the term “Office Holder”
of a company to include a director, the chief executive officer, an executive vice president, a vice president, any other person fulfilling or assuming any of the foregoing positions without regard to
such person’s title, and any manager who is directly subordinated to the chief executive officer.

In addition, no person can serve as an external director if the person’s position or other business creates, or may create conflicts of interest with the person’s responsibilities as an external
director or may otherwise interfere with the person’s ability to serve as an external director. Until the lapse of two years from termination of office, a company or its controlling shareholder may not

give any direct or indirect benefit to a former external director.

Election and Term of External Directors. External directors are elected by a majority vote at a shareholders’ general meeting, provided that either:

* a majority of the shares voted at the meeting, which are not held by controlling shareholders or shareholders with personal interest in approving the appointment (excluding
personal interest not resulting from contacts with the controlling shareholder), not taking into account any abstentions, vote in favor of the election; or

« avote in which the total number of shares voting against the election of the external director, does not exceed two percent of the aggregate voting rights in the company.
In a company in which, at the date of appointment of an external director, all the directors are of the same gender, the external director to be appointed shall be of the other gender.

An external director can be removed from office only by: (i) the same majority of shareholders that is required to elect an external director; or (b) a court, and provided that either (a) the
external director ceases to meet the statutory qualifications with respect to his or her appointment, or (b) the external director violates his or her duty of loyalty to the company. The court may also
remove an external director from office if he or she is unable to perform his or her duties on a regular basis.

An external director who ceases to possess any qualification required under the Companies Law for holding the office of an external director must inform the company immediately and his/
her office shall terminate upon such notice.

In general, external directors serve a three-year term, which may then be extended for two additional three-year periods. Thereafter, in accordance with regulations promulgated under the
Companies Law, an external director may be appointed for additional terms of service of not more than three years each provided that: (a) a company’s audit committee, followed by the board of
directors, have approved that considering the expertise and special contribution of the external director to the work of the board of directors and its committees, the appointment for an additional
term of service is beneficial to the company; (b) the appointment for an additional term of service is approved in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Law; and (c) the prior periods of
service of such external director, as well as the reasoning of the audit committee and board of directors for the approval of the extension of the term of service, were presented to the shareholders
prior to their approval.
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Re-election of an external director may be effected through one of the following mechanisms:
1. ashareholder holding one percent or more of a company’s voting rights proposed the re-election of the nominee;

2. the board of directors proposed the re-election of the nominee and the election was approved by the shareholders by the majority required to appoint external directors for their
initial term; or

3. the external director who is up for renewal has proposed himself or herself for re-election.

With respect to mechanisms 1 and 3 above, the re-election is required to fulfill all of the following terms: (i) to be approved by a majority of the votes cast by the shareholders of the
Company, excluding the votes of controlling shareholders and shareholders who have a personal interest in approving such nomination resulting from their relations with the controlling shareholders;
(ii) to include votes cast in favor of the re-election by such non-excluded shareholders constituting more than two percent of the voting rights in the Company; and (iii) the external director is not a
related or competing shareholder or a relative of such a related or competing shareholder, at the time of the appointment, and does not and did not have any affiliation with a related or competing
shareholder, at the time of the appointment or within the two years preceding the appointment. A “related or competing shareholder” is a shareholder proposing the re-appointment or a shareholder
holding 5% or more of the outstanding shares or voting rights of the company, provided that at the time of the re-appointment, such shareholder, a controlling shareholder thereof or a company
controlled by such shareholder or by a controlling shareholder thereof, have business relationships with the Company or are competitors of the Company.

Financial and Accounting Expertise. Pursuant to the Companies Law and regulations promulgated there under, (1) each external director must have either “accounting and financial
expertise” or “professional qualifications” and (2) at least one of the external directors must have “accounting and financial expertise”. A director with “accounting and financial expertise” is a
director whose education, experience and skills qualifies him or her to be highly proficient in understanding business and accounting matters and to thoroughly understand the company’s financial
statements and to stimulate discussion regarding the manner in which financial data is presented. A director with “professional qualifications” is a person who meets any of the following criteria: (i)
has an academic degree in economics, business management, accounting, law, public administration; (ii) has a different academic degree or has completed higher education in an area relevant to the
company’s business or which is relevant to his or her position; or (iii) has at least five years’ experience in any of the following, or has a total of five years’ experience in at least two of the
following: (A) a senior position in the business management of a corporation with substantial business activities, (B) a senior public position or a senior position in the public service, or (C) a senior
position in the company’s main fields of business.

Compensation. An external director is entitled to compensation as provided in the Remuneration Regulations and is otherwise prohibited from receiving any other compensation, directly or
indirectly, from the Company. For more information, please see “Remuneration of Directors” below.

Our External Directors. Ms. Yael Andorn and Prof. Yosi Shacham-Diamand were re-appointed as our external directors at the 2024 AGM, for a third three-year-term which will expire on
September 19, 2027. Our Board of Directors has determined that Ms. Andorn has the “accounting and financial expertise” and that Mr. Shacham-Diamand has the “professional qualifications”
required by the Companies Law.

Remuneration of Directors

Generally, directors’ remuneration should be consistent with a company’s compensation policy for Office Holders (see “Compensation Policy” below) and requires the approval of the
compensation committee, the board of directors and the shareholders (in that order). Notwithstanding the above, in certain circumstances shareholder approval may be waived (see below) and, under
different circumstances, the compensation committee and the board of directors may approve an arrangement that deviates from the compensation policy, provided that such arrangement is approved
by a special majority of the company’s shareholders, including (i) at least a majority of the shareholders, present and voting (abstentions are disregarded), who are not controlling shareholders and
who do not have a personal interest in the matter, or (ii) the non-controlling shareholders and shareholders who do not have a personal interest in the matter who were present and voted against the
matter hold two percent or less of the voting power of the Company.
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According to the Remuneration Regulations, external directors are generally entitled to an annual fee, a participation fee for each meeting of the board of directors or any committee of the
board on which he or she serves as a member, and reimbursement of travel expenses for participation in a meeting which is held outside of the external director’s place of residence. The minimum,
fixed and maximum amounts of the annual and participation fees are set forth in the Remuneration Regulations, as supplemented by the Alleviation Regulations, based on the classification of the
company according to the amount of its capital. The candidate for service as external director must be notified by the company of his or her remuneration terms prior to his or her appointment and,
subject to certain exceptions, such remuneration will not be amended throughout the three-year period during which he or she is in office. A company may also compensate an external director in
shares or rights to purchase shares, other than convertible debentures which may be converted into shares, in addition to the annual and participation remuneration and the reimbursement of
expenses, subject to certain limitations set forth in the Remuneration Regulations.

According to regulations promulgated under the Companies Law with respect to relief in approval of certain related party transactions (the “Relief Regulations”), shareholders’ approval for
directors’ compensation and employment arrangements is not required if both the Compensation Committee and the board of directors resolve that either (i) the directors’ compensation and
employment arrangements are solely for the benefit of the company or (ii) the remuneration to be paid to any such director does not exceed the maximum amounts set forth in the Remuneration
Regulations. Further, according to the Relief Regulations, shareholders” approval for directors” compensation and employment arrangements is not required if (i) both the Compensation Committee
and the board of directors resolve that such terms (a) are not more beneficial than the former terms, or are essentially the same in their effect; and (b) are in line with the company’s compensation
policy; and (ii) such terms are brought for shareholder approval at the next general meeting of shareholders. Also, according to the Remuneration Regulations, shareholder approval may be waived if
the remuneration to be paid to the external directors is between the fixed and maximum amounts set forth in such regulations.

As consideration for their service as directors and their participation in each meeting of the Board or Board’s committees, we pay each of our external and independent directors (all Board
members except for Messrs. Amit, Stern, Huang and Tseng) a fixed annual fee, a fixed participation fee and reimbursement of expenses in the following amounts: NIS 145,770 (approximately
$40,379)) (based on the NIS/USD exchange ratio as published by the Bank of Israel on March 5, 2025 (the “Exchange Ratio”) as annual fee, NIS 4,380 (approximately $1,213 based on the
Exchange Ratio) as in-person participation fee, NIS 2,628 (approximately $728 based on the Exchange Ratio) for conference call participation and NIS 2,190(approximately $607 based on the
Exchange Ratio ) for each written resolutions. As these amounts are in the range between the fixed amounts of the annual and participation fees, as set forth in the Remuneration Regulations, and the
maximum amounts of such fees as set forth in the Alleviation Regulations, they are exempt from shareholder approval, in accordance with the Relief Regulations. The above-mentioned cash
remuneration is in line with the Company’s Executives & Directors Compensation Policy (the “Compensation Policy”), according to which each of the Company’s non-executive (and non-
controlling) directors is entitled to receive cash fees which include annual and participation fees. Messrs. Amit, Stern, Huang and Tseng do not receive any payment with respect to their service as
our directors.

At the 2024 AGM, our shareholders approved an annual equity award mechanism for our directors, pursuant to which, each of our directors who are not classified as controlling
shareholders (including our external directors but excluding Mr. Tseng, who himself is not a controlling shareholder, but serves as our director pursuant to the Voting Agreement and therefore does
not receive any compensation for such service), either currently serving or as shall be appointed from time to time (“Non-Controlling Directors™), will be entitled to a fixed annual equity award,
comprised of an equal mix between options to purchase Shares at an exercise price equal to the average closing price per Share as quoted on the Nasdaq Stock Market during the 30 consecutive
calendar days preceding the date of grant, and RSUs, bearing an annual value of $75,000 for our Non-Controlling Directors, and $100,000 for our Chairman (the “Annual Equity Award”).
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Audit Committee

SEC and Nasdaq Requirements. In accordance with the Exchange Act, rules of the SEC under the Exchange Act and Nasdaq Rules, we are required to have an audit committee consisting of
at least three directors, each of whom is (i) independent; (ii) does not receive any compensation from the Company (other than directors’ fees); (iii) is not an affiliated person of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; (iv) has not participated in the preparation of the Company’s (or subsidiary’s) financial statements during the past three years; and (v) financially literate and one of whom has been
determined by the board to be the audit committee financial expert. The duties and responsibilities of the audit committee under the Nasdaq Rules include: (i) recommending the appointment of the
Company’s independent auditor to the board of directors, determining its compensation and overseeing the work performed by it; (ii) pre-approving all services of the independent auditor; (iii)
overseeing our accounting and financial reporting processes and the audits of our financial statements; and (iv) handling complaints relating to accounting, internal controls and auditing matters.

‘We have adopted an audit committee charter as required by the Nasdaq Rules.

Companies Law Requirements. Under the Companies Law, the board of directors of any Israeli company whose shares are publicly traded must appoint an audit committee, comprised of at
least three directors including all of the external directors. In addition, the majority of the members must meet certain independence criteria and may not include: (i) the chairman of the board; (ii)
any controlling shareholder or a relative thereof; (iii) any director employed by or providing services or a regular basis to the Company, a controlling shareholder or a company owned by a
controlling shareholder; or (iv) any director whose main income is provided by a controlling shareholder (the “Non-Permitted Members”). The chairman of such audit committee must be an
external director.

The duties and responsibilities of our audit committee under the Companies Law include (1) identification of irregularities and deficiencies in the management of our business, in
consultation with the internal auditor and our independent auditors, and suggesting appropriate courses of action to amend such irregularities; (2) reviewing and approval of certain transactions and
actions of the Company, including the approval of related party transactions, that require approval by the audit committee under the Companies Law; defining whether certain acts and transactions
that involve conflicts of interest are material or not and whether transactions that involve conflict of interests are material or not and whether transactions that involve interested parties are
extraordinary or not, and to approve such transactions; (3) determining with respect to transactions with controlling shareholders, even if such are not extraordinary transactions, a duty to conduct a
competitive process, under the supervision of the committee or under the supervision of whomever designated by the committee and according to standards determined by the committee, or
determining other proceedings, prior to entering into such transactions, all in accordance with the type of transaction; (4) determining the method of approval of transactions which are not
insignificant, including the types of transactions which shall require approval of the committee; (5) recommending the appointment of the internal auditor and its compensation to the board of
directors; (6) examining the performance of our internal auditor and whether he is provided with the required resources and tools necessary for him to fulfill his role, considering, among others, the
Company’s size and special needs; and (7) setting procedures for handling complaints made by Company’s employees in connection with management deficiencies and the protection to be provided
to such employees.

Non-Permitted Members shall not attend audit committee’s meetings or take part in its decisions, unless the chairman of the audit committee has determined that such person is required for
the presentation of a certain matter. Nevertheless, an employee who is not a controlling shareholder or a relative thereof may be present at the discussion part only, pursuant to the Committee’s
request, and the Company’s legal counsel and secretary, who are not controlling shareholders or relatives thereof, may be present during both discussion and decision making parts - pursuant to the
Committee’s request.

The quorum for discussions and decisions shall be the majority of the members, provided that the majority of the members present meet the independence criteria set forth in the Companies
Law and at least one of them is an external director.

Our Audit Committee. The members of our Audit Committee are Mses. Yael Andorn and Orit Stav, and Mr. Yosi Shacham-Diamand, all of whom are independent directors in accordance
with Nasdaq Rules and meet the independence criteria set forth in the Companies Law. Ms. Andorn is the Chairperson of our Audit Committee and qualifies as its audit committee financial expert.
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Compensation Committee

Nasdaq Requirements. Under Nasdaq Rules, the compensation payable to our executive officers must be determined or recommended to the board for determination either by a majority of
the independent directors on the board, in a vote in which only independent directors participate, or by a compensation committee comprised solely of independent directors, subject to certain
exceptions.

Companies Law Requirements. According to the Companies Law, the board of directors of any Israeli company whose shares are publicly traded, must appoint a compensation committee,
comprised of at least three directors, including all of the external directors which shall be the majority of its members and one thereof must serve as the chairman of the committee. The remaining
members of the committee must satisfy the criteria for remuneration applicable to the external directors and qualified to serve as members of the audit committee pursuant to Companies Law
requirements, as described above. However, an audit committee that satisfies the requirements of the Companies Law regarding the composition of a compensation committee may be authorized to
carry out all duties and responsibilities of the compensation committee.

Further, under the Companies Law, a compensation committee is responsible for: (i) providing the board of directors its recommendations with respect to the approval of the compensation
policy (see below - “Compensation Policy”) and any amendments and/or extensions thereto; (ii) periodically reviewing the implementation of the compensation policy and providing the board of
directors with recommendations with respect to any amendments or updates thereto; (iii) reviewing and resolving whether or not to approve arrangements with respect to the terms of office and
employment of Office Holders; and (iv) determining whether or not to exempt a transaction with a candidate for chief executive officer, who is not affiliated with the Company or its controlling
shareholder, from shareholder approval if subjection of such transaction to shareholder approval may prevent its conclusion, and provided that the terms approved are consistent with the
compensation policy.

The attendance and participation in meetings of the compensation committee are subject to the same limitations that apply to the Audit Committee. The quorum for discussions and
decisions shall be the majority of the members, provided that those members present are independent directors and at least one of them is an external director.

Our Compensation Committee. We follow the provisions of the Companies Law with respect to the composition and responsibilities of our Compensation Committee. As all of the members
of our Audit Committee meet the independence requirements for compensation committee members set forth in the Nasdaq Rule 5605(d)(2), as a foreign private issuer, we have elected, pursuant to
Nasdaq Rule 5615(a)(3), to follow Israeli practice, in lieu of compliance with the certain provisions of Nasdaq Rule 5605(d), which would require us to have a separate compensation committee.
Pursuant to the Companies Law, allowing an audit committee that satisfies the requirements of the Companies Law regarding the composition of a compensation committee, to carry out all duties
and responsibilities of the compensation committee, our Board of Directors has authorized our Audit Committee to carry out the duties and responsibilities of the compensation committee.

Nomination Committee

Nasdaq Requirements. The Nasdaq Rules require that director nominees be selected or recommended for the board’s selection either by a nomination committee composed solely of
independent directors or by a majority of independent directors, in a vote in which only independent directors participate, subject to certain exceptions.

Our Nomination Committee. In 2018, our Board of Directors appointed a Nomination Committee, comprised of our two external directors, Ms. Andorn and Mr. Shacham-Diamand, both of
whom qualify as independent under the Nasdaq rules. Consistent with the requirements of the Nasdaq Rules, our Nomination Committee is responsible for: (i) identifying potential new candidates
for service on the Company’s Board of Directors, taking into account, inter alia, the candidate’s applicable experience, expertise and/or familiarity with the Company’s field of business, as well as
the candidate’s ethical character, independent judgment and industry reputation; (ii) conducting appropriate inquiries into the backgrounds and qualifications of potential candidates for service as
directors; (iii) reviewing and resolving whether or not to approve arrangements with respect to such candidates; and (iv) recommending to the Board nominees for election (including re-election) to
the Company’s Board of Directors.
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Approval of Office Holders Terms of Employment

The terms of office and employment of Office Holders (other than directors and the chief executive officer) require the approval of the compensation committee and the board of directors,
provided such terms are in accordance with the company’s compensation policy. Shareholder approval is also required if the compensation of such officer is not in accordance with such policy.
However, in special circumstances the compensation committee and then the board of directors may nonetheless approve such compensation even if such compensation was not approved by the
shareholders, following a further discussion and for detailed reasoning.

The terms of office and employment of directors, the chief executive officer or controlling shareholders (or a relative thereof), regardless of whether or not such terms conform to the
company’s compensation policy, should be approved by the compensation committee, the board of directors and the shareholders, by a special majority, except for: (a) approval of terms of office and
employment of directors, which are consistent with the company’s compensation policy, and require shareholder approval by a regular majority; or (b) approval of terms of office and employment of
directors pursuant to certain reliefs provided for under the Remuneration Regulations and/or the Relief Regulations, with respect to which shareholder approval is waived. Shareholder special
majority should include (i) at least a majority of the shareholders who are not controlling shareholders and who do not have a personal interest in the matter, present and voting (abstentions are
disregarded), or (ii) the non-controlling shareholders and shareholders who do not have a personal interest in the matter who were present and voted against the matter hold two percent or less of the
voting power of the company (“Special Majority”). Notwithstanding the above, in special circumstances the compensation committee and then the board of directors may nonetheless approve
compensation for the chief executive officer, even if such compensation was not approved by the shareholders, following a further discussion and for detailed reasoning. In addition, under certain
circumstances, a company’s compensation committee may exempt the terms of office and employment of a candidate for service as the CEO from shareholders’ approval, provided that the candidate
is not a director and that the terms of office are compliant with the company’s compensation policy.

In addition, amendment of existing terms of office and employment of Office Holders who are not directors requires the approval of the compensation committee only, if the compensation
committee determines that the amendment is not material.

Compensation Policy

Under the Companies Law we are required to adopt a compensation policy, which sets forth company policy regarding the terms of office and employment of Office Holders, including
compensation, equity awards, severance and other benefits, exemption from liability and indemnification. Such compensation policy should take into account, among other things, providing proper
incentives to directors and officers, management of risks by the company, the officer’s contribution to achieving corporate objectives and increasing profits, and the function of the officer or director.

Our Compensation Policy is designed to balance between the importance of incentivizing Office Holders to reach personal targets and the need to assure that the overall compensation meets
our Company’s long-term strategic performance and financial objectives. The Compensation Policy provides our Compensation Committee and our Board of Directors with adequate measures and
flexibility to tailor each of our Office Holder’s compensation package based, among other matters, on geography, tasks, role, seniority and capability. Moreover, the Compensation Policy is intended
to motivate our Office Holders to achieve ongoing targeted results in addition to a high level business performance in the long term, without encouraging excessive risk taking.

The Compensation Policy and any amendments thereto must be approved by the board of directors, after considering the recommendations of the compensation committee, and by a Special
Majority of our shareholders. The Compensation Policy must be reviewed from time to time by the board, and must be re-approved or amended by the board of directors and the shareholders no less
than every three years. If the Compensation Policy is not approved by the shareholders, the compensation committee and the board of directors may nonetheless approve the policy, following further
discussion of the matter and for detailed reasons.
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‘We maintain a compensation policy for our office holders, which was most recently approved by our shareholders at the 2024 AGM (the “Compensation Policy”). The following is a brief
overview of the main terms included in the Compensation Policy:

Base Salaries

Executives’ Base Salaries is determined by the Compensation Committee and Board based on comparative benchmark information regarding salaries of applicable executives in peer group
companies, rather than on fixed caps as provided for under the current compensation policy. Executives’ Base Salaries shall not exceed the 50th percentile of the relevant benchmark, unless the
Compensation Committee and the Board deem that unique and special circumstances warrant a deviation from such cap with respect to a specific Executive.

Annual Cash Bonus

On Target Cash Plan: Under the Compensation Policy, Executives’ On Target Cash Plan shall be calculated based on each Executive’s annual Base Salary, so that the On Target Cash Plan
of Executives other than the CEO shall be capped at 75% of such Executives’ annual Base Salary, and the CEO’s On Target Cash Plan shall be capped at 100% of his or her annual Base Salary.

On Target Bonus Cap: Under the Compensation Policy, the actual Cash Plan payment to all Executives (including the CEO) shall be capped at 200% of the Executive’s On Target Cash
Plan.

On Target Bonus Threshold: The Compensation Policy provides for an increased threshold for payment of any amounts under an Executive’s Cash Plan, such that payment of any bonus
under the Company’s Cash Plan will only be made upon the achievement of a minimum Non GAAP Net Profit of $6,000,000.

Change of Control Bonus

The Compensation Policy provides for a “change of control” cash payment of up to six monthly Base Salaries, and further provides that in the event of a change of control that creates a
significant value to the Company’s shareholders, by presenting a premium of at least 40% over the average of the closing prices per share of the Company’s ordinary shares as quoted on the Nasdaq
Global Market for the 20 trading days ending one day prior to the execution of the term sheet (or similar instrument) for such change of control event, the Compensation Committee and Board may
approve an increased “change in control” cash payment, of up to 12 monthly Base Salaries.

Equity Based Compensation

Under the Compensation Policy, the total yearly Equity Value granted to an Executive shall not exceed (i) with respect to the CEO - 400% of his annual Base Salary; and (ii) with respect to
all other Executives, 300% of such Executive’s annual Base Salary, provided that at least 50% of the equity based components granted to each Executive (including the CEO) shall be subject to
performance-based vesting.
Directors Compensation

The Compensation Policy provides for general guidelines with respect to the Company’s non-executive and non-controlling directors’ remuneration, pursuant to which, in line with the
current compensation policy, directors” remuneration shall be comprised of cash compensation which includes annual fee and meeting participation fee as shall be determined in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Law, as well as equity based compensation, the annual value of which shall be capped at $100,000 for all directors, and at $150,000 with respect to the Company’s non-
executive Chairman of the Board of Directors.
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Insurance Framework

The Compensation Policy provides for caps on the premium which may be paid and coverage which may be purchased under the Company’s Directors & Officers (D&O) insurance
policies, pursuant to which the coverage which may be purchased shall be limited to the higher of: (i) $30,000,000; or (ii) 10% of the Company’s market cap (based on the average closing price of
the Company’s share on the Nasdaq Global Market during the preceding 30 days), plus 20% additional coverage for claims-related costs, and the cap on the premium which may be paid for each
policy shall be increased to one million $1,000,000. Further, the Compensation Committee shall be authorized, to (i) increase the coverage purchased, and/or the premium paid for such policies, by
up to 20% per year, without an additional shareholders’ approval, if and to the extent permitted under the Law, and (ii) to the extent an additional insurance coverage is required in its opinion with
respect to a specific material transaction or a series of related transactions, to purchase coverage in amounts of up to 3 times the then existing limit of coverage under the Compensation Policy, with
costs of up to 3 times the then existing limit of premium amounts under the Compensation Policy, without additional shareholders' approval, if and to the extent permitted under the Companies Law.

Clawback Policy

On June 9, 2023, the SEC approved Nasdaq’s proposed clawback listing standards that implement the SEC’s clawback rule, which was adopted under Rule 10D-1 under the Exchange Act
(the “Clawback Listing Rules”). The SEC’s final rule directed U.S. stock exchanges, including Nasdaq, to adopt listing standards requiring all listed companies, including foreign private issuers,
such as the Company, to adopt and comply with a written clawback policy, to disclose the policy and to file the policy as an exhibit to its annual report, as well as to include other disclosures in the
event a clawback is triggered under the policy. At the 2023 AGM, following the approvals of the Compensation Committee and Board of Directors, we amended Part II (Executive Compensation,
Section 12 (Clawback Policy)) of the Compensation Policy, to provide that the Company has adopted a clawback policy as contemplated pursuant to the Clawback Listing Rules (the “Clawback
Policy”), to recover any excess incentive-based compensation from current and former officers after an accounting restatement, effective as of October 2, 2023. In addition, the Compensation
Committee and the Board of Directors may apply this Clawback Policy to persons who are not officers. Under the Clawback Policy, in the event that the Company is required to prepare an
accounting restatement due to its material noncompliance with any financial reporting requirement under U.S. federal securities law, the policy provides that the Company will recoup compensation
from each current or former executive officer who, during the three-year period preceding the date on which an accounting restatement is required, received incentive compensation based on the
erroneous financial data that exceeds the amount of incentive-based compensation the executive would have received based on the restatement. The Compensation Committee and the Board of
Directors administer the Company’s Clawback Policy and have sole discretion to determine how to seek recovery under the policy and may forgo recovery if both determine that recovery would be
impracticable. The Clawback Policy is filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report.

Additional Provisions

The Compensation Policy includes additional provisions, including with respect to: separation package; relocation compensation; special circumstances cash incentive; indemnification and
exemption; and deviation from policy caps.

Approval of Certain Transactions with Related Parties

The Companies Law requires the approval of the audit committee or the compensation committee, thereafter the approval of the board of directors and in certain cases — the approval of the
shareholders, in order to effect specified actions and extraordinary transactions, such as the following:

« transactions with Office Holders and third parties - where an Office Holder has a personal interest in the transaction;

« employment terms of Office Holders; and

«  extraordinary transactions with controlling parties or with a third party where a controlling party has a personal interest in the transaction; or any transaction with the controlling
shareholder or his relative regarding terms of service (provided directly or indirectly, including through a company controlled by the controlling shareholder) and terms of employment

(for a controlling shareholder who is not an Office Holder). A “relative” is defined in the Companies Law as spouse, sibling, parent, grandparent, descendant, spouse’s descendant,
sibling or parent and the spouse of any of the foregoing.
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Such extraordinary transactions with controlling shareholders require the approval of the audit committee, or the compensation committee, the board of directors and the majority of the
voting power of the shareholders present and voting at the general meeting of the company (not including abstentions), provided that either:

«  the majority of the shares of shareholders who have no personal interest in the transaction and who are present and voting, vote in favor; or
«  shareholders who have no personal interest in the transaction who vote against the transaction do not represent more than two percent of the aggregate voting rights in the company.

Any shareholder participating in the vote on approval of an extraordinary transaction with a controlling shareholder must inform the company prior to the voting whether or not he or she has
a personal interest in the approval of the transaction, and if he or she fails to do so, his or her vote will be disregarded.

Further, such extraordinary transactions, as well as any transactions with a controlling shareholder or his relative concerning terms of service or employment, need to be re-approved no less
than every three years provided however that with respect to certain such extraordinary transactions the audit committee may determine that a longer duration is reasonable given the circumstances
related thereto and such extended period has been approved by the shareholders.

In accordance with regulations promulgated under the Companies Law, certain defined types of extraordinary transactions between a public company and its controlling shareholder(s) are
exempt from the shareholder approval requirements.

In addition, the approval of the audit committee, followed by the approval of the board of directors and the shareholders, is required to effect a private placement of securities, in which
either: (i) 20% or more of the company’s outstanding share capital prior to the placement is offered, and the payment for which (in whole or in part) is not in cash, in tradable securities registered in a
stock exchange or not under market terms, and which will result in an increase of the holdings of a shareholder that holds 5% or more of the company’s outstanding share capital or voting rights or
will cause any person to become, as a result of the issuance, a holder of more than 5% of the company’s outstanding share capital or voting rights; or (ii) a person will become a controlling
shareholder of the company. Pursuant to the 10th Amendment to the Alleviation Regulations, which became effective in March 2024, we are permitted to adhere to the pertinent U.S. securities laws
and Nasdaq Regulations that apply to U.S. domestic issuers in relation to such private offerings, insofar as they encompass rules and guidelines pertaining to private offerings.

A “controlling shareholder” is defined in the Israeli Securities Law and in the provisions governing related party transactions under the Companies Law as a person with the ability to direct
the actions of a company but excluding a person whose power derives solely from his or her position as a director of the company or any other position with the company, and with respect to
approval of transactions with related parties also as a person who holds 25% or more of the voting power in a public company, if no other shareholder owns more than 50% of the voting power in the
company, and provided that two or more persons holding voting rights in the company, who each have a personal interest in the approval of the same transaction, shall be deemed to be one holder for
the evaluation of their holdings with respect to approval of transactions with related parties.

Compensation committee approval is required and thereafter, in most cases, the approval of the board of directors and in certain cases — the additional approval of the shareholders, in order
to approve the grant of an exemption from the responsibility for a breach of the duty of care towards the company, for the provision of insurance and for an undertaking to indemnify any Office
Holder of the company; see below under “Insurance, Ind ification and Ex ion”
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Duties of Office Holders and Shareholders
Duties of Office Holders
Fiduciary Duties

The Companies Law imposes a duty of care and a duty of loyalty on all Office Holders of a company, including directors and officers. The duty of care requires an Office Holder to act with
the level of care with which a reasonable Office Holder in the same position would have acted under the same circumstances. The duty of loyalty includes avoiding any conflict of interest between
the Office Holder’s position in the company and his personal affairs, any competition with the company, or exploiting any business opportunity of the company in order to receive personal advantage
for himself or others. It also requires an Office Holder to reveal to the company any information or documents relating to the company’s affairs which the Office Holder has received due to his
position as an Office Holder.

The company may approve an action by an Office Holder from which the Office Holder would otherwise have to refrain due to its violation of the Office Holder’s duty of loyalty if: (i) the
Office Holder acts in good faith and the act or its approval does not cause harm to the company, and (ii) the Office Holder discloses the nature of his or her interest in the transaction to the company a
reasonable time before the company’s approval.

Each person listed in the table under “Directors and Senior Management” above is considered an Office Holder under the Companies Law (for definition of “Office Holder” under the
Companies Law see above under “External directors” — “Qualification”).

Disclosure of Personal Interests of an Office Holder

The Companies Law requires that an Office Holder of a company promptly disclose any personal interest that he or she may possess and all related material information and documents
known to him or her relating to any existing or proposed transaction by the company. If the transaction is an extraordinary transaction, the Office Holder must also disclose any personal interest held
by the Office Holder’s spouse, siblings, parents, grandparents, descendants, spouse’s siblings, parents and descendants and the spouses of any of these people, or any corporation in which the Office
Holder: (i) holds at least 5% of the company’s outstanding share capital or voting rights; (ii) is a director or general manager; or (iii) has the right to appoint at least one director or the general
manager. An extraordinary transaction is defined as a transaction that is either (i) not in the ordinary course of business; (ii) not on market terms; or (iii) likely to have a material impact on the
company’s profitability, assets or liabilities.

In the case of a transaction which is not an extraordinary transaction, after the Office Holder complies with the above disclosure requirements, only board approval is required unless the
articles of association of the company provide otherwise. The transaction must be for the benefit of the company. If a transaction is an extraordinary transaction, or with respect to terms of office and
employment, then in addition to any approval stipulated by the articles of association, it also must be approved by the company’s audit committee (or with respect to terms of office and employment,
the compensation committee) and then by the board of directors, and, under certain circumstances, by the shareholders of the company. A director who has a personal interest in a transaction, may be
present if a majority of the members of the board of directors or the audit committee (or with respect to terms of office and employment, the compensation committee), as the case may be, has a
personal interest. If a majority of the board of directors has a personal interest, then shareholders’ approval is also required.

Duties of Shareholders

Under the Companies Law, a shareholder has a duty to act in good faith toward the company and other shareholders and to refrain from abusing his or her power in the company, including,
among other things, by voting in a general meeting of shareholders with respect to the following matters: (a) any amendment to the articles of association; (b) an increase of the company’s authorized
share capital; (c) a merger; or (d) approval of interested party transactions which require shareholders” approval.

In addition, any controlling shareholder, any shareholder who knows that he or she possess power to determine the outcome of a shareholder vote and any shareholder who, pursuant to the
provisions of a company’s articles of association, has the power to appoint or prevent the appointment of an Office Holder in the company, is under a duty to act with fairness towards the company.
The Companies Law does not describe the substance of this duty but states that the remedies generally available upon a breach of contract will also apply in the event of a breach of the duty of
fairness, taking into account such shareholder’s position.
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Insurance, Indemnification and Exemption

Pursuant to the Companies Law and the Israeli Securities Law, the Israeli Securities Authority is authorized to impose administrative sanctions, including monetary fines, against companies
like ours and their officers and directors, for certain violations of the Israeli Securities Law (see in “Administrative Enforcement” below) or the Companies Law. The Companies Law further
provides that companies like ours may indemnify their officers and directors and purchase an insurance policy to cover certain liabilities, if provisions for that purpose are included in their articles of
association.

Our Articles allow us to indemnify and insure our Office Holders to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Office Holders’ Exemption

Under the Companies Law, and provided that the company’s articles of association allow it to do so, an Israeli company may exempt in advance an Office Holder from his or her liability to
the company, in whole or in part, for a breach of his or her duty of care (except in connection with distributions). Exemption from liability for a breach of duty of loyalty is not allowed. Our Articles
allow us to exempt our Office Holders to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Office Holders’ Insurance

Our Articles provide that, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, we may enter into a contract for the insurance of all or part of the liability imposed on our Office Holders in
respect of an act performed by him or her in his or her capacity as an Office Holder, concerning the following:

« abreach of his or her duty of care to us or to another person;

« abreach of his or her duty of loyalty to us, provided that the Office Holder acted in good faith and had reasonable cause to assume that his or her act would not prejudice our interests;
and

« afinancial liability imposed upon him or her in favor of another person.

Without derogating from the aforementioned, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and the Israeli Securities Law, we may also enter into a contract to insure an Office Holder for
expenses, including reasonable litigation expenses and legal fees, incurred by him or her in relation to an administrative proceeding instituted against such Office Holder or payment required to be
made to an injured party pursuant to certain provisions of the Israeli Securities Law.

Office Holder s Indemnification

Our Articles provide that, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and the Israeli Securities Law, we may indemnify any of our Office Holders in respect of an obligation or expense
specified below, imposed on or incurred by the Office Holder in respect of an act performed in his capacity as an Office Holder, as follows:

«  afinancial liability imposed on him or her in favor of another person by any judgment, including a settlement or an arbitration award approved by a court;

« reasonable litigation expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred by the Office Holder as a result of an investigation or proceeding instituted against him by a competent authority
which concluded without the filing of an indictment against him and without the imposition of any financial liability in lieu of criminal proceedings, or which concluded without the
filing of an indictment against him but with the imposition of a financial liability in lieu of criminal proceedings concerning a criminal offense that does not require proof of criminal
intent or in connection with a financial sanction (the phrases “proceeding concluded without the filing of an indictment” and “financial liability in lieu of criminal proceeding” shall
have the meaning ascribed to such phrases in section 260(a)(1a) of the Companies Law);
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« reasonable litigation expenses, including attorneys” fees, expended by an Office Holder or charged to the Office Holder by a court, in a proceeding instituted against the Office Holder
by the Company or on its behalf or by another person, or in a criminal charge from which the Office Holder was acquitted, or in a criminal proceeding in which the Office Holder was
convicted of an offense that does not require proof of criminal intent; and

*  expenses, including reasonable litigation expenses and legal fees, incurred by an Office Holder in relation to an administrative proceeding instituted against such Office Holder, or
payment required to be made to an injured party, pursuant to certain provisions of the Israeli Securities Law.

The Company may undertake to indemnify an Office Holder as aforesaid, (a) prospectively, provided that, in respect of the first act (financial liability) the undertaking is limited to events
which in the opinion of the board of directors are foreseeable in light of the Company’s actual operations when the undertaking to indemnify is given, and to an amount or criteria set by the board of
directors as reasonable under the circumstances, and further provided that such events and amount or criteria are set forth in the undertaking to indemnify, and (b) retroactively; provided, however,
that the total aggregate indemnification amount that the Company shall be obligated to pay to all of its Office Holders, for all matters and circumstances described above, shall not exceed an amount
equal to twenty five percent (25%) of the shareholders’ equity at the time of the indemnification.

Limitations on Insurance and Indemnification
The Companies Law provides that a company may not insure, exempt or indemnify an Office Holder for any breach of his or her liability arising from any of the following:

« abreach by the Office Holder of his or her duty of loyalty, except that the company may enter into an insurance contract or indemnify an Office Holder if the Office Holder acted in
good faith and had a reasonable basis to believe that the act would not prejudice the company;

« abreach by the Office Holder of his or her duty of care if such breach was intentional or reckless, but unless such breach was solely negligent;
« any act or omission done with the intent to derive an illegal personal benefit; or
« any fine, civil fine, financial sanction or monetary settlement in lieu of criminal proceedings imposed on such Office Holder.

Under the Companies Law, exemption and indemnification of, and procurement of insurance coverage for, our Office Holders, must be approved by our compensation committee and our
board of directors and, with respect to the CEO and to an Office Holder who is a director also by our shareholders. However, according to the Relief Regulations, shareholders’ approval for the
procurement of directors’ insurance is not required if the insurance policy is approved by our compensation committee and (i) the terms of such policy are within the framework for insurance
coverage as approved by our shareholders and set forth in our compensation policy; (ii) the premium paid under the insurance policy is at fair market value; and (iii) the insurance policy does not and
may not have a substantial effect on the Company’s profitability, assets or obligations. Further, as our insurance coverage includes Office Holders who are controlling shareholders, in accordance
with the Relief Regulations, shareholders” approval may be waived, if, in addition to the approval of the compensation committee as set forth above, our board of directors approves all such matters
approved by the compensation committee, and both organs approve that the terms of the insurance policy are identical with respect to all Office Holders, including the controlling shareholders.

Indemnification letters, covering exemption from, indemnification and insurance of those liabilities imposed under the Companies Law and the Israeli Securities Law discussed above, were
granted to each of our present Office Holders and were approved for future Office Holders. Hence, we indemnify our Office Holders to the fullest extent permitted under the Companies Law.

We currently hold directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy for the benefit of our Office Holders, including our directors. This policy was approved by our Compensation Committee
on May 7, 2024, and is effective until October 31, 2025.
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Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to our directors, officers and controlling persons, we have been advised that, in the opinion of the
SEC, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable.

Indemnification to Office Holders who may be deemed to hold a controlling interest in the Company

Under the Companies Law, the grant of the indemnification and exemption letters to each of our Office Holders must be approved by our Compensation Committee and our Board of
Directors, and — with respect to Office Holders who serve as directors or as the CEO — also by our shareholders. In addition, under the Companies Law, the grant of the indemnification and
exemption letters to those Office Holders who hold a controlling interest in the Company requires re-approval by the Compensation Committee, Board of Directors and Company’s shareholders, at
least once every three (3) years.

At the 2023 AGM, following the approvals of the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors held on October 12, 2023, we have approved the grant of the indemnification and
exemption letter to each of Messrs. Amit, Stern and Huang for an additional period of three (3) years, commencing as of, with respect to Messrs. Amit and Stern, November 12, 2023, which is the
date of expiration of their previous Indemnification and Exemption Letters, and with respect to Mr. Huang, commencing as of June 3, 2022, which is the date of expiration of his previous
Indemnification and Exemption Letter.

Administrative Enforcement

The Israeli Securities Law includes an administrative enforcement procedure to be used by the Israeli Securities Authority, or ISA, to enhance the efficacy of enforcement in the securities
market in Israel. This administrative enforcement procedure may be applied to any company or person (including director, officer or sharcholder of a company) performing any of the actions
specifically designated as breaches of law under the Securities Law. Furthermore, the Israeli Securities Law requires that the Chief Executive Officer of a company supervise and take all reasonable
measures to prevent the company or any of its employees from breaching such law. The Chief Executive Officer is presumed to have fulfilled such supervisory duty if the company adopts internal
enforcement procedures designed to prevent such breaches, appoints a representative to supervise the implementation of such procedures and takes measures to correct the breach and prevent its
reoccurrence.

As detailed above, under the Israeli Securities Law, a company cannot obtain insurance against or indemnity a third party (including its officers and/or employees) for any administrative
procedure and/or monetary fine (other than for payment of damages to an injured party). The Israeli Securities Law permits insurance and/or indemnification for expenses related to an administrative
procedure, such as reasonable legal fees, provided that it is permitted under the company’s articles of association.

‘We have adopted and implemented an internal enforcement plan to reduce our exposure to potential breaches of the Companies Law and sections in the Israeli Securities Law, which are
applicable to us. Our Articles and letters of indemnification permit, among others, insurance and/or indemnification as contemplated under the Israeli Securities Law (see “Insurance,
Indemnification and Exemption” above).

D. Employees
Employees

The following table sets forth the number of our employees engaged in the specified activities at the end of each of the years 2024, 2023 and 2022:

As of December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Executive management 4 4 4
Research and development 174 151 119
Sales support 191 156 121
Sales and marketing 92 91 54
Administration 67 57 50
Operations 128 106 98
Total 656 565 446
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The following table sets forth the number of our employees located in the following geographic regions at the end of each of the years 2024, 2023 and 2022:

As of December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Israel 331 287 280
Abroad 325 278 166
Total 656 565 446

With respect to our Israeli employees, no collective bargaining agreements apply to our employees. However, by virtue of extension orders, certain provisions of the collective bargaining
agreements between the Histadrut (General Federation of Labor in Israel) and the Coordination Bureau of Economic Organizations, relating primarily to the length of the work day, minimum wages,
pension contributions, insurance for work-related accidents, procedures for dismissing employees, determination of severance pay and other conditions of employment - are applicable to our
employees.

With respect to our (or any of our subsidiaries) Chinese employees, certain provisions of Chinese Labor Contract Law and Social Insurance Law primarily govern the formation of
employer-employee relations, termination of employment, severance pay, worker dispatch, part-time employment and social insurance.

‘We consider our relationship with our employees to be good, and we have never experienced a labor dispute, strike or work stoppage.
E. Share Ownership.

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our outstanding ordinary shares by our directors and senior management.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally means sole or shared power to vote or direct the voting or to dispose or direct the disposition of
any ordinary shares. Except as indicated by footnote, the persons named in the table below have sole voting and investment power with respect to all ordinary shares shown as beneficially owned by
them. All ordinary shares subject to options exercisable into ordinary shares and RSUs that will vest, as applicable, within 60 days of the date of the table are deemed to be outstanding and
beneficially owned by the person holding such options and RSUs for the purpose of computing the number of shares beneficially owned by such person. They are not, however, deemed to be
outstanding and beneficially owned for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other shareholder. The percentage of beneficial ownership is based upon 45,594,474 ordinary

shares outstanding as of March 4, 2025.

Total Beneficial

Name Ownership Percentage

Rafi Amit(1) 37,560 &
Moty Ben- Arie(2) 5,532 *
Orit Stav(5) 5,532 o
Yotam Stern(3) - *
Leo Huang (4) - *
1-Shih Tseng - *
Yael Andorn(5) 5,532 &
Yosi Shacham-Diamand(6) 10,873 *
Moshe Eisenberg(7) 15,026 o
Ramy Langer(8) 18,898 *
Orit Geva Dvash(9) 7,815 &

*Beneficially owns less than 1%
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() Includes (i) 26,961 ordinary shares; and (ii) 10,599 RSUs that vest within 60 days of the date of the table. Does not include 38,645 RSUs that do not vest within 60 days of the date of the
table. In addition, as a result of a voting agreement relating to a majority of Priortech’s voting equity, Mr. Amit may be deemed to control Priortech. As a result, Mr. Amit may be deemed to
beneficially own the 9,617,787 shares of the Company held by Priortech. Mr. Amit disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares. See Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party
Transactions. A. Major Shareholders — Beneficial Ownership” below.

@ Includes (i) 1,476 ordinary shares; and (ii) fully vested options to purchase 4,056 ordinary shares, at an exercise price of $22.63— 63.51 per share, which expire by December 2030. Does
not include (i) options to purchase 1,509 ordinary shares which fully vest at the 2025 AGM, at an exercise price of $81.28 per share, which expire in September 2031 and (ii) 615 RSUs that
do not vest within 60 days of the date of the table.

3) Mr. Stern does not directly own any of our ordinary shares. As a result of a voting agreement relating to a majority of Priortech’s voting equity, Mr. Stern may be deemed to control
Priortech. As a result, Mr. Stern may be deemed to beneficially own the 9,617,787 shares of the Company held by Priortech. Mr. Stern disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares. See
Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions. A. Major Shareholders — Beneficial Ownership” below.

@ Mr. Huang does not directly own any of our ordinary shares. Based on information we received from Chroma, Mr. Huang is considered a controlling person with regard to Chroma,
accordingly Mr. Huang may be deemed to beneficially own the 7,817,440 shares of the Company held by Chroma. Mr. Huang disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares. See Item 7.
Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions. A. Major Shareholders — Beneficial Ownership” below.

3 Includes (i) 1,476 ordinary shares; and (ii) fully vested options to purchase 4,056 ordinary shares, at an exercise price of $22.63-63.51 per share, which expire by December 2030. Does not
include (i) options to purchase 1,132 ordinary shares which fully vest at the 2025 AGM, at an exercise price of $81.28 per share, which expire in September , 2031; and (ii) 461 RSUs that
do not vest within 60 days of the date of the table.

© Includes (i) 5,391 ordinary shares; and (ii) fully vested options to purchase 5,482 ordinary shares, at an exercise price of $22.63-63.51 per share, which expire by December 2030 . Does not
include (i) options to purchase 1,132 ordinary shares which fully vest at the 2025 AGM, at an exercise price of $81.28 per share, which expire in September, 2031; and (ii) 461 RSUs that
do not vest within 60 days of the date of the table.

@] Includes (i) 10,300 ordinary shares; and (ii) 4,726 RSUs that vest within 60 days of the date of the table. Does not include 18,565 RSUs that do not vest within 60 days of the date of the
table.

®) Includes (i) 12,739 ordinary shares; and (ii) 6,159 RSUs that vest within 60 days of the date of the table. Does not include 24,036 RSUs that do not vest within 60 days of the date of the
table.

©) Includes (i) 4,925 ordinary shares; and (ii) 2,890 RSUs that vest within 60 days of the date of the table. Does not include 7,838 RSUs that do not vest within 60 days of the date of the table.

The options were granted pursuant to our then in effect equity plan and in accordance with the grant terms included therein. The RSUs were granted pursuant to our Share Incentive Plan
(and Sub-Plan for Grantees Subject to Israeli Taxation) (the “2018 Plan”).

Share Incentive Plans
General

‘We currently maintain one active share incentive plan which is the 2018 Plan.

The 2018 Plan was adopted by the Company in April 2018 and replaced the Company’s previous equity plans - the 2014 Share Option Plan and the 2007 Restricted Share Unit Plan.

The purpose and intent of the 2018 Plan is to advance, pursuant to the Compensation Plan, the interests of the Company by affording to selected employees, officers, directors, consultants
and other services providers of the Company and its affiliates an opportunity to acquire or increase its proprietary interest in the Company by the grant in their favor of options, restricted shares and
RSUs (the “Awards”) thus providing them with an additional incentive to become, and to remain, employed and/or engaged by the Company, encouraging their sense of proprietorship and
stimulating their active interest in the success of the Company.

2018 Plan

General. As of December 31, 2024, 799,905 Awards were outstanding under the 2018 Plan.

Administration of the 2018 Plan. Our 2018 Plan is administered by our Board. Under the 2018 Plan, Awards may be granted to our officers, directors, employees or consultants and those of
our subsidiaries. The exercise price of options under the 2018 Plan is determined by our Board, and is generally set as the fair market value on the date of grant. The purchase price for each RSU and
restricted share is not more than the underlying share’s nominal value, unless otherwise determined by the Board. The vesting schedule of the Awards is also determined by the Board of Directors;
generally the options vest over a four-year period, with 25% of the options vest on each anniversary of the vesting start date. The vesting of Awards may also be subject to performance conditions,
which shall be either in addition to or instead of the aforementioned time-based vesting. Each Award granted under the 2018 Plan is usually exercisable between its vesting time and up to seven years

from the date of grant, subject to certain early expiration provisions, such as in the event of termination of employment or engagement with the Company.

Future Awards to be granted by us to our employees, officers, directors and consultants, or those of our affiliates, will only be made pursuant to the 2018 Plan.
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E. Disclosure of a Registrant’s Action to Recover Erroneously Awarded Compensation.
Not applicable.

Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions.

A. Major Shareholders.

The following table provides information regarding the beneficial ownership of our ordinary shares as of March 41, 2025, held by each person or entity who beneficially owns more than 5%
of our outstanding ordinary shares. None of these shareholders has different voting rights than any of the Company’s other shareholders.

Beneficial Ownership
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally means sole or shared power to vote or direct the voting or to dispose or direct the disposition of

any ordinary shares. Except as indicated by footnote, the person named in the table below has sole voting and investment power with respect to all ordinary shares shown as beneficially owned by it.
The percentage of beneficial ownership is based upon 45,594,474 ordinary shares outstanding as of March 4, 2025.

Number of
Ordinary Shares* Percentage
Priortech Ltd. (1) 9,617,787 21.1%
Chroma ATE Inc. (2) 7,817,440 17.1%
O] 29.26% of the voting equity in Priortech Ltd. is subject to a voting agreement. As a result of this agreement, and due to the fact that there are no other shareholders holding more than 50%

of the voting equity in Priortech Ltd., Messrs. Rafi Amit, Yotam Stern, David Kishon, and Hanoch Feldstien and the estates of Itzhak Krell (deceased) (through Eyal Krell, Israel Shai Krell
and Galit Drori Krell), Zehava Wineberg (deceased) and Haim Langmas (deceased), may be deemed to control Priortech Ltd. The voting agreement does not provide for different voting
rights for Priortech than the voting rights of other holders of our ordinary shares. Priortech’s principal executive offices are located at South Industrial Zone, Migdal Ha’Emek 23150, Israel.

@ Based on the Schedule 13G filed by Chroma ATE Inc. on August 6, 2019, which presented ownership as of June 19, 2019. The 7,817,440 Ordinary Shares reported under such Schedule
13G by Chroma are beneficially owned by Chroma. Chroma’s principal address is No. 66, Hwa Ya 1 Rd., Guishan District, Taoyuan City 333, Taiwan.

B. Related Party Transactions.
Agreements with Priortech and Chroma

»

For a description of definitive agreements signed between the Company, Priortech and Chroma, see Item 4.A. — “History and Develoy t of the Co

ipany

Registration Rights Agreement with Priortech and Chroma

On March 1, 2004, we entered into a registration rights agreement providing for us to register with the SEC certain of our ordinary shares held by Priortech. This registration rights
agreement may be used in connection with future offerings of our ordinary shares, and includes, among others, the following terms: (a) Priortech is entitled to make up to three demands that we
register our ordinary shares held by Priortech, subject to delay due to market conditions; (b) Priortech will be entitled to participate and sell our ordinary shares in any future registration statements
initiated by us, subject to delay due to market conditions; (c) we will indemnify Priortech in connection with any liabilities incurred in connection with such registration statements due to any
misstatements or omissions other than information provided by Priortech, and Priortech will indemnify us in connection with any liabilities incurred in connection with such registration statements
due to any misstatements or omissions in written statements by Priortech made for the purpose of their inclusion in such registration statements; and (d) we will pay all expenses related to
registrations which we have initiated, except for certain underwriting discounts or commissions or legal fees, and Priortech will pay all expenses related to a registration initiated at its demand in
which we are not participating.
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On December 30, 2004, the Registration Rights Agreement with Priortech was amended. The amendment concerns primarily the grant of unlimited shelf registration rights there under to
Priortech with respect to its holdings in us, and the assignability of those shelf registration rights to its transferees.

In the framework of the Chroma Transaction, the Company, Chroma and Priortech entered into a Second Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement which, following the
Chroma Closing Date, replaced the previous Registration Rights Agreement and grants Chroma registration rights with respect to our Ordinary Shares held by it, which are similar to those of
Priortech. For a description of the definitive agreements signed under the Chroma Transaction, see Item 4.A. — “History and Development of the Company”.

Employment Agreement with Mr. Rafi Amit
For a description of the employment agreement with our Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Rafi Amit, see Item 6.B - “Compensation — Employment Agreements” above.
C. Interests of Experts and Counsel.
Not applicable.
Item 8. Financial Information.
A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Information.
Please see the consolidated financial statements listed in Item 18 for audited consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with this Item.

Legal Proceedings

‘We are not a party to any material legal proceedings, and there are no material proceeding in which any director, any member of senior management, or any of our affiliates is either a party
adverse to us or our subsidiaries or has a material interest adverse to us or our subsidiaries.

Dividends
On March 21, 2024, following the approval of our Board of Directors, we declared a cash dividend in the amount of $1.33 per ordinary share, representing an aggregate distribution of

approximately $60 million, which was paid on April 18, 2024, to all shareholders of record on the Nasdaq Global Market at the close of trade on April 4, 2024. See Item 10.B - “Memorandum and
Articles - Dividend and Liquidation Rights” below for more information regarding our dividend policy.

B. Significant Changes.

None.

Item 9. The Offer and Listing.
A. Offer and Listing Details.

The Company’s ordinary shares are traded on the Nasdaq Global Market and on TASE under the symbol “CAMT”. We are subject to Israeli securities legislation which applies to
companies that are traded in dual listing.
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B. Plan of distribution.
Not applicable.
C. Markets.

See Item 9.A above.

D. Selling Shareholders.
Not applicable.
E. Dilution.

Not applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue.
Not applicable.
Item 10. Additional Information.
A. Share Capital
Not applicable.
B. Memorandum and Articles

Copies of our Amended and Restated Articles and our Amended and Restated Memorandum of Association, as in effect as of the date of this Annual Report, are attached as Exhibits 1.1 and
1.2, respectively, to this Annual Report. The information called for by this Item is set forth in Exhibit 2.1 to this Annual Report and is incorporated by reference into this Annual Report.

C. Material Contracts.
Acquisition of FRT

On November 1, 2023, we announced the closing of the acquisition of FRT for $100 million in cash. The agreement dated September 17, 2023, by and among Camtek Ltd. Ltd., Camtek
Germany Holding GmbH, FormFactor GmbH, FormFactor, Inc. and FRT GmbH, is filed as exhibit to this Annual Report.

D. Exchange Controls
There are currently no Israeli currency control restrictions on payments of dividends or other distributions with respect to our ordinary shares or the proceeds from the sale of the shares,
except for the obligation of Israeli residents to file reports with the Bank of Israel regarding certain transactions. However, legislation remains in effect pursuant to which currency controls can be

imposed by administrative action at any time.

The ownership or voting of our ordinary shares by non-residents of Israel, except with respect to citizens of countries which are in a state of war with Israel, is not restricted in any way by
our memorandum of association or articles of association or by the laws of the State of Israel.
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E. Taxation
U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

Subject to the limitations described herein, this discussion summarizes certain U.S. federal income tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of our ordinary shares to a
U.S. holder. A U.S. holder is a holder of our ordinary shares who is:

« anindividual citizen or resident of the United States for U.S. federal income tax purposes;

« acorporation (or another entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) created or organized under the laws of the United States, any political subdivision thereof,
or the District of Columbia;

«  an estate, the income of which may be included in gross income for U.S. federal income tax purposes regardless of its source; or

« atrust (i) if, in general, a U.S. court is able to exercise primary supervision over its administration and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all of its substantial
decisions, or (ii) that has in effect a valid election under applicable U.S. Treasury Regulations to be treated as a U.S. person.

Unless otherwise specifically indicated, this discussion does not consider the U.S. tax consequences to a person that is not a U.S. holder (a “non-U.S. holder”) or is a partnership and
considers only U.S. holders that will own ordinary shares as capital assets (generally, for investment).

This discussion is based on current provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), current and proposed Treasury Regulations promulgated under the Code and
administrative and judicial interpretations of the Code, all as currently in effect and all of which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. This discussion does not address all aspects of
U.S. federal income taxation that may be relevant to any particular U.S. holder based on the U.S. holder’s particular circumstances. In particular, this discussion does not address the U.S. federal
income tax consequences to U.S. holders who are broker-dealers, banks, insurance companies, tax-exempt organizations, or governmental organizations, tax-qualified retirement plans, individual
retirement accounts and other tax-deferred accounts, financial institutions, grantor trusts, S corporations, partnerships or entities or arrangements treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax
purposes (and investors therein), real estate investment trusts, regulated investment companies, certain former citizens, U.S. expatriates or former long-term residents of the United States, or U.S.
holders who own, directly, indirectly or constructively, 10% or more of our shares (by vote or value), U.S. holders who have elected mark-to-market accounting, U.S. holders holding the ordinary
shares as part of a hedging, straddle or other risk reduction strategy or as part of a conversion transaction or other integrated transaction. U.S. holders that received ordinary shares as a result of
exercising employee stock options or otherwise as compensation, U.S. holders whose functional currency is not the U.S. Dollar, persons deemed to sell our common stock under the constructive sale
provisions of the Code, persons holding our common shares in connection with a trade or business conducted outside of the United States and U.S. holders who are subject to the alternative
minimum tax. This discussion does not address the U.S. federal income tax consequences of holding or converting the Convertible Notes.

If a partnership (or any other entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds our ordinary shares, the tax treatment of the partnership and a partner
in such partnership will generally depend on the status of the partner the activities of the partnership and certain determinations made at the partner level. Such a partner or partnership should consult
its tax advisor as to its tax consequences.

You are advised to consult your tax advisor with respect to the specific U.S. federal, state, local and foreign i tax q of purchasing, holding or disposing of our
ordinary shares.

Taxation of Distributions on the Ordinary Shares

The discussion below is subject to the discussion entitled “Tax Consequences if We Are a Passive Foreign Investment Company”.
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The amount of a distribution with respect to the ordinary shares will equal the amount of cash and the fair market value of any property distributed and will also include the amount of any
taxes withheld from such distribution. A distribution paid by us with respect to the ordinary shares to a U.S. holder will generally be treated as dividend income to the extent that the distribution does
not exceed our current and accumulated earnings and profits, as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Dividends that are received by U.S. holders that are individuals, estates or trusts
will be taxed at the rate applicable to long-term capital gains, provided that such dividends meet the requirements of “qualified dividend income.” For this purpose, qualified dividend income
generally includes dividends paid by a non-U.S. corporation if certain holding period and other requirements are met and either (a) the stock of the non-U.S. corporation with respect to which the
dividends are paid is “readily tradable” on an established securities market in the U.S. (e.g., the Nasdaq Global Market) or (b) the non-U.S. corporation is eligible for benefits of a comprehensive
income tax treaty with the U.S. which includes an information exchange program and is determined to be satisfactory by the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury. The IRS has determined that the U.S.-
Israel income tax treaty is satisfactory for this purpose. Dividends that fail to meet such requirements are taxed at the applicable ordinary income rates. No dividend received by a U.S. holder will be
a qualified dividend (1) if the U.S. holder held the ordinary share with respect to which the dividend was paid for less than 61 days during the 121-day period beginning on the date that is 60 days
before the ex-dividend date with respect to such dividend, excluding for this purpose, under the rules of Code Section 246(c), any period during which the U.S. holder has an option to sell, is under a
contractual obligation to sell, has made and not closed a short sale of, is the grantor of a deep-in-the-money or otherwise nonqualified option to buy, or has otherwise diminished its risk of loss by
holding other positions with respect to, such ordinary share (or substantially identical securities); or (2) to the extent that the U.S. holder is under an obligation (pursuant to a short sale or otherwise)
to make related payments with respect to positions in property substantially similar or related to the ordinary share with respect to which the dividend is paid. If we were to be a “passive foreign
investment company” (as such term is defined in the Code), or PFIC, for any taxable year, dividends paid on our ordinary shares in such year or in the following taxable year would not be qualified
dividends. See discussion below regarding our PFIC status at “Tax Consequences if We Are a Passive Foreign Investment Company”. In addition, a non-corporate U.S. holder will be able to take a
qualified dividend into account in determining its deductible investment interest (which is generally limited to its net investment income) only if it elects to do so; in such case the dividend will be
taxed at the applicable ordinary income rates.

The amount of any distribution which exceeds the amount treated as a dividend will be treated first as a non-taxable return of capital, reducing the U.S. holder’s tax basis in its ordinary
shares to the extent thereof, and then, to the extent such excess amount exceeds such holder’s tax basis in such ordinary shares, as capital gain from the deemed disposition of the ordinary shares.
Corporate holders will not be allowed a deduction for dividends received in respect of the ordinary shares.

Distributions paid by us in NIS generally will be included in the income of U.S. holders at the dollar amount of the distribution (including any taxes withheld therefrom), based upon the
exchange rate in effect on the date the distribution is included in income, regardless of whether the payment is, in fact, converted into U.S. dollars. U.S. holders will have a tax basis in the NIS for
U.S. federal income tax purposes equal to that dollar value. Any subsequent gain or loss in respect of the NIS arising from exchange rate fluctuations will generally be taxable as U.S. source ordinary
income or loss.

Subject to the limitations set forth in the Code and the Treasury Regulations thereunder, U.S. holders may elect to claim a foreign tax credit against their U.S. federal income tax liability for
non-U.S. income taxes withheld from dividends received in respect of the ordinary shares. The conditions and limitations on claiming a foreign tax credit include, among others, computation rules
under which foreign tax credits allowable with respect to specific classes of income cannot exceed the U.S. federal income taxes otherwise payable with respect to each such class of income. In this
regard, dividends paid by us generally will be foreign source “passive income” for U.S. foreign tax credit purposes. U.S. holders that do not elect to claim a foreign tax credit may instead claim a
deduction for the non-U.S. income taxes withheld. The rules relating to foreign tax credits are complex, and you should consult your tax advisor to determine whether and to what extent you would
be entitled to this credit or deduction. A U.S. holder will be denied a foreign tax credit for non-U.S. income taxes withheld from a dividend received on the ordinary shares (i) if the U.S. holder has
not held the ordinary shares for at least 16 days of the 31-day period beginning on the date which is 15 days before the ex-dividend date with respect to such dividend or (ii) to the extent the U.S.
holder is under an obligation to make related payments with respect to positions in substantially similar or related property. Any days during which a U.S. holder has substantially diminished its risk
of loss on the ordinary shares are not counted toward meeting the required 16-day holding period.
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Taxation of the Disposition of Ordinary Shares

Subject to the discussion below under “Tax Consequences if We Are a Passive Foreign Investment Company” upon the sale, exchange or other disposition of our ordinary shares (other
than in certain non-recognition transactions), a U.S. holder will recognize capital gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized on the disposition and the U.S.
holder’s tax basis in such ordinary shares. The gain or loss recognized on the disposition of such ordinary shares will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. holder held the ordinary shares for
more than one year at the time of the disposition. Gain or loss recognized by a U.S. holder on a sale, exchange or other disposition of ordinary shares generally will be treated as U.S. source income
or loss for U.S. foreign tax credit purposes.

A U.S. holder that uses the cash method of accounting calculates the dollar value of the proceeds received on the sale as of the date that the sale settles. However, a U.S. holder that uses the
accrual method of accounting is required to calculate the value of the proceeds of the sale as of the trade date and may therefore realize foreign currency gain or loss. A U.S. holder may avoid
realizing foreign currency gain or loss by electing to use the settlement date to determine the proceeds of sale for purposes of calculating the foreign currency gain or loss. In addition, a U.S. holder
that receives foreign currency upon disposition of ordinary shares and converts the foreign currency into U.S. Dollars after the settlement date or trade date (whichever date the U.S. holder is
required to use to calculate the value of the proceeds of sale) may have foreign exchange gain or loss based on any appreciation or depreciation in the value of the foreign currency against the dollar,
which will generally be U.S. source ordinary income or loss.

Net Investment Income Tax

Non-corporate U.S. holders may be subject to an additional 3.8% surtax on all or a portion of their “net investment income”, which may include dividends on, or capital gains recognized
from the disposition of, our ordinary shares. U.S. holders are urged to consult their own tax advisors regarding the implications of the additional net investment income tax on their investment in our
ordinary shares.

Tax Consequences if We Are a Passive Foreign Investment Company

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, we will be a passive foreign investment company, or PFIC, if, after applying certain look through rules, either (1) 75% or more of our gross income in
a taxable year is passive income, or (2) 50% or more of the value (generally determined on the basis of a quarterly average) of our assets in a taxable year consist of assets that produce or are held for
the production of passive income. If we own (directly or indirectly) at least 25% by value of the stock of another corporation, we will be treated for purposes of the foregoing tests as owning our
proportionate share of that other corporation’s assets and as directly earning our proportionate share of that other corporation’s income. Based on an analysis of our current assets, activities, market
capitalization and income and expectations about our future assets, activities, market capitalization and income, we believe that we were not a PFIC for our taxable year ended December 31, 2024.
We currently expect that we will not be a PFIC in 2025 or in the foreseeable future. However, PFIC status is determined as of the end of the taxable year and is dependent on a number of factors,
including the relative value of our passive assets and our non-passive assets, our market capitalization and the amount and type of our gross income. There can be no assurance that we will not
become a PFIC for the current taxable year ending December 31, 2025 or in a future taxable year. No assurance can be given that the IRS or a court of law will accept our position that we are not a
PFIC, and there is a risk that the IRS or a court of law could determine that we are a PFIC.

Under attribution rules, if we were a PFIC for any taxable year and had any subsidiaries or other entities in which we held a direct or indirect equity interest that were also PFICs (“Lower-
tier PFICs”), U.S. Holders would be deemed to own their proportionate share of any such Lower-tier PFIC and would be subject to U.S. federal income tax according to the rules described below
generally as if the U.S. Holders held such shares or equity interests directly.

If we are a PFIC, a U.S. holder may be subject to one of the following three alternative taxing regimes, assuming the applicable requirements are satisfied:

(a)  The “QEF” regime applies if the U.S. holder elects to treat us as a “qualified electing fund” (“QEF”) for the first taxable year in which the U.S. holder owns our ordinary shares or in

which we are a PFIC, whichever is later, and if we comply with certain reporting requirements. A U.S. Holder must make the QEF election by attaching a properly completed IRS Form 8621 (for us
and any Lower-tier PFIC) to the U.S. Holder’s timely filed U.S. federal income tax return.
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If the QEF regime applies, then, for each taxable year that we are a PFIC, such U.S. holder will include in its gross income a proportionate share of our ordinary earnings (which is taxed as
ordinary income) and net capital gain (which is taxed as long-term capital gain), subject to a separate election to defer payment of taxes, which deferral is subject to an interest charge. These amounts
would be included in income by an electing U.S. holder, whether or not such amounts are actually distributed to the U.S. holder. A U.S. holder’s basis in our ordinary shares for which a QEF election
has been made would be increased to reflect the amount of any taxed but undistributed income. Generally, a QEF election allows an electing U.S. holder to treat any gain realized on the disposition
of its ordinary shares as capital gain. Once made, the QEF election applies to all subsequent taxable years of the U.S. holder in which it holds our ordinary shares and for which we are a PFIC and
can be revoked only with the consent of the IRS.

Special rules apply if a QEF election is made after the first taxable year in which a U.S. holder holds our ordinary shares and we are a PFIC. In such an event, the U.S. holder would be
treated as if it had sold our ordinary shares for their fair market value on the last day of the taxable year immediately preceding the taxable year for which the QEF election is made and will
recognize gain (but not loss) on such deemed sale in accordance with the excess distribution regime described below. Under certain circumstances, a U.S. holder may be eligible to make a retroactive
QEF election with respect to a taxable year in the U.S. holder’s holding period if such U.S. holder (1)(a) reasonably believed that we were not a PFIC as of the QEF election due date for the prior
taxable year, and (b) filed a protective statement in which the U.S. holder described the basis for its reasonable belief and extended the statute of limitation on the assessment of PFIC related taxes for
all taxable years to which the protective statement applies; (2) obtains IRS consent; or (3) is a “qualified shareholder” within the meaning of the Treasury Regulations.

(b) A second regime, the “mark-to-market” regime, may be elected as an alternative to making a QEF election so long as our ordinary shares are “marketable stock™ (e.g., “regularly
traded” on a “qualified exchange” such as the Nasdaq Global Market). Pursuant to this regime, in any taxable year that we are a PFIC, an electing U.S. holder’s ordinary shares are marked-to-market
each taxable year and the U.S. holder recognizes as ordinary income or loss an amount equal to the difference as of the close of the taxable year between the fair market value of our ordinary shares
and the U.S. holder’s adjusted tax basis in our ordinary shares. Losses are allowed only to the extent of net mark-to-market gain previously included by the U.S. holder under the election for prior
taxable years. An electing U.S. holder’s adjusted basis in our ordinary shares is increased by income recognized under the mark-to-market election and decreased by the deductions allowed under the
election. Under the mark-to-market election, in a taxable year that we are a PFIC, gain on the sale of our ordinary shares is treated as ordinary income, and loss on the sale of our ordinary shares, to
the extent the amount of loss does not exceed the net mark-to-market gain previously included, is treated as ordinary loss and any remaining loss from an actual disposition of ordinary shares
generally would be capital loss. The mark-to-market election applies to the taxable year for which the election is made and all later taxable years, unless the ordinary shares cease to be marketable
stock or the IRS consents to the revocation of the election. There can be no assurances that there will be sufficient trading volume with respect to the ordinary shares in order for the ordinary shares
to be considered “regularly traded” or that our ordinary shares will continue to trade on the Nasdaq Global Select Market. Accordingly, there are no assurances that the ordinary shares will be
marketable stock for these purposes A mark-to-market election generally is unlikely to be available with respect to any Lower-tier PFIC.

If the mark-to-market election is made after the first taxable year in which a U.S. holder holds our ordinary shares and we are a PFIC, then special rules would apply.

(¢) A U.S. holder making neither the QEF election nor the mark-to-market election is subject to the “excess distribution” regime. Under this regime, “excess distributions” are subject to
special tax rules. An excess distribution includes (1) a distribution with respect to our ordinary shares that is greater than 125% of the average distributions received by the U.S. holder from us over
the shorter of either the preceding three taxable years or such U.S. holder’s holding period for our ordinary shares prior to the distribution year and (2) gain from the disposition of our ordinary
shares.

Excess distributions must be allocated ratably to each day that a U.S. holder has held our ordinary shares. A U.S. holder must include amounts allocated to the current taxable year and any
taxable year prior to the first taxable year in which we were a PFIC, in its gross income as ordinary income for that year. All amounts allocated to other taxable years of the U.S. holder would be
taxed at the highest tax rate for each such year applicable to ordinary income and the U.S. holder also would be liable for interest on the deferred tax liability for each such year calculated as if such
liability had been due with respect to each such year. The portions of gains and distributions that are not characterized as “excess distributions” are subject to tax in the current taxable year as
ordinary income under the normal tax rules of the Code. Similar treatment would apply to shares of any Lower-tier PFICs that are generally treated for this purpose as if held by the U.S. holder.
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In addition, special reporting requirements may apply to U.S. holders with respect to our ordinary shares, if we were to be treated as a PFIC, and a failure to comply with such requirements
may subject a U.S. holder to substantial penalties or other adverse tax consequences. We will notify U.S. holders in the event we conclude that we will be treated as a PFIC for any taxable year to
enable U.S. holders to consider whether or not to elect to treat us as a QEF for U.S. federal income tax purposes, to “mark-to-market” the ordinary shares, or to become subject to the “excess
distribution” regime, and we expect that in such event we will provide U.S. holders with the information needed to make a QEF election with respect to us or any Lower-tier PFIC.

U.S. holders are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the application of the PFIC rules, including eligibility for and the manner and advisability of making, the QEF
election or the mark-to-market election.

Non-U.S. Holders of Ordinary Shares

Except as described below, a non-U.S. holder of ordinary shares will not be subject to U.S. federal income or withholding tax on the receipt of dividends on, and the proceeds from the
disposition of, an ordinary share, unless, in the case of U.S. federal income taxes, that item is effectively connected with the conduct by the non-U.S. holder of a trade or business in the United States
and, in the case of a resident of a country which has an income tax treaty with the United States, that item is attributable to a permanent establishment in the United States or, in the case of an
individual, a fixed place of business in the United States. In addition, gain recognized by an individual non-U.S. holder on the disposition of ordinary shares will be subject to income tax in the
United States if the non-U.S. holder is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of the sale and certain other conditions are met.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

A U.S. holder (except for certain exempt recipients, such as corporations) generally is subject to information reporting and may be subject to backup withholding with respect to dividends
paid on, and the receipt of the proceeds from the disposition of, our ordinary shares. A U.S. holder of our ordinary shares who does not provide a correct taxpayer identification number may be
subject to penalties imposed by the IRS. Backup withholding will generally not apply if a U.S. holder provides a correct taxpayer identification number, certifies that such holder is not subject to
backup withholding or otherwise establishes an exemption from backup withholding applies.

Non-U.S. holders generally will not be subject to information reporting or backup withholding with respect to the payment of dividends on, or proceeds from the disposition of, our ordinary
shares provided the non-U.S. holder provides its taxpayer identification number, certifies to its foreign status or otherwise establishes an exemption from backup withholding applies.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax and may be claimed as a credit against the U.S. federal income tax liability of a holder, or alternatively, the holder may be eligible for a refund of
any excess amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules, in either case, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.

Certain U.S. holders who hold interests in “specified foreign financial assets” (as defined in Section 6038D of the Code) are generally required to file an IRS Form 8938 as part of their U.S.
federal income tax returns to report their ownership of such specified foreign financial assets, which may include our ordinary shares, if the total value of those assets exceed certain thresholds.
Substantial penalties may apply to any failure to timely file IRS Form 8938. In addition, in the event a holder that is required to file IRS Form 8938 does not file such form, the statute of limitations
on the assessment and collection of U.S. federal income taxes of such holder for the related tax year may not close until three years after the date that the required information is filed. Holders should
consult their own tax advisors regarding their tax reporting obligations.
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ISRAELI TAXATION

The following summary describes the current tax structure applicable to companies in Israel, with special reference to its effect on us. It also discusses Israeli tax consequences material to
persons purchasing our ordinary shares. We recommend that you consult your tax advisor as to the particular tax consequences of an investment in our ordinary shares.

General Corporate Tax Structure
The regular corporate tax rate applicable in 2024 and 2023 is 23%.

However, the effective tax rate payable by a company that derives income from a preferred enterprise, discussed further below, may be considerably less. See below in Item 10.E - “Taxation
- Tax Benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959”.

Tax benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959 (the “Investment Law”)

The Company’s production facility has been granted “Approved Enterprise” status under the Investment Law. The Company participates in the Alternative Benefits Program and,
accordingly, income from its approved enterprises will be tax exempt for a period of 10 years (or up to 14 years commencing in the year in which the company was granted “Approved Enterprise”
status), commencing in the first year in which the Approved Enterprise first generates taxable income; this is due to the fact that the Company operates in Zone ”A” in Israel.

On April 1, 2005, an amendment to the Investment Law came into effect (the “Amendment”) and has significantly changed the provisions of the Investment Law. The Amendment limits
the scope of enterprises which may be approved by the Investment Center by setting criteria for the approval of a facility as a “Beneficiary Enterprise”, such as provisions generally requiring that at
least 25% of the Beneficiary Enterprise’s income will be derived from export. Additionally, the Amendment enacted major changes in the manner in which tax benefits are awarded under the
Investment Law so that companies no longer require Investment Center approval in order to qualify for tax benefits.

In addition, the Amendment provides that terms and benefits included in any certificate of approval already granted will remain subject to the provisions of the law as they were on the date
of such approval. Therefore, the Company’s existing Approved Enterprise will generally not be subject to the provisions of the Amendment. As a result of the Amendment, tax-exempt income

generated under the provisions of the Amendment, as part of a new Beneficiary Enterprise, will subject the Company to taxes upon distribution or liquidation.

The Company has been granted the status of Approved Enterprises, under the Investment Law, for investment programs for the periods which ended in 2007 and 2010, and the status of
Beneficiary Enterprise according to the Amendment, for a period ending in 2014. In addition, Camtek has elected 2010 as the year of election for a period ending 2021.

The Investment Law and the criteria for receiving an “Approved Enterprise” or “Beneficiary Enterprise” status may be amended from time to time and there is no assurance that we will be
able to obtain additional benefits under the Investment Law.
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On December 29, 2010, the Investment Law was amended to significantly revise the tax incentive regime in Israel commencing on January 1, 2011 (the “Dx ber 2010 Al d t”).
The December 2010 Amendment introduced a new status of “Preferred Enterprise,” replacing the existing status of “Beneficiary Enterprise.” Similar to “Beneficiary Enterprise,” a Preferred
Enterprise is an industrial company meeting certain conditions, including deriving a minimum of 25% of its income from export activities. However, under the December 2010 Amendment, the
requirement for a minimum investment in production assets in order to be eligible for the benefits granted under the Investments Law was cancelled. A Preferred Enterprise is entitled to a reduced
flat tax rate with respect to preferred enterprise income at the following rates:

Tax Year Development “Zone A” Other Areas within Israel Regular Corporate Tax Rate
2016 9% 16% 25%
2017 7.5% 16% 24%
2018 7.5% 16% 23%
2019 7.5% 16% 23%
2020 7.5% 16% 23%
2021 7.5% 16% 23%
2022 7.5% 16% 23%
2023 7.5% 16% 23%
2024 7.5% 16% 23%
2025 7.5% 16% 23%

Dividends distributed from income which is attributed to “Preferred Enterprise” will be subject to withholding tax at source at the following rates: (i) Israeli resident corporation at 0%; (ii)
Israeli resident individual at 20%; and (iii) non-Israeli resident at 20%, such withholding tax rate can be reduced subject to a reduced tax rate under the provisions of an applicable double tax treaty.

The December 2010 Amendment was also revised to allow financial assistance to companies located in development Zone A to be granted not only as a cash grant but also as a loan. The
rates for grants and loans could be up to 20% of the amount of the approved investment.

In December, 2016, the Economic Efficiency Law (Legislative Amendments for Applying the Economic Policy for the 2017 and 2018 Budget Years), 2016 which includes Amendment 73
to the Investment Law (the “December 2016 Amendment”) was published. The investment law was amended to introduce a new tax incentive regime for intellectual property (IP) based companies.
Effective January 1, 2017, the December 2016 Amendment enhanced tax incentives for certain industrial companies by reducing the corporate tax rate and tax withholding obligation.

According to the December 2016 Amendment, a Preferred Enterprise located in development Zone A will be subject to a tax rate of 7.5% instead of 9% effective from January 1, 2017 and
thereafter (the tax rate applicable to preferred enterprises located in other areas remains at 16%). The December 2016 Amendment also prescribes special tax tracks for Technological Enterprises,

which are subject to regulation issued by the Minister of Finance on May 28, 2017.

In 2019 the Company filed a notice to the Isracli Tax Authorities regarding the implementation of the Preferred Enterprise for its 2019 preferred income (instead of a Beneficiary
Enterprise). As the Company is located in Development Area A, the applied corporate tax rate is 7.5%.

The new tax tracks under the December 2016 Amendment are as follows:
Preferred Technological Enterprise - an enterprise for which total consolidated revenues of its parent company and all subsidiaries are less than NIS 10 billion. A Preferred Technological
Enterprise, as defined in the Law, which is located in the center of Israel will be subject to tax at a rate of 12% on profits deriving from intellectual property (in development zone A - a tax rate of

7.5%).

Special Preferred Technological Enterprise - an enterprise for which total consolidated revenues of its parent company and all subsidiaries exceed NIS 10 billion. Such enterprise will be
subject to tax at a rate of 6% on profits deriving from intellectual property, regardless of the enterprise’s geographical location.

In summary, as of 2025, the applicable tax rates are as follows:

Enterprise type Development “Zone A” Other Areas within Israel Regular Corporate Tax Rate
Preferred Enterprise 7.5% 16% 23%
Special Preferred Enterprise 5% 8% 23%
Preferred Technological Enterprise 7.5% 12% 23%
Special Preferred Technological Enterprise 6% 6% 23%

71




In addition, any dividend distributed from a Preferred Technological Enterprise to foreign companies holding at least 90% of the share capital will be subject to a reduced tax rate of 4%.

Neither the provisions of the December 2010 Amendment nor the December 2016 Amendment apply to companies currently having an “Approved Enterprise” or “Beneficiary Enterprise”
status, which will continue to be entitled to the tax benefits according to the provisions of the Investment Law prior to the aforementioned amendments, unless the company having the benefits of
such status has elected by filing with the Israeli Tax Authority not later than the date prescribed for the filing of the company’s annual tax return for the respective year, to adopt the provisions of the
December 2010 Amendment. Such election cannot be later rescinded. A company having the status of “Beneficiary Enterprise” or “Approved Enterprise” making such election by June 30, 2015 will
be entitled to distribute income generated by the Beneficiary Enterprise” or “Approved Enterprise,” subject to withholding tax at source at the following rates: (i) Israeli resident corporations at 0%;
(i1) Israeli resident individuals at 20%; and (iii) non-Israeli residents at 20%, such withholding tax rate can be reduced subject to a reduced tax rate under the provisions of an applicable double tax
treaty.

During the years 1998-2006 Camtek was subject to tax in accordance with the Approved and Beneficiary Enterprise provisions under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital
Investments. As such, Camtek has income that was exempt from tax. Distribution of dividends from the exempt income requires to pay income tax on the amount of the dividend distributed at the
tax rate that would have been applicable to it in the year the income was produced if it had not been exempt from tax. In February 2022, the Company, in a settlement with the Israeli Tax Authorities,
elected to take advantage of the temporary rule of 2022 in Israel and pay a reduced tax rate on its historical exempt earnings to allow the Company to distribute dividends from these earnings in the
future with no additional corporate tax liability (See Note 18B(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements). The Company’s Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2021, included a
one-time tax expense of $5,315, in respect of this settlement.

Law for the Encouragement of Industrial Research and Development, 1984
For information regarding the R&D Law, see above in Item 4.B - “Business Overview - The Israel Innovation Authority, formerly — the Israeli Office of Chief Scientist”.
Net Operating Loss Carry forwards
As of December 31, 2024, the Company did not have a net operating loss carry forward, or NOL, for Israeli tax purposes.
Law for the Encouragement of Industry (Taxes), 1969

We believe that we currently qualify as an “Industrial Company” within the meaning of the Law for the Encouragement of Industry (Taxes), 1969 (the “Industry Encouragement Law”).
According to the Industry Encouragement Law, an “Industrial Company” is a company incorporated in, and resident of Israel, at least 90% of the income of which, in a given tax year, exclusive of
income from specified government loans, capital gains, interest and dividends which are not classified for such company as business income, is derived from an industrial enterprise owned by it. In
general, an “Industrial enterprise” is defined as an enterprise whose major activity in a given tax year is industrial production.

The following corporate tax benefits are available to Industrial Companies:
«  amortization of the cost of purchased know-how and patents over an eight-year period for tax purposes, from the tax year it began to use them;
«  amortization of expenses incurred in some cases in connection with a public issuance of publicly traded securities over a three-year period; and

« accelerated depreciation rates on equipment and buildings.

Eligibility for the benefits under the Industry Encouragement Law is not subject to receipt of prior approval from any governmental authority. No assurance can be given that we qualify or
will continue to qualify as an “Industrial Company” or that the benefits described above will be available in the future.
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Taxation of Capital Gains Applicable to Non-Israeli Shareholders

Israeli law generally imposes a capital gains tax on the sale of capital assets including securities of an Israeli company (whether or not traded). The Income Tax Ordinance [New Version],
1961 (the “Ordinance™) distinguishes between “Real Capital Gain” and the “Inflationary Surplus.” The Real Capital Gain is the excess of the total capital gain over Inflationary Surplus. The
Inflationary Surplus is computed generally on the basis of the cost multiplied by the difference between the Israeli consumer monthly price index as known at the date of sale and the date of purchase
and, with respect to an individual, when the shares are nominated or linked to a foreign currency the Inflationary Surplus would be calculated according to the difference in changes in the foreign
currency. The Inflationary Surplus accumulated after January 1, 1994 is exempt from capital gains tax.

Pursuant to the Ordinance, the Real Capital Gains tax rate applicable to individuals upon the sale of such securities is such individual’s marginal tax rate but not more than 25%, or 30% with
respect to an individual who meets the definition of a ‘Substantial Shareholder” on the date of the sale of the securities or at any time during the 12 months preceding such date. A ‘Substantial
Shareholder” is defined as a person who, either alone or together with any other person, holds, directly or indirectly, at least 10% of any of the means of control of a company (including, among other
things, the right to receive profits of the Company, voting rights, the right to receive the Company’s liquidation proceeds and the right to appoint a director). Notwithstanding the foregoing, dealers in
securities (Individual and corporate shareholders) in Israel are taxed at regular tax rates applicable to business income a corporate tax rate for a corporation and a marginal tax rate of up to 47% for
an individual in 2024 onward.

With respect to corporate investors, capital gain tax equal to the ordinary corporate tax rate (23% in 2024 and thereafter) will be imposed on the sale of our traded shares.

However, Under Israeli law, the capital gain from the sale of shares by non-Israeli residents is tax exempt in Israel as long as our shares are listed on the Nasdaq Global Market or any other
stock exchange recognized by the Israeli Ministry of Finance, and provided certain other conditions are met, the most relevant of which are: (A) the capital gain is not attributed to the foreign
resident’s permanent establishment in Israel, (B) the shares were acquired by the foreign resident after the company’s shares had been listed for trading, and (C) if the seller is a non-Israeli
corporation, less than 25% of its means of control are held by Israeli residents.

As our ordinary shares are traded on the NASDAQ Global Market, which qualifies as a Recognized Exchange, Real Capital Gains on the sale of our ordinary shares held by non-Israeli tax
resident investors (individuals and corporations) will generally be exempt from Israeli capital gains tax so long as certain conditions are met, including that the shares were not held through a
permanent establishment that the non-Israeli tax resident investor maintains in Israel.

In any event, non-Israeli corporations will not be entitled to the foregoing exemptions if an Israeli resident (a) has a controlling interest of more than 25% in such non-Israeli corporation, or
(b) is the beneficiary of or is entitled to 25% or more of the revenues or profits of such non-Israeli corporation, whether directly or indirectly.

Furthermore, the sale of shares may be exempt from Israeli capital gain tax under the provisions of an applicable tax treaty, as discussed below, subject to the receipt in advance of a valid
certificate from the Israel Tax Authority (the “ITA”) allowing for such exemption.

Withholding Taxes

Persons paying consideration for shares, including purchasers of shares, Israeli securities dealers effecting a transaction, or a financial institution through which securities being sold are
held, are required, subject to any applicable exemptions and the demonstration by the selling shareholder of its non-Israeli residency and other requirements, to withhold tax upon the sale of publicly
traded securities at a rate of 25% for individuals and at the corporate tax rate (23% in 2024 and thereafter) for corporations.

Income Taxes on Dividend Distributions to Non-Israeli Shareholders

Non-Israeli residents (whether individuals or corporations) are generally subject to Israeli withholding tax on the receipt of dividends paid by Israeli publicly traded companies at the rate of
25%, if the shares are registered with a nominee company (as such term is used in the Israeli Securities Law, 5728-1968). If the shares are not registered with a nominee company, the rate of 25%
will apply to non-Israeli residents shareholders who are not considered Substantial Shareholders, as defined above, and who were not Substantial Shareholders at any time during the 12 months
preceding the date of the distribution, and the rate of 30% will apply to dividends paid to Substantial Shareholders and to persons who were Substantial Shareholders at any time during the 12
months preceding the date of the distribution. Notwithstanding the above, a lower tax rate may be provided under an applicable tax treaty between Israel and the shareholder’s country of residence
(subject to the receipt in advance of a valid tax certificate from the ITA allowing for a reduced tax rate). The distribution of dividends to non-Israeli residents (either individuals or corporations) from
income derived from a company’s Approved Enterprises or Benefited Enterprises or a Preferred Enterprise, in each case during the applicable benefits period is subject to withholding tax at a rate of
20%, unless a lower tax rate is provided under an applicable tax treaty.
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A non-Israeli resident who has received dividend income derived from or accrued in Israel, from which the full amount of tax was duly withheld, is generally exempt from the duty to file
tax returns in Israel in respect of such income, provided that: (i) such income was not derived from a business conducted in Israel by the taxpayer; (ii) the taxpayer has no other taxable sources of
income in Israel with respect to which a tax return is required to be filed; and (iii) the taxpayer is not liable for excess tax.

U.S. Israel Tax Treaty

The sale of shares may also be exempt from Israeli capital gain tax under the provisions of an applicable tax treaty. For example, the Convention Between the Government of the United
States and the Government of the State of Isracl With Respect to Taxes of Income, as amended, or the U.S.-Israel Tax Treaty. The U.S.-Israel Tax Treaty exempts U.S. residents for the purposes of
the treaty from Israeli capital gain tax in connection with such sale, provided (i) the U.S. resident owned, directly or indirectly, less than 10% of the Israeli resident company’s voting power at any
time within the 12-month period preceding such sale; (ii) the seller, being an individual, is present in Israel for a period or periods of less than 183 days during the taxable year; (iii) the capital gain
from the sale was not derived through a permanent establishment of the U.S. resident in Israel and (iv) the capital gains is not arising from such sale, exchange or disposition which is attributed to
real estate located in Israel. Otherwise, the sale, exchange or disposition of shares would be subject to Israeli tax, to the extent applicable

However, under the U.S.-Israel Tax Treaty, U.S. residents for the purposes of the treaty may be permitted to claim a credit for such taxes against U.S. federal income tax imposed on the
sale, under the circumstances and subject to the limitations specified in the U.S.-Israel Tax Treaty and U.S. tax legislation, as discussed below under “Certain Material U.S. Federal Income Tax
Considerations — Distributions.

Under the U.S.-Israel Tax Treaty, the maximum Israeli withholding tax on dividends paid to a holder of our ordinary shares who is a U.S. resident for the purposes of the U.S.-Israel Tax
Treaty, is generally 25%. The U.S.-Israel Tax Treaty provides that a 15% or a 12.5% Israeli dividend withholding tax will apply to dividends paid to a U.S. corporation owning 10% or more of an
Israeli company’s voting shares during, in general, the current tax year in which the dividend is distributed and preceding tax year of the Israeli company. The 15% rate applies to dividends
distributed from income derived from an Approved Enterprise, or a Benefited Enterprise, or a Preferred Enterprise, in each case within the applicable period, and the lower 12.5% rate applies to
dividends distributed from income derived from other sources. However, these provisions do not apply if the company has certain amounts of passive income. The aforementioned rates under the
U.S.-Israel Treaty will not apply if the dividend income was derived through a permanent establishment of the U.S. resident in Israel.

Excess Tax

Furthermore, an additional tax liability at the rate of 3% is applicable on the annual taxable income, including, but not limited to, income derived from dividends, interest and capital gains,
of individuals who are subject to tax in Israel (whether such individual is an Israeli resident or non-Israeli resident) exceeding a certain threshold (NIS 721,560 in 2024), which amount is linked to
the Israeli consumer price index (according to the latest legislative acts, such linkage will be freeze for the years 2025-2027).

In addition to the above, as of January 1, 2025, individuals whose taxable income from capital sources (income from capital gains, dividends and interests) in the tax year exceeds the

amount specified above (NIS 721,560 also in 2025), will be subject to an additional tax at a rate of 2% (5% in total), on the portion of their taxable income from capital sources that exceeds the
amount above.
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F. Dividends and Paying Agents.

Not applicable.

G. Statement by Experts.
Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display.

We file annual reports and other information with the SEC. The SEC maintains an Internet web site at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports and other material that are filed through the
SEC’s Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis and Retrieval, or EDGAR, system. Information about us is also available on our site at http://www.camtek.com. Such information on our site is not part of
this Annual Report.

I Subsidiary Information.
Not applicable.
J. Annual Report to Security Holders.

Not applicable.
Item 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk
Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates is not significant as we have no outstanding loans; see Item 5.B — “Liquidity and Capital Resources” above.
Foreign Currency Rate Fluctuations

We are a global company that operates in a multi-currency environment. In recent months, foreign currency exchange rates have been subject to considerable fluctuations. As a major
portion of the costs of our Israeli operations, such as personnel, subcontractors, materials and facility-related costs, are incurred in NIS, an increase in the NIS value relative to the U.S. Dollar will
increase our costs expressed in U.S. Dollars, and a decrease in the NIS value relative to the U.S. Dollar will decrease our costs expressed in U.S. Dollars. During 2024, the value of the U.S. Dollar
strengthened against the NIS by 0.6% We may, from time to time, take various measures designed to reduce our exposure to these effects, but any such steps may be inadequate to protect us from
currency rate fluctuations. We had no open hedging transactions as of December 31, 2024.

In our consolidated financial statements, transactions and balances originally denominated in U.S. Dollars are presented at their original amounts. Gains and losses arising from non-dollar
transactions and balances are included in net income as part of financial expenses, net.

Our balance sheet exposures to fluctuations in the exchange rate between the U.S. Dollar and other currencies are primarily from NIS denominated balances. As of December 31, 2024, we
had net assets of approximately $6.0 million, denominated in NIS. Any fluctuation in the exchange rate between the NIS and the U.S. dollar of 1% will cause us expenses or income of $60 thousand,
in case of increase or decrease in rates, respectively.

In addition, although our products’ prices in most countries are denominated in U.S. Dollars, in certain territories (currently, Europe and Japan) our products’ prices are denominated in local
currencies, and much of our service income in additional territories is denominated in local currencies. If there is a significant devaluation in the relevant local currencies in which we operate
compared to the U.S. Dollar, those prices of our products or services that are denominated in local currency in the relevant territories will increase relative to that local currency and may be less
competitive.

75




Item 12. Description of Securities Other than Equity Securities.

Not applicable.
PART II

Item 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquencies.

Not applicable.
Item 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Holders and Use of Proceeds.

Not applicable.
Item 15. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) designed to provide assurance that information required to be
disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC’s rules and forms.
Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives. Our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2024, and based on this evaluation
concluded that, as of such date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

Our management, under the supervision of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our
financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide
only reasonable assurances with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls

may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may decline.

Our management evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Based on this evaluation, management has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, as of December 31, 2024, and concluded that such internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) is effective.

(c) Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024 has been audited by our principal accountant Somekh Chaikin, a member firm of KPMG
International, an independent registered public accounting firm. The related report to our shareholders and the Board of Directors appears on page F-2 of this Annual Report.
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(d) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

There were no changes to our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by this Annual Report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item16. [Reserved]
Item16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert.
Our Board of Directors has determined that Ms. Andorn qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” and an independent director in accordance with Nasdaq Rules.

Item16B. Code of Ethics.

We adopted a Code of Ethics, which is applicable to all of our directors, officers and employees, including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting
officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. A copy of the Code of Ethics, in its current version, is available on our website, www.camtek.com.

Item16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Our Audit Committee maintains a policy of approving and recommending only those services to be performed by our independent auditors which are permitted under the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 and the applicable rules of the SEC relating to auditor’s independence, and our independent auditors are remunerated at levels that accord with such basic principles of auditor
independence.

The following table presents the aggregate amount of fees for professional services rendered to the Company by our principal accountant Somekh Chaikin, a member firm of KPMG
International, located in Tel Aviv, Israel, PCAOB ID 1057, and their KPMG affiliate firms, in U.S.$, for the years ended December 31, 2024, and 2023:

For 2024 For 2023

Services Services
Fee Category Rendered Rendered
Audit Fees (1) 360,432 365,300
Audit-Related Fees (2) - 134,000
Tax Fees (3) 34,975 69,000
(€)) Audit Fees: the audit fees for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were for professional services rendered for the integrated audit of Camtek’s annual consolidated financial

statements and its internal controls over financial reporting and services that are normally provided by independent registered public accounting firm in connection with statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements.

?2) Audit-Related Fees rendered during 2023 by our auditor included financial due diligence in connection with the FRT transaction.
3) Tax Fees rendered during 2024 and 2023 by our auditor were for tax compliance and tax advice.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

Our Audit Committee has adopted a policy for pre-approval of audit and permitted non-audit services. Under the policy, the Audit Committee will pre-approve all auditing services and
permitted non-audit services (including fees and other terms) to be performed for the Company by its independent auditor. All of the fees listed in the table above were approved by the Audit
Committee. In addition, the Audit Committee may adopt policies and procedures to permit delegation of authority to subcommittees consisting of one or more members when appropriate, including

the authority to grant pre-approvals of audit and permitted non-audit services. Decisions of the subcommittee to grant pre-approvals will be presented to the full Audit Committee at its next
scheduled meeting.
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Item 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards for Audit Committees.
Not applicable.

Item 16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers.
Not applicable.

Item 16F. Change in Registrant’s Certifying Accountant.
Not applicable.

Item 16G. Corporate Governance.

Pursuant to Rules 5255(a) and 5615(a)(3) of the Nasdaq Rules, we are relying on our home country practice with respect to the following matters: the eligibly of our securities for a direct

registration program; the composition and responsibilities of our Compensation Committee; the approval of stock option plans; certain annual meeting requirements — all as set forth below:

- We have opted out of the requirement that all securities listed on Nasdaq be eligible for a direct registration program operated by a registered clearing agency as set forth in Rule
5255(a). Our procedures regarding the issuance of stock certificates comply with Israeli law and practice. According to the Companies Law, a share certificate is defined as a certificate
which states the name of the owner registered in the company’s shareholders register, as well as the number of shares he or she owns. In the event that what is registered in the
company’s shareholders register conflicts with a share certificate, then the evidentiary value of the shareholder register outweighs the evidentiary value of the share certificate. A

shareholder registered in the company’s shareholders register is entitled to receive from the company a certificate evidencing his ownership of the share.

- Asall members of our Audit Committee meet the independence requirements for compensation committee members set forth in Nasdaq Rule 5605(d)(2), as a foreign private issuer, we
have elected, pursuant to Nasdaq Rule 5615(a)(3), to follow Israeli practice, in lieu of compliance with the certain provisions of Nasdaq Rule 5605(d), requiring us to have a separate
compensation committee. Accordingly, and consistent with Israeli law allowing an audit committee that satisfies the requirements of the Companies Law regarding the composition of a
compensation committee, to carry out all duties and responsibilities of the compensation committee, our Audit Committee has been authorized to assume the functions and
responsibilities of a compensation committee. In this respect, we have also opted out the requirement to adopt and file a compensation committee charter as set forth in Rule 5605(d)
(1).We have opted out of the requirement for shareholder approval of stock option plans and other equity-based compensation arrangements as set forth in Nasdaq Rule 5635 and
Nasdaq Rule 5605(d), respectively. Nevertheless, as required under the Companies Law, special shareholder voting procedures are followed for the approval of equity-based
compensation of certain Office Holders or employees who are controlling shareholders or any relative thereof, as well as of our Chief Executive Officer and members of our Board of
Directors. Equity-based compensation arrangements with Office Holders (chief executive officer and directors excluded) or employees who are not controlling shareholders or any
relative thereof, are approved by our Compensation Committee and our Board of Directors, provided they are consistent with our Compensation Policy, and in special circumstances in

deviation therefrom, taking into account certain considerations as set forth in the Companies Law.

- We have opted out of the requirement for conducting annual meetings as set forth in Nasdaq Rule 5620(a), which requires Camtek to hold its annual meetings of shareholders within
twelve months of the end of a company’s fiscal year end. Instead, Camtek is following home country practice and law in this respect. The Companies Law requires that an annual
meeting of shareholders be held every year, and not later than 15 months following the last annual meeting (see in Item 10.B — “Memorandum and Articles - Voting, Shareholders’
Meetings and Resolutions” above). Our 2024 AGM was held on September 25, 2024, therefore our 2025 AGM must be held by December 25, 2025. As a result of the amendment of
our Articles of Association in the 2024 AGM, we follow the requirement set under Rule 5620(c) of the Nasdaq Rules which requires the presence of two or more shareholders holding

at least 33 1/3% to establish a quorum for any shareholders meeting.
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- We have chosen to follow our home country practice in lieu of the requirements of Nasdaq Rule 5250(d)(1), relating to an issuer’s furnishing of its annual report to shareholders.
Specifically, we file annual reports on Form 20-F, which contain financial statements audited by an independent accounting firm, electronically with the SEC and post a copy on our
website.

Item 16H. Mine Safety Disclosure.
Not applicable.
Item 161. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections.

Not applicable.
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Item 16J. Insider Trading Policies.
The Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy which contains insider trading policies and procedures governing the purchase, sale and other dispositions of the Company’s securities by
directors, senior management, and employees that are reasonably designed to promote compliance with applicable insider trading laws, rules and regulations, and any listing standards applicable to
the Company. The Company’s Insider Trading Policy is attached as Exhibit 11.1 to this Annual Report.
Item 16K. Cybersecurity.
Risk Management and Strategy

We have established a cybersecurity risk management program designed to safeguard the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of our essential systems and data. This initiative
encompasses a comprehensive cybersecurity incident response strategy, which outlines the procedures, communication pathways, and governance mechanisms that are applied across the Company,

addressing strategic, operational, financial, legal, and compliance-related risks.

Our cybersecurity risk management program includes:

. risk assessments designed to help identify material cybersecurity risks to our critical systems, information, products, services, and our broader enterprise IT environment;

. a security team principally responsible for managing (1) our cybersecurity risk assessment processes, (2) our security controls, and (3) our response to cybersecurity incidents;
. the use of external service providers, where appropriate, to assess, test or otherwise assist with aspects of our security controls; and

. a cybersecurity incident response plan that includes procedures for responding to cybersecurity incidents.

Governance

Our board of directors considers cybersecurity risk as part of its risk oversight function and has delegated to the Audit Committee oversight of cybersecurity and other information
technology risks. The Audit Committee oversees management’s implementation of our cybersecurity risk management program.
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The Audit Committee receives reports from management and relevant stakeholders on our cybersecurity risks. In addition, management updates the Audit Committee and board of directors,
as necessary, regarding any material cybersecurity incidents, as well as any incidents with lesser impact potential. In addition, at least once a year, the Board of Directors receives a report from
management on this topic.

Our cyber security management team, led by our IT Manager and reporting to the COO, is responsible for assessing and managing our material risks from cybersecurity threats. This team,
tasked with the overall governance of our cybersecurity risk management initiative, steers both our in-house cybersecurity staff and the external cybersecurity advisors we employ. Our advisors
provide us with on-demand support hours for all matters related to cybersecurity. Additionally, on a quarterly basis, we hold meetings with these advisors where they update us on new solutions,
emerging threats, and market risks, including available course of action the Company should consider. Furthermore, our advisors proactively update us on a weekly basis about global cyber events,
potential new risks, new action plans, and cybersecurity exposures in IT products worldwide. Our management team gained expertise in cybersecurity, each member bringing proficiency and
experience in the landscape of digital security. Our IT Manager, responsible for cybersecurity in our Company, has 20 years of experience in the field. Our Chief Information Security Officer (CISO)
also has 20 years of experience and manages the Company’s various cybersecurity solutions. Both of them have specific experience in software development and code writing. Their combined
acumen covers a spectrum from threat intelligence and risk assessment to incident management and regulatory adherence.

We conduct an annual, comprehensive company-wide penetration test to assess our cybersecurity defenses. Following the completion of this test, we engage in a detailed discussion with the
Company’s executive team to review the findings. This discussion includes a thorough analysis of the test results, identification of vulnerabilities, and the formulation of strategic conclusions to
enhance our cybersecurity posture. The insights gained from these discussions are integral to our continuous improvement efforts, ensuring that our cybersecurity measures remain robust and
effective in the face of evolving threats.

This cybersecurity leadership group directs initiatives to prevent, identify, reduce, and rectify cybersecurity risks and incidents via multiple channels, including briefings from in-house
security staff; threat intelligence and data from government, public or private entities, inclusive of third-party consultants; and the notifications and analyses generated by security solutions we have
implemented.

PART 111

Item 17. C lidated Fi ial St t

The Company has furnished financial statements and related information specified in Item 18.
Item 18. Consolidated Financial Statements.
Our consolidated financial statements and report of independent registered public accounting firm in connection therewith, as appear below, are hereby incorporated into this Annual Report.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Camtek Ltd.
Opinions on the Consolidated Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows, for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes (collectively, the "consolidated
financial statements"). We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2024, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion,
the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by the Committee of the Treadway Commission.

Basis for Opinions

The Company’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.
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Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or
fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the
audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex
judgments. The communication of a critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the
critical audit matter below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.
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Inventory Provision Estimate

As discussed in Notes 21 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements, the inventory provision as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 were $4,336 thousand and $1,204 thousand, respectively. The
Company estimates the inventory provision at the end of each period for damaged, obsolete, excess and slow-moving items in order for inventory to be presented at the lower of cost or net realizable
value. In making this estimate, the Company periodically evaluates its inventory composition, giving consideration to factors such as changes in product demands due to uncertain industry-related
market conditions and technological changes, the probability and timing of anticipated usage and the physical condition of the items. Presentation at net realizable value creates a new cost basis that
is not subsequently marked up.

We identified the evaluation of the inventory provision estimate as a critical audit matter. Challenging auditor judgment was required to evaluate the Company’s assumptions about changing product
demands and probability of anticipated usage of inventory items.

The following are the primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of certain internal controls related to the
inventory provision process, including controls related to the assumptions noted above. We assessed the changes in product demands and probability of anticipated usage assumptions by performing
an independent analysis of available market information that took into consideration industry-related market conditions and possible technological changes. We considered the effect of technological
changes on the inventory provision estimate through inquiry of finance and operational personnel. We also compared historical inventory provisions to actual quantity sold in subsequent periods to

evaluate management’s ability to accurately estimate the reserve.

Somekh Chaikin
Member Firm of KPMG International

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2006.
Tel Aviv, Israel

March 18, 2025




Consolidated Balance Sheets

Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Marketable securities

Trade accounts receivable, net
Inventories

Other current assets

Total current assets

Long-term deposits

Marketable securities

Long-term inventory

Deferred tax asset, net

Other assets, net

Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net

Goodwill

Total non-current assets

Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Note

December 31,

2024

2023

U.S. Dollars (In thousands)

2F
522
15

5,22
20

9,2X
10

126,224 119,968
231,000 215,250
30,813 18,816
99,471 87,300
111,204 85,905
21,347 19,548
620,059 546,787
26,000 21,000
87,115 73,576
11,879 9,023
3,090 2,642
2,001 1,370
54,196 41,987
13,357 16,937
74,345 74,345
271,983 240,880
892,042 781,667




Consolidated Balance Sheets

Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Liabilities and shareholder’s equity

Current liabilities
Trade accounts payable
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities, net
Other long-term liabilities
Convertible notes

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders’ equity

Ordinary shares NIS 0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized at December 31, 2024 and 2023;
47,541,682 and 46,993,998 issued shares at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively;

45,449,306 and 44,901,622 shares outstanding at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively
Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost (2,092,376 shares as of December 31, 2024 and 2023)
Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Date of approval of the financial statements: March 18, 2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

December 31,

2024 2023

Note U.S. Dollars (In thousands)
46,630 42,187
11 77,280 54,487
123,910 96,674
20 5,606 7,541
12,14 15,366 10,473
13 197,925 196,831
218,897 214,845
342,807 311,519
14
16
177 176
214,931 200,389
203 129
335,822 277,352
551,133 478,046
(1,898) (1,898)
549,235 476,148
892,042 787,667




Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

Note U.S. Dollars (In thousands)
Revenues 18, 19A 429,234 315,375 320,909
Cost of revenues 219,283 167,742 161,053
Gross profit 209,951 147,633 159,856
Operating expenses:
Research and development 38,287 31,470 28,859
Selling, general and administrative 19B 63,595 50,751 49,499
Total operating expenses 101,882 82,221 78,358
Operating profit 108,069 65,412 81,498
Financial income, net 19C 23,169 22,218 6,690
Income before incomes tax expense 131,238 87,630 88,188
Income tax expense 20 (12,723) (8,998) (8,239)
Net income 118,515 78,632 79,949

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
U.S. Dollars

Earnings per share information (see Note 17):

Basic net earnings per share 2.62 1.76 1.81

Diluted net earnings per share 2.42 1.63 1.68
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding (in thousands):

Basic 45,279 44,725 44,158

Diluted 49,369 48,863 48,229

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
Net income 118,515 78,632 79,949
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Change in net unrealized gains on available-for-sale marketable securities (558) 740 -
Deferred tax expense 632 (611) -
Total other comprehensive income 74 129 -
Total comprehensive income 118,589 78,761 79,949

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

C lidated Sta ts of Shareholders’ Equity
Accumulated
Ordinary Shares Treasury Stock Additional Other Total
NIS 0.01 par value NIS 0.01 par value paid-in Comprehensive Retained shareholders’
Number of U.S. Dollars Number of U.S. Dollars capital Income earnings equity
Shares (In thousands) Shares (In thousands) U.S. Dollars (In thousands)
Balances at December 31, 2021 45,939,019 172 (2,092,376) (1,898) 176,582 - 118,771 293,627
Exercise of share options and RSUs 566,299 3 - - - - - 3
Share-based compensation expense - - - - 10,523 - - 10,523
Net income - - - - - - 79,949 79,949
Balances at December 31, 2022 46,505,318 175 (2,092,376) (1,898) 187,105 - 198,720 384,102
Exercise of share options and RSUs 488,680 1 - - 181 - - 182
Shared-based compensation expense - - - - 12,598 - - 12,598
Share-based compensation adjustment - - - - 505 - - 505
Unrealised gain on investments - - - - - 740 - 740
Deferred tax expense - - - - - (611) - (611)
Net income - - - - - - 78,632 78,632
Balances at December 31, 2023 46,993,998 176 (2,092,376) (1,898) 200,389 129 277,352 476,148
Exercise of share options and RSUs 547,684 1 - - 41 - - 42
Share-based compensation expense - - - - 14,501 - - 14,501
Unrealised loss on investments - - - - - (558) - (558)
Deferred tax income - - - - - 632 - 632
Dividend paid ($1.33 per ordinary
share) - - - - - - (60,045) (60,045)
Net income - - - - - - 118,515 118,515
Balances at December 31, 2024 47,541,682 177 (2,092,376) (1,898) 214,931 203 335,822 549,235

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
U.S. Dollars (In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income 118,515 78,632 79,949

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 10,666 5,784 4,094

Deferred tax benefit 1,751) (1,254) (777)
Amortization of debt issuance costs 1,094 1,094 1,094

Share based compensation expense 14,501 12,598 10,523

Change in provision for doubtful debts 34 100 7)
Other non-cash expenses 260 6 -

Financial income related to finance lease liabilities (102) - -

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Trade accounts receivable, gross (12,179) (1,890) (21,984)
Inventories (32,154) (13,692) (9,518)
Due from related parties 3 3) -
Other assets (3,728) (6,766) (6,337)
Trade accounts payable 4,275 10,121 (2,113)
Other current liabilities 22,949 (5,406) 2,875
Change in operating lease asset (1,111) (480) (349)
Change in operating lease liability 967 480 349
Net cash provided by operating activities 122,239 79,324 57,799

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of subsidiary consolidated for the first time (a) - (101,781) -
Proceeds from acquisition 1,295 - -
Proceeds from (investment in) short-term deposits, net (15,750) 36,250 (95,500)
Proceeds from (investment in) long-term deposits (5,000) 58,000 (47,000)
Purchase of fixed assets (10,102) (8,097) (8,197)
Purchase of intangible assets (261) (173) 7)
Purchase of marketable securities (45,810) (103,528) -
Redemption of marketable securities 19,716 11,876 -
Net cash used in investing activities (55,912) (107,453) (150,794)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from exercise of share options

Finance lease liability

Dividend payment

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

(a) Acquisition of subsidiary, consolidated for the first time:
Working capital (excluding cash and cash equivalents)
Fixed assets, net
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Deferred taxes liabilities, net
‘Working capital adjustments

Increase in goodwill against share-based compensation

Supplementary cash flows information:
A. Cash paid and received during the year for:

Income taxes paid

Interest received

Operational lease payments

B. Non-cash transactions:

Fixed assets purchased with supplier credit

Right-of-use asset recognized with corresponding operating lease liability
Right-of-use asset recognized with corresponding financial lease liability

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022

U.S. Dollars (In thousands)

42 182 3
(42) - -
(60,045) - -
(60,045) 182 3
(26) (241) (795)
6,256 (28,188) (93,787)
119,968 148,156 241,943
126,224 119,968 148,156
Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
- (15,288)
- (1,615)
- (16,900)
- (74,345)
- 7,157
1,295 (1,295)
1,295 (102,286)
- 505
1,295 (101,781)
Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

U.S. Dollars (In thousands)

10,450 13,807 11,836
22,744 18,685 4,293
2,153 1,854 1,480
435 267 569
2,135 2,573 2,079
4,882 - -




Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Notes to the C lidated Financial S ts as at December 31, 2024

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Note 1 - Nature of Operations
A. Camtek Ltd. (“Camtek” or “Company”), an Israeli corporation, is jointly controlled by (21.16%) Priortech Ltd. (“Priortech™), an Israeli corporation listed on the Tel-Aviv Stock
Exchange and (17.20%) Chroma Ate Inc. (“Chroma”). Camtek provides automated and technologically advanced solutions dedicated to enhancing production processes, increasing

products yield and reliability, enabling and supporting customers’ latest technologies in the semiconductor fabrication industry.

B. In October 2023, the Company completed the acquisition of 100% of the shares of FRT GmbH ("FRT"), a German-based company. FRT is a leading supplier of high-precision
metrology solutions for the Advanced Packaging and Silicon Carbide markets. See Note 3 — Acquisition of FRT.
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Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Notes to the C lidated Financial S ts as at December 31, 2024

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies
A. Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of Camtek and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Company”) have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in United
States of America (“US GAAP”). All amounts in the notes to the financial statements are in thousands unless otherwise stated.

B. Principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Camtek and its subsidiaries. All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

C. Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the
underlying assumptions affect the amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses. As applicable
to these financial statements, the most significant estimates and assumptions relate to revenue recognition, valuation of accounts receivable, acquired intangible assets and inventories. These
estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best estimates and judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience
and other factors, including the current economic environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances.

D. Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of Camtek and its subsidiaries is the U.S. Dollar. Revenue generated by Camtek and its subsidiaries is primarily generated outside of Israel and a majority thereof is
received in U.S. Dollars. A significant portion of materials and components purchased and operating expenses incurred are either paid for in U.S. Dollars or in New Israeli Shekels (“NIS™).

Transactions not denominated in U.S. Dollars are recorded upon their initial recognition according to the exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction. Exchange rate differences

arising upon the settlement of monetary items or upon reporting the Company’s monetary items at exchange rates different from that by which they were initially recorded during the period,
or reported in previous financial statements, are charged to financial income (expenses), net.
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Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Notes to the C lidated Financial S ts as at December 31, 2024

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
E. Cash and cash equivalents
All highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.
F. Short-term deposits

Short-term deposits are bank deposits in US Dollars with an original maturity of more than three months and remaining term at the balance sheet date of no more than twelve months. As of
December 31, 2024 the average annual interest rate was 5.96% (2023 — 5.81%).

G. Marketable Securities

The Company accounts for marketable securities in accordance with ASC Topic 320, “Investments — Debt Securities”. The Company’s investments in marketable securities consist of high-
grade treasury, corporate and municipal bonds.

Investments in marketable securities are classified as available for sale at the time of purchase. Available for sale securities are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices, with
unrealized gains and losses, reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in shareholders” equity. Realized gains and losses on sales of marketable securities, are included in
financial income (expenses), net. The amortized cost of marketable securities is adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of discount to maturity, both of which, together with
interest, are included in financial income (expenses), net.

The Company classifies its marketable securities as either short term or long term based on each instrument’s underlying contractual maturity date. Marketable securities with maturities of
12 months or less are classified as short-term and marketable securities with maturities greater than 12 months are classified as long-term.

The Company accounts for credit losses in accordance with ASU 2016-13, Topic 326 “Financial Instruments — Credit Losses: Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments”. The
guidance requires the Company to determine whether a decline in fair value below the amortized cost basis of an available for sale debt security is due to credit related factors or noncredit
related factors. A credit related impairment should be recognized as an allowance on the balance sheet with a corresponding adjustment to earnings, however, if the Company intends to sell
an impaired available for sale debt security or more likely than not would be required to sell such a security before recovering its amortized cost basis, the entire impairment amount would
be recognized in earnings with a corresponding adjustment to the security’s amortized cost basis.

The Company did not recognize an allowance for credit losses on marketable securities as there were no expected credit losses for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.
H. Trade accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts
Trade accounts receivables are recorded and carried at the original invoiced amount less an allowance for any potential uncollectible amounts, in accordance with ASC 326. The Company

makes estimates of expected credit losses based upon its assessment of various factors, including historical experience, the age of the trade receivable balances, credit quality of its
customers, current economic conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions, and other factors that may affect its ability to collect from customers.

F-15




Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Notes to the C lidated Financial S ts as at December 31, 2024

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
L Inventories

Inventories consist of completed systems, partially completed systems and components and other raw materials, and are recorded at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is
determined by the moving — average cost method basis.

Inventory write-downs are recorded at the end of each fiscal period for damaged, obsolete, excess and slow-moving inventory. These write-downs, to the lower of cost or net realizable
value, create a new cost basis that is not subsequently marked up based on changes in underlying facts and circumstances.

Management periodically evaluates its inventory composition, giving consideration to factors such as changes to product demands due to uncertain industry related market conditions and
technological changes, the probability and timing of anticipated usage and the physical condition of the items, and then estimates a charge (reducing the inventory) to be provided for slow
moving, technological obsolete or damaged inventory. These estimates could vary significantly from actual use based upon future economic conditions, customer inventory levels or

competitive factors that were not foreseen or did not exist when the inventory write-downs were established.

Spare parts included in inventory that are not expected to be converted or consumed within the next year are classified as non-current, based on Management’s estimates taking into account
market conditions.

J. Property, plant and equipment
These assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and are depreciated over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.

Annual rates of depreciation are as follows:

Land 1%
Building 2%
Machinery and equipment 10% - 33%
Computer equipment and software 20% - 33%
Office furniture and equipment 6% - 20%
Automobiles 15%

Leasehold improvements are amortized by the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful economic life of such improvements.

Certain of the Company’s finished goods are systems used as demonstration systems, training systems, and for product development in the Company’s laboratories (“internal use”). These
systems are identical to the systems that Camtek sells in its ordinary course of business. In circumstances where the Company intends to utilize such systems for its internal use, the
Company transfers them from inventory to fixed assets. The rationale for the transfer is that the Company does not have the intention to sell these systems in the ordinary course of business
but rather expects to use them for its internal use over their expected useful lives. These systems are recorded as fixed assets at cost and depreciated over their useful lives.
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Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Notes to the C lidated Financial S ts as at December 31, 2024

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
K. Business Combinations
The Company accounted for business combination in accordance with ASC 805, "Business Combinations" ("ASC 805"). Under ASU 2017-01, “Business Combinations (Topic 805):
Clarifying the Definition of a Business (“2017-017), the Company first determines whether substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single

identifiable asset or a group of similar identifiable assets. If this threshold is met, the single asset or group of assets, as applicable, is not a business.

ASC 805 requires recognition of assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and any non-controlling interest at the acquisition date, measured at their fair values as of that date. Any excess of the
fair value of net assets acquired over purchase price and any subsequent changes in estimated contingencies are to be recorded in earnings.

When the Company acquires a business, the purchase price is allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets, net of liabilities assumed. Any residual purchase price is recorded as
goodwill. The allocation of the purchase price requires management to make significant estimates in determining the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, especially with
respect to intangible assets. The Company uses the Discounted Cash Flow Method to assign fair values to acquired identifiable intangible assets. These estimates can include, but are not
limited to, the cash flows that an asset is expected to generate in the future, forecasted future revenue, forecasted operating results, discount rates and the appropriate weighted-average cost

of capital. These estimates are inherently uncertain and unpredictable.

These models are based on reasonable estimates and assumptions given available facts and circumstances, including industry estimates and averages, as of the acquisition dates and are
consistent with the plans and estimates of management.

During the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the acquisition date, adjustments to the fair value of these tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed
may be recorded, with the corresponding offset to goodwill. Upon the conclusion of the measurement period or final determination of the fair value of assets acquired or liabilities assumed,
whichever comes first, any subsequent adjustments are recorded to the Company’s consolidated statements of income.

L. Intangible assets

Patent registration costs are recorded at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis, beginning with the first year of utilization, over its expected useful life of ten years.

Intangible assets purchased as part of the FRT acquisition (See Note 3) are recorded at their fair value and amortized based on their estimated revenue producing life span.
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
M. Goodwill

Goodwill has been recorded as a result of the acquisition of FRT (See Note 3). Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price in a business combination over the fair value of net
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired, and related liabilities.

Goodwill is carried at cost and is not amortized, but rather is subject to an impairment test, in accordance with ASC 350, “Intangibles — Goodwill and Other”, at least annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Company performs the test in the third quarter each year. ASC 350 allows the
Company to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value prior to performing the
quantitative goodwill impairment test. The Company operates in one operating segment, and this segment comprises its only reporting unit. The Company compared the value of its net
assets to its market cap and found there was no impairment to the carrying value.

Any excess of the carrying value of the reporting unit over its fair value is recognized as an impairment loss, and the carrying value of goodwill is written down to the fair value of the
reporting unit.

N. Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the
carrying amount of the long-lived asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
fair value. In 2024 and 2023, no impairment was noted.

0. Fair values of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, short-term deposits, trade accounts receivable, trade accounts payable and amounts from
related parties approximate fair value because of their short-term nature.
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
P. Revenue recognition
The Company’s contracts with its customers include performance obligations to provide its products or to service the installed products. A product sale contract may include an extended
warranty (that is, for longer than the twelve-month standard warranty) as well as installation, both of which are considered separate performance obligations. For such arrangements, the
Company allocates revenue to each performance obligation based on its relative standalone selling price. The Company generally determines standalone selling prices based on the prices

charged to customers.

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts for sales of products at the point of time when the Company transfers control of the product to the customer. The transfer in control event is
generally determined based on shipping terms. Shipping and handling costs are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

Revenues from the contract are recognized in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to receive once the control of the product had been transferred to
the customer and signed documentation of the arrangement, such as a signed contract or purchase order, has been received. Payment terms with customers may vary but are generally based

on milestones within the delivery process such as shipping and installation. Payment terms do not include significant financing components.

The Company does not incur costs in obtaining a contract except for agents’ commissions, which are incurred upon the recognition of revenues. Since revenues are recognized over a period
of less than a year, sales commissions are not required to be capitalized.

Service revenues consist mainly of contracts charged under time and material arrangements. Service revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized ratably over the contract period.

The Company records contract liabilities when the customer has been billed in advance of the Company completing its performance obligations. These amounts are recorded as deferred
revenue in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
Beginning of year 13,993 9,567
Deferral of revenue 16,170 8,934
Recognition of deferred revenue (7,731) (4,508)
Balance at end of year 22,432 13,993
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Q. Warranty

The Company records a liability for standard product warranty obligations at the time of sale based upon historical warranty experience. The term of the warranty is generally twelve
months.

R. Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the asset and liability method whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which the deferred tax asset or liability is expected to be recovered or settled. The Company includes the foreign currency transaction gains or losses
that result from re-measuring deferred taxes in income tax expense. If necessary, the Company reduces deferred tax assets with a valuation allowance to the amount that is more likely than
not to be realized.

The Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not to be sustained. Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest
amount that is greater than 50 percent likely to be realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change occurs. The Company recognizes interest
and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expenses.

The Company may incur an additional tax liability in the event of intercompany dividend distributions by some of its subsidiaries. Such additional tax liability in respect of other non-Israeli
subsidiaries has not been provided for in these consolidated financial statement as it is the Company’s policy permanently to reinvest the subsidiaries’ earnings and to consider distributing

dividends only when this can be facilitated in connection with a specific tax or other opportunity that may arise.

Tax liabilities which would apply in the event of disposal of investments in non-Israeli subsidiaries have not been taken into account in computing the deferred taxes, as it is the Company’s
intention to hold, and not to realize, these investments.

S. Research and development
Research and development costs, which consist primarily of salaries, materials consumption and costs associated with subcontracting certain development efforts, are expensed as incurred.
T. Earnings per ordinary share

Basic earnings per ordinary share are calculated using only weighted average ordinary shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share, if relevant, give effect to dilutive potential ordinary
shares outstanding during the year. Such dilutive shares consist of incremental shares, using the treasury stock method, from the assumed exercise of equity awards.

The Company’s convertible notes are included in the calculation of diluted Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) if the assumed conversion into common shares is dilutive, using the “if-converted”
method. This involves adding back the periodic non-cash interest expense net of tax associated with the Notes to the numerator and by adding the shares that would be issued in an assumed
conversion (regardless of whether the conversion option is in or out of the money) to the denominator for the purposes of calculating diluted EPS, unless the Notes are antidilutive (See also
Note 2Y).
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
U. Share-based compensation
The Company accounts for its employee share-based compensation as an expense in the financial statements. All awards are equity classified and therefore such cost is measured at the grant
date fair value of the award. The Company estimates share option grant date fair value using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model. Forfeitures are recognized when they occur.
The Company recognizes compensation cost for an award with only service conditions that has a graded vesting schedule on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the
entire award, provided that the cumulative amount of compensation cost recognized at any date at least equals the portion of the grant-date value of such award that is vested at that date (For
details see Note 16B).
V. Fair value measurements
The Company implements the provisions of ASC Topic 820 "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures" ("ASC 820"). ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy provides the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which an asset or liability is classified is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
W. Contingent liabilities

A contingency (provision) is an existing condition or situation involving uncertainty as to the range of possible loss to the entity.

A provision for claims is recognized if it is probable (likely to occur) that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be estimated reasonably.
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
X. Leases

Under Topic 842, the Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Rights of use (“ROU”) assets and lease liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the
present value of remaining lease payments over the lease term. For this purpose, the Company considers only payments that are fixed and determinable at the time of commencement. As
most of the Company's leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at commencement date in determining the
present value of lease payments. The Company's incremental borrowing rate is a hypothetical rate based on its understanding of what its credit rating would be (6.0% in 2024). The
Company's lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise such options. When determining the probability of
exercising such options, the Company considers contract-based, asset-based, entity-based, and market-based factors. For lease agreements, the Company has elected the practical expedient
to account for the lease and non-lease maintenance components as a single lease component. Therefore, for those leases, the lease payments used to measure the lease liability include all of
the fixed consideration in the contract. The Company's lease agreements generally do not contain any residual value guarantees or restrictive covenants.

Operating lease ROU assets consist mainly of vehicles and real estate and are presented as property, plant and equipment on the consolidated balance sheet. The current portion of operating
lease liabilities is included in other current liabilities and the long-term portion is presented within long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

For operating leases, the ROU asset is subsequently measured throughout the lease term at the carrying amount of the lease liability, plus initial direct costs, plus (minus) any prepaid
(accrued) lease payments, less the unamortized balance of lease incentives received. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ROU assets for operating leases are periodically reduced by impairment losses. The Company uses the long-lived assets impairment guidance in ASC Subtopic 360-10, Property, Plant, and
Equipment — Overall, to determine whether an ROU asset is impaired, and if so, the amount of the impairment loss to recognize. See Note 2N.

Finance lease ROU assets consist of real estate at a German subsidiary, for which a purchase option is reasonably certain to be exercised, and are presented as property, plant and equipment

on the consolidated balance sheet. The asset is depreciated over the expected useful life of the asset. The carrying amount of the liability includes the present value of future lease payments
and the exercise price of the option.
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Y. Convertible Notes

The Company accounts for its convertible notes in accordance with ASU 2020-06, Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity (Topic 470-20). The
Notes are accounted for as a single liability measured at its amortized cost, as no other embedded features require bifurcation and recognition as derivatives.

The transaction costs are amortized on a straight-line basis along the lifetime of the Notes.
Z. Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2023-07, Segment Reporting: Improvements to Reportable Segment
Disclosures, which requires disclosure of incremental segment information on an interim and annual basis. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and
interim periods within fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2024, and requires retrospective application to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. The Company
adopted annual and interim requirements under ASU 2023-07 on January 1, 2024 and 2025, respectively. The adoption of ASU 2023-07 did not have a material impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements. See Note 18— Segments and Entity-Wide Information.

AA. New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740) Improvements to Income Tax Disclosure. The standard requires to disclose
additional information in tax rate reconciliation table about federal, state and foreign income taxes and to provide more details about the reconciling items in some categories. The standard
will become effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company is still assessing the presentational impact of the adoption of this standard on its consolidated
financial statements. It expects considerable changes to the income tax footnote.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03 “Income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income—Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220-40): Disaggregation of
Income Statement Expenses”, which requires disclosure about the types of costs and expenses included in certain expense captions presented on the income statement. ASU 2024-03 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2026, and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2027, with early adoption permitted, and may be applied either prospectively
or retrospectively. The Company is currently evaluating this guidance to determine the impact it may have on its consolidated financial statements disclosures.
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Note 3 - Acquisition of FRT
On October 31, 2023, as part of Camtek’s strategy of expanding its product offering to semiconductor manufacturers, the Company acquired 100% of the shares of FRT GmbH ("FRT"), a
German-based company, for total cash consideration of $100.4 million, net of cash acquired of $2.1 million. This includes a payment received in the year ended December 31, 2024, in

respect of customary working capital adjustments.

The acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting, with the Company treated as the acquirer. The acquired assets and liabilities of FRT were recorded at their
respective fair values including an amount for goodwill representing the difference between the acquisition consideration and the fair value of the identifiable net assets.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company incurred approximately $1.4 million in transaction costs related to the acquisition, which primarily consisted of legal, accounting
and valuation-related expenses. These expenses were recorded in Selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

The Company’s Consolidated Statements of income include the financial results of FRT subsequent to the acquisition date of October 31, 2023.

Under the purchase price allocation, the Company allocated the purchase price to tangible and identified intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on the preliminary estimates
of their fair values, which were determined using generally accepted valuation techniques based on estimates and assumptions made by management at the time of the acquisition. The
estimates did not change during the measurement period. The fair values assigned to assets acquired and liabilities assumed were based on management’s assumptions as of the reporting
date.

As part of the acquisition, the Company granted share-based compensation to FRT employees to replace awards previously granted by the seller.

The table below summarizes the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed following the adjustments mentioned above as of the acquisition date:

October 31,
2023
U.S. Dollars
(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents 2,053
Working capital (excluding cash and cash equivalents) 15,288
Fixed assets, net 1,615
Intangible assets 16,900
Goodwill 74,345
Deferred taxes liabilities, net (7,157)
103,044
Cash consideration 102,539
Capitalized share-based compensation 505
103,044




Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Notes to the C lidated Financial S ts as at December 31, 2024

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Note 3 - Acquisition of FRT (contd.)

The intangible assets as of the closing date of the acquisition included:

October 31, Weighted
2023 average

U.S. Dollars useful life

(in thousands) (in years)
Technology 12,200 5
Trade name 2,700 10
Customer relationship 2,000 2
16,900 5.4

Indications of fair value of the intangible assets acquired in connection with the acquisition were determined using either the income, market or replacement cost methodologies. The
intangible assets are being amortized based on their estimated revenue producing life span.

Identifiable Intangible Assets
Valuation of intangible assets involves multiple assumptions. The key assumptions are described below.

Developed technology acquired primarily consists of existing technology related to hybrid 3D surface metrology measurement equipment. The developed technology was valued using the
multi-period excess earnings method under the income approach. Using this approach, the estimated fair values were calculated using expected future cash flows from specific products
discounted to their net present values at an appropriate risk-adjusted rate of return.

The identified trade names intangibles relate to the estimated fair value of future cash flows related to the FRT brand. The trade names were valued by applying the relief-from-royalty
method under the income approach. This method is based on the application of a royalty rate to forecasted revenue under the trade name.

Customer relationships represent the fair value of future projected revenues that will be derived from the sale of products to FRT's existing customers. Customer relationships were valued
using the with and without method of the income approach. This method estimates value by calculating the difference between two discounted cash flow models: one that represents the
status quo for the business enterprise with the asset in place, and another without it.

Goodwill

The goodwill arising from the acquisition represents, inter alia, the synergies between the technology acquired and the Company’s existing operational, R&D and sales and marketing
infrastructure. Amortization of the goodwill is not recognized as an expense for tax purposes.
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Note 3 - Acquisition of FRT (contd.)
Pro Forma on acquisitions
The following unaudited pro forma financial information summarizes the combined results of operations for the Company, FRT, as if the acquisitions had been completed on January 1,

2022. The unaudited pro forma financial information was as follows:

December 31,

2023 2022
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
Revenue 334,030 349,879
Net income 69,483 81,143

The pro forma financial information for all periods presented above has been calculated after adjusting the results of FRT to reflect the business combination accounting effects resulting
from this acquisition, including the amortization expense from acquired intangible assets, goodwill, and tangible assets and add-back of interest income of Camtek's cash, cash equivalents,
deposits and marketable securities used as a cash consideration in the acquisition. The historical consolidated financial statements have been adjusted in the pro forma combined financial
statements to give effect to pro forma events that are directly attributable to the business combination and factually supportable. The pro forma financial information is for informational
purposes only and is not indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved if the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of 2022.

F-26




Notes to the C lidated Financial S

ts as at December 31, 2024

Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Note 4 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents balance at December 31, 2024 and 2023, is denominated in the following currencies:

US Dollars
New Israeli Shekels
Other currencies

Note 5 - Marketable Securities

December 31,

Summary of marketable securities amortized cost, unrealized gains, unrealized losses, and fair value as of December 31, 2024:

Marketable Securities
Matures within one year:
Corporate bonds
Government bonds

Matures after one year:
Corporate bonds
Government bonds

Summary of marketable securities amortized cost, unrealized gains, unrealized losses, and fair value as of December 31, 2023:

Marketable Securities
Matures within one year:
Corporate bonds
Government bonds

Matures after one year:
Corporate bonds
Government bonds

2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
117,638 113,190
5,243 2,795
3,343 3,983
126,224 119,968
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
28,718 74 - 28,792
2,020 1 - 2,021
30,738 75 - 30,813
80,144 366 (306) 80,204
6,864 47 - 6,911
87,008 413 (306) 87,115
117,746 488 (306) 117,928
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
9,821 7 ©9) 9,819
8,983 14 - 8,997
18,804 21 9) 18,816
64,033 574 3) 64,604
8,815 157 - 8,972
72,848 731 3) 73,576
91,652 752 (12) 92,392
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Note 5 - Marketable Securities (cont’d)

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of marketable securities classified by the maturity date listed on the security, regardless of the Consolidated Balance Sheet classification, is as

follows at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

Due within one year
Due after one through five years
Total marketable securities

Due within one year

Due after one through five years
Due after five through ten years
Total marketable securities

December 31, 2024

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
30,738 30,813
87,008 87,115
117,746 117,928

December 31, 2023

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
18,804 18,816
72,210 72,908
638 668
91,652 92,392

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value and gross unrealized holding losses of marketable securities, aggregated by investment instrument and period of time in an

unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

In Unrealized Loss Position
For Less Than 12 Months

In Unrealized Loss Position
For Greater Than 12 Months

Gross

Fair Value Unrealized Loss

Gross
Unrealized
December 31, 2024 Fair Value Loss
Corporate bonds 34,083 (306)
Government bonds - -
34,083 (306)

In Unrealized Loss Position
For Less Than 12 Months

In Unrealized Loss Position
For Greater Than 12 Months

Gross
Unrealized Gross
December 31, 2023 Fair Value Loss Fair Value Unrealized Loss
Corporate bonds 2,786 9) 2,368 3)
Government bonds - - - -
2,786 ) 2,368 3)
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Note 6 - Inventories

December 31,

2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
Components 65,845 55,598
Work in process 21,445 20,038
Finished products * 35,793 19,292
123,083 94,928
* includes systems at customer locations not yet sold, as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, in the amount of $12,448 and $8,626 respectively.

Inventories are presented in:

Current assets
Non-current assets (A)

December 31,

2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
111,204 85,905
11,879 9,023
123,083 94,928
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Note 6 - Inventories (cont’d)
(A) Long-term Inventory:

At December 31, 2024, $11,879 of the Company's inventory is classified among long-term assets according to Management’s estimate based on the recent level of sales (at
December 31, 2023 - $9,023). These amounts are comprised of spare parts. The Company’s policy is to keep components to provide support and service to systems sold by it to its
customers over the past years (usually the support is over a period of seven to ten years) until the Company announces it will not continue to support certain systems. Therefore,
this inventory is usually consumed over longer periods than inventory classified as current, and as such the respective amount that is not expected to be consumed in the next year is
classified as non-current. Management believes that this inventory will be utilized according to its forecasted sales and that no loss will be incurred.

(B) Inventory provision

In 2024, based on Management's estimates regarding future sales, a provision of $4,336 was made against damaged, obsolete, excess and slow-moving inventory (in 2023 -
$1,204).

The provisions were recorded in the costs of revenues line item in the consolidated statement of income. The provisions result in a new cost basis that is not subsequently marked
up based on changes in underlying facts and circumstances.

Note 7 - Other Current Assets

December 31,
2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
Interest receivable 9,269 8,386
Prepaid expenses and vendor downpayments 5,499 5,164
Due from Government institutions and income tax receivables 5,457 3,690
Other 1,122 2,308
21,347 19,548

Note 8 - Long-term Deposits

Long-term deposits include bank deposits in US Dollars with terms at the balance sheet date of more than 12 months with average annual interest rates of 5.61% (2023 — 5.59%).
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Note 9 - Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Cost:

Land

Building

Machinery and equipment

Office furniture and equipment
Computer equipment and software
Automobiles

Leasehold improvements
Operating lease right of use assets
Finance lease right of use assets

Less accumulated depreciation

Depreciation for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 amounted to $6,809, $5,501, and $3,984, respectively.

Note 10 - Intangible Assets, Net

Cost:

Patent registration costs
Acquired technology

Acquired trade names
Acquired customer relationship

Less accumulated amortization

Total intangible assets, net

December 31,

2024

2023

U.S. Dollars (in thousands)

1,401 1,401
23,444 20,730
33,474 27,626
1,129 1,057
7,197 6,542
431 429
3,508 2,100
8,442 7,187
4,881 .
83,907 67,072
29,711 25,085
54,196 41,987

December 31,

2024

2023

U.S. Dollars (in thousands)

2,569 2,308
12,200 12,200
2,700 2,700
2,000 2,000
19,469 19,208
6,112 2,271
13,357 16,937
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Note 10 - Intangible Assets, net (cont’d)
Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 amounted to $3,841, $733 and $110, respectively.

As of December 31, 2024, the estimated amortization expenses of intangible assets for the years 2025 to 2029 is as follows:

U.S. Dollars
Year ended December 31, (in thousands)
2025 3,677
2026 2,832
2027 2,821
2028 2,404
2029 360

Note 11 - Other Current Liabilities

December 31,
2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)

Advances from customers and deferred revenues 28,919 14,701
Accrued employee compensation and other related benefits 15,708 13,137
Commissions 12,733 13,588
Government institutions and income tax payable 10,072 5,316
Accrued warranty costs (1) 4,355 3,397
Accrued expenses 3,005 2,661
Operating lease obligations (See Note 2(X)) 2,204 1,687
Finance lease obligations 284 -
77,280 54,487
(1) Changes in the accrued warranty costs are as follows:
Year ended December 31,
2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
Beginning of year 3,397 3,161
Accruals 7,643 5,505
Usage (6,685) (5,269)
Balance at end of year 4,355 3,397
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Note 12 - Other Long-Term Liabilities
Other long-term liabilities consist of the following:

December 31,
2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)

Liability for severance pay (A) 1,401 1,577
Deferred revenues related to non-standard warranty (B) 7,304 6,262
Operating lease obligations 2,208 2,634
Finance lease obligations 4,453 -
15,366 10,473

A. Liability for Employee Severance Benefits

Under Israeli law and labor agreements the Company is required to pay severance payments to each employee who was employed by the Company for over one year and has been
terminated by the Company or resigned under certain specified circumstances. The liability related to these severance payments is calculated on the basis of the latest salary of the employee
multiplied by the number of years of employment as of the balance sheet date. The Company also has defined contribution plans for which it makes contributions to severance pay funds and
appropriate insurance policies. Withdrawal of the reserve monies is contingent upon the fulfillment of detailed provision in the Severance Law.

Under local law in various territories in which the Company operates, employees with one year or more of service are entitled to receive a lump-sum payment upon termination of their
employment based on their length of service and rate of pay at the time of termination.

1. The liability in respect of most of its employees in Israel is discharged by participating in a defined contribution pension plan and making regular deposits with a pension fund or by
individual insurance policies. The liability deposited with the pension fund is based on salary components as prescribed in the existing labor agreement. The custody and
management of the amounts so deposited are independent of the companies and accordingly such amounts funded (included in expenses on an accrual basis) and related liabilities
are not reflected in the balance sheet.

2. Severance pay expenses were $2,267, $1,936, and $1,903 in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
B. Deferred Revenues

As of December 31, 2024, deferred revenues related to non-standard warranty in the amount of $7,304 are expected to be recognized in 2026-2027.
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Note 13 - Convertible Notes

On November 17, 2021, the Company sold $200,000 aggregate principal amount of its 0.00% convertible senior notes due 2026 (the “Notes”). The Notes will not bear regular interest, and
the principal amount of the Notes will not accrete. The Notes will mature on December 1, 2026, (“the Maturity Date”) unless earlier repurchased, redeemed or converted in accordance with
their terms prior to such date.

The Notes will be convertible based on an initial conversion rate of 17.1092 ordinary shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes, equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately
$58.45 per ordinary share, which represents a conversion premium of approximately 30% to the last reported sale price of the Company’s ordinary shares on The Nasdaq Global Market
on November 18, 2021. The closing price of the Company’s shares on December 31, 2024 was $80.77. The conversion rate is subject to adjustment if certain events occur. Prior to the close
of business on the business day immediately preceding August 1, 2026, the Notes will be convertible at the option of the holders of Notes only upon the occurrence of certain events, the
satisfaction of certain conditions and during certain periods. On or after August 1, 2026 and until the close of business on the second scheduled trading day immediately preceding the
Maturity Date, holders may convert all or any portion of their notes at any time irrespective of the foregoing conditions. The Notes will be convertible into cash, ordinary shares of the
Company or a combination thereof, with the form of consideration determined at the Company’s election.

The Company may not redeem the Notes prior to December 6, 2024, except in the event of certain tax law changes. On or after December 6, 2024, the Company may at any time and from
time to time redeem for cash all or part of the Notes (subject to a certain partial redemption limitation), at the Company’s option, if the last reported sale price of the Company’s ordinary
shares has been at least 130% of the conversion price then in effect for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during any 30 consecutive trading day period (including the last
trading day of such period) ending on, and including, the trading day immediately preceding the date on which the Company provides notice of redemption, at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid special interest (if any) to, but excluding, the redemption date. Holders of the Notes will have the right
to require the Company to repurchase all or a portion of their Notes upon the occurrence of a fundamental change (as defined in the indenture governing the Notes) at a cash repurchase
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be repurchased, plus any accrued and unpaid special interest (if any) to, but excluding the fundamental change repurchase date.

The Notes are the Company’s general unsecured obligations that rank senior in right of payment to any of the Company’s indebtedness that is expressly subordinated in right of payment to
the Notes; will rank equal in right of payment with all of the Company’s unsecured indebtedness that is not so subordinated; will effectively rank junior in right of payment to any of the
Company’s secured indebtedness to the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness, and to the Company’s liabilities in priority under the applicable bankruptcy laws of
Israel; and structurally junior to all indebtedness and other liabilities (including trade payables) of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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Note 13 - Convertible Notes (cont’d)

The Convertible Senior Notes consisted of the following:

Liability:

Principle:

Unamortized issuance costs
Net carrying amount

December 31,

2024 2023

U.S. Dollars (in thousands)

200,000 200,000
(2,075) (3,169)
197,925 196,831

As of December 31, 2024, the debt issuance costs of the Notes will be amortized over the remaining term of approximately 2 years.

The annual effective interest rate of the Notes is 0.56%. In the year ended December 31, 2024, $1,094 (2023 -$1,094) was recorded as amortization of debt issuance costs.

As of December 31, 2024, the estimated fair value of the Notes, which the Company has classified as Level 2 financial instruments, is $301,157 (2023 - $258,941). The estimated fair value
was determined based on the quoted bid price of the Notes in an over-the-counter market on the last trading day of the reporting period.

As of December 31, 2024, the if-converted value exceeded the principal amount of the Notes by $101,157 (2023 — the principle amount exceeded the if-converted value by $58,941).
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Note 14 - Commitments and Contingencies
A. Operating leases
The Company’s subsidiaries have entered into various non-cancelable operating lease agreements for office space and operating leases for vehicles.
Liabilities reported in the consolidated balance sheets are as follows:

December 31,
2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)

Other current liabilities 2,204 1,687
Other long-term liabilities 2,208 2,634
Total lease liabilities 4,412 4,321
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Note 14 - Commitments and Contingencies (contd.)
A. Operating leases (cont.)
In the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company recognized lease costs in the amount of $2,153 (2023 - $1,854; 2022 - $1,480).

Minimum future payments under non-cancellable leases as of December 31, 2024 are as follows:

U.S. Dollars
Year ended December 31, (in thousands)
2025 2,278
2026 1,300
2027 457
2028 150
2029 and after 827
5,012
Less imputed interest (600)
Total lease liabilities 4,412

The weighted average term of the operating leases as of December 31, 2024 is 45 months.

B. Finance leases

One of the Company’s subsidiaries has entered into a non-cancelable lease agreements for office and factory space. The lease agreement contains a purchase option which is reasonably
certain to be exercised. As such, the Company classifies this as a finance lease.

Amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets are as follows:

December 31,
2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)

Cost:

ROU assets — opening balance - -

ROU assets — additions 4,881 -

ROU assets — disposals - -
4,881 -

Less accumulated depreciation 16 -
4,865 -
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Note 14 - Commitments and Contingencies (contd.)

B. Finance leases (cont.)

Other current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities

Total lease liabilities

December 31,

2024

2023

U.S. Dollars (in thousands)

284
4,453

4,737

In the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company recognized finance lease costs in the amount of $42 (2023 - $0 and 2022 - $0).

Minimum future payments under non-cancellable finance leases as of December 31, 2024 are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

U.S. Dollars
(in thousands)

2025
2026
2027
2028
2029 and after

Less imputed interest

Total lease liabilities

The weighted average term of the finance leases as of December 31, 2024 is 59 months.

312
332
332
332
5,149
6,457

(1,720)

4,737




Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Notes to the C lidated Financial S ts as at December 31, 2024

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Note 15 - Concentration of Risk and Financial Instruments

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and trade receivables. The carrying amounts
of financial instruments approximate fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term deposits and long-term deposits
The Company's cash equivalents, short-term deposits and long-term deposits are maintained with multiple high-quality institutions and the composition and maturities of investments are
regularly monitored by management.

Trade receivables

The trade receivables of the Company are derived from sales to a large number of customers, primarily large industrial corporations located mainly in Asia, the United States and Europe.
The Company generally does not require collateral: however, in certain circumstances, the Company may require a letter of credit, other collateral or additional guarantees. An allowance for
doubtful accounts is determined with respect to those amounts that the Company has determined to be doubtful of collection. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers.

Marketable securities
The Company's marketable securities are maintained with high-grade securities and limits the amount of credit exposure to any one issuer.

Allowance for doubtful debts
The following is a summary of the allowance for doubtful accounts related to accounts receivable for the years ended December 31:

Balance at Balance at
beginning Reversal of ‘Write-off of end of
of year Provision provision provision year
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
2022 7 - ) - -
2023 - 100 - - 100
2024 100 34 - - 134

Trade payables

The Company relies on limited source of suppliers and in some cases a sole supplier and/or subcontractors for a number of essential components and subsystems of its products. The
Company does not have agreements with all of these suppliers and subcontractors for the continued supply of the components or subsystems they provide. An interruption in supply from
these sources would disrupt production and adversely affect the Company’s ability to deliver products to its customers, which could have an adverse effect on the Company’s business,
revenues and results of operations.
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Note 16 - Shareholders’ Equity
A. General
The Company shares are traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol of CAMT and are also listed and traded on the Tel-Aviv stock exchange.
B. Stock Option Plan
As of December 31, 2024, the Company has one effective Share Incentive Plan (and Sub-Plan for Grantees Subject to Israeli Taxation) for the issuance of options, restricted share units and/
or restricted shares to employees, officers, directors, consultants and other services providers of the Company or any affiliated companies thereof (the “2018 Plan”). The 2018 Plan was
adopted by the Company in April 2018 and thereby replaced the Company’s previous equity plans (the “2014 Share Option Plan” and the “2007 Restricted Share Unit Plan”). The total
number of equity awards that may be granted under the 2018 Plan during each calendar year is equal to three and a half percent (3.5%) of the Company’s total issued and outstanding Share
capital as of December 31 of the preceding calendar year.
The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model that used the weighted average assumptions in the following table
and recognized over the vesting period of four years. The risk-free rate for the expected term of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. In 2024,

4,905 options were granted.

2024 Grant 2023 Grant

Valuation assumptions:

Dividend yield - -
Expected volatility 55% 39%-48%
Risk-free interest rate 3.5% 2%-4%
Expected life (years) * 4.0 4.0
Vesting period (years) 1.0 1.0

*Expected life for the periods presented was determined according to the simplified method. The Company determined that the simplified method is appropriate due to substantial changes
in vesting periods of options granted which cause existing historical experience to be irrelevant to expectations for current grants.
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Note 16 - Shareholders’ Equity (cont’d)
B. Stock Option Plan (cont’d)
The total intrinsic value of outstanding options as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 is $863, $1,207 and $375, respectively.
The total intrinsic value of vested options as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 is $863, $1,189 and $375 respectively.
The total stock option compensation expense amounted to $140, $100, and $63 in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

As of December 31, 2024, 4,905 options were unvested. The unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements amounted to $119, which will
be recognized over one year.

Share option activity during the past three years is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average Number average
of exercise of exercise of exercise
options price US$ options price US$ options price US$
Outstanding at January 1 26,097 22.99 21,318 12.96 22,102 12.66
Granted 4,905 81.28 16,224 31.5 - -
Forfeited and cancelled - - - - - -
Exercised (8,447) 4.38 (11,445) 16.41 (784) 4.38
Outstanding at year end 22,555 42.64 26,097 22.99 21,318 12.96
Exercisable at year end 17,650 31.90 22,577 16.78 21,318 12.96

The income tax benefit associated with stock options exercised each year was immaterial.
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Note 16 - Shareholders’ Equity (cont’d)

B. Stock Option Plan (cont’d)

Outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2024

The following table summarizes information about non-vested options at December 31, 2024:

Balance at January 1, 2024
Granted
Vested

Balance at December 31, 2024

Weighted Aggregate
Number Weighted Average intrinsic
of average Remaining Value (in
options exercise Contractual US$
outstanding price US$ term (years) thousands)
22,555 42.64 6.23 863
Weighted
average
grant- date
Options fair value
3,520 28.4
4,905 33.13
(3,520) 28.4
33.13
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Note 16 - Shareholders’ Equity (cont’d)
C. Restricted Share Unit Plan

In April 2018, the Company adopted a Restricted Share Unit (“RSU”) Plan (the “Plan”) to replace the 2007 Restricted Share Unit Plan, pursuant to which the Company’s Board of Directors
may grant shares to officers and key employees. The total number of shares, which may be granted to directors, officers, employees and consultants under this Plan, is limited to 3.5% out of
the outstanding shares (1,590,725 as of December 31, 2024). Forfeited units are returned to the pool.

The exercise price for each grantee shall be as determined by the Board and specified in the applicable RSU notice of grant; provided, however, that unless otherwise determined by the
Board (which determination shall not require shareholder approval unless so required in order to comply with Mandatory Law), the exercise price shall be no more than the underlying
share’s nominal value. For the removal of any doubt, the Board is authorized (without the need for shareholder approval unless so required in order to comply with Mandatory Law) to
determine that the exercise price of an RSU is to be $0.00.

Unless otherwise determined by the Board with respect to any specific grantee or to any specific grant, (which determination shall not require shareholder approval unless so required in
order to comply with Mandatory Law) and provided accordingly in the applicable RSU notice of grant, the RSUs shall vest (become automatically exercised) according to the vesting
schedules as determined by the Board.

Weighted
average
grant date
RSUs value

Balance at January 1, 2024 1,135,351 $ 29.27
Granted 189,968 $ 83.83
Vested (528,899) $ 27.16
Forfeited (19,070) $ 36.77
Balance at December 31, 2024 777,350 $ 43.97

The total intrinsic value of outstanding RSUs as of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 is $62.79, $78.77 and $21.96, respectively.
The weighted average grant date fair value of RSUs granted during 2024, 2023, and 2022 is $83.83, $26.43 and $36.69, respectively.

The total compensation cost from RSUs recognized in the year ending December 31, 2024, amounted to $14,362. This is recorded as salary expenses within cost of goods and operating
expenses. The unrecognized compensation expense in the amount of $26,300 will be recognized in the years 2025 to 2028.
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Note 17 - Earnings Per Share
The following table summarizes information related to the computation of basic and diluted earnings per Share for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Basic EPS:
Net income attributable to Shares (US$ in thousands) 118,515 78,632 79,949
Weighted average number of Shares outstanding used in basic earnings per Share calculation 45,279 44,725 44,158
Diluted EPS:
Net income attributable to Shares (US$ in thousands) 118,515 78,632 79,949
Add amortization of notes issuance costs 1,094 1,094 1,094
Net income used in diluted earnings per Share calculation 119,609 79,726 81,043
Weighted average number of Shares outstanding used in basic earnings per Share calculation 45,279 44,725 44,158
Add assumed exercise of outstanding dilutive securities:
Effect of stock-based awards 669 717 650
Effect of conversion of Notes 3,421 3,421 3,421
Weighted average number of Shares Outstanding used in diluted earnings per Share calculation 49,369 48,863 48,229
Basic net income per Share ($) 2.62 1.76 1.81
Diluted net income per Share ($) 2.42 1.63 1.68
Number of options excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation due to their anti-dilutive
effect 9,525 3,520 5,704

F-44




Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Notes to the C lidated Financial S ts as at December 31, 2024

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Note 18 - Segments and Entity-Wide Information
The Company has one reporting segment as described in Note 2M above.
The Company’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”) is its chief executive officer.

The CODM assesses performance and decides how to allocate resources based on net income that is also reported on the income statement as net income. The CODM is regularly provided
only with the consolidated expenses as noted on the face of the income statement.

The measurement of segment assets is reported on the balance sheet as total consolidated assets.

The chief operating decision maker uses net income to evaluate income generated from the segment assets (return on assets) in deciding whether to reinvest profits into the segment or into
other parts of the entity, such as for acquisitions or to pay dividends.

Net income is used to monitor budget versus actual results. The chief operating decision maker also used net income in competitive analysis by benchmarking to the Company’s
competitors. The competitive analysis along with monitoring of budget versus actual results are used in assessing performance of the segment and in establishing management’s
compensation.

The majority of long-lived assets are located in Israel and substantially all revenues are derived from sales to other countries. Revenues are attributable to geographic areas/countries based
upon the destination of shipment of products and related services as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
Asia Pacific 133,772 67,773 63,455
China 132,556 149,510 141,959
Korea 117,135 47,425 43,256
United States 29,282 41,118 54,741
Europe 16,489 9,549 17,498
429,234 315,375 320,909

December 31,

2024 2023
%
Israel 66 66
Germany 29 31
Other 5 3
Total long-lived assets (*) 100 100

(*) Long-lived assets are comprised of property, plant and equipment, net, and intangible assets excluding goodwill
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Note 19 - Selected Income Statement Data

A. Revenues

Sales of products
Service fees

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
409,427 301,899 307,791
19,807 13,476 13,118
429,234 315,375 320,909

In 2024, three customers accounted for 15%, 10% and 10% of total revenues, respectively. In 2023, one customer accounted for 15% of total revenues. In 2022, one customer accounted for

11% of total revenues.

B. Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling (*)
General and administrative

*) Including shipping and handling costs

C. Financial income, net

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
48,134 36,896 38,249
15,461 13,855 11,250
63,595 50,751 49,499
4,120 2,744 2,294

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
Interest income 24,841 24,051 8,648
Convertible notes amortization (1,094) (1,094) (1,094)
Other, net (*) (578) (739) (864)
23,169 22,218 6,690
(*) Other, net includes foreign currency income (expense) resulting from transactions not denominated in U.S. Dollars amounting to $37, $(78), and $(351) in 2024, 2023 and 2022,

respectively.
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Note 20 - Income Taxes
A. Tax under various laws
Camtek and its subsidiaries are each assessed for income tax purposes on a separate basis. Each of the subsidiaries is subject to the tax rules prevailing in the country tax residence.
B. Details regarding the tax environment of the Israeli companies
(€)] Corporate tax rate
The standard tax rate in Israel for the years 2022-2024 is 23%.

Current taxes for the reported periods are calculated according to the enacted tax rates presented above, subject to the reduced tax rate under the Law for the Encouragement of
Capital Investment discussed below.

?2) Benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments (hereinafter - “the Encouragement Law”)
(a) Amendment to the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments — 1959

The Company filed a notice to the Israeli Tax Authorities regarding the implementation of the preferred enterprise to its preferred income. As the Company is located in
Development Area A, the applied corporate tax rate is 7.5%.
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Note 20 - Income Taxes (cont’d)
B. Details regarding the tax environment of the Israeli companies (cont’d)

(b) In November 2021, an amendment to the Law of Encouragement of Capital Investment was enacted (the "2021 Amendment"). According to the 2021 Amendment, any
future dividend distributed by an entity with tax exempt retained earnings will be deemed to be distributed proportionately from such tax exempt retained earnings. As part
of the 2021 Amendment, the Israeli Tax Authorities enacted a temporary rule which reduces the tax rate applicable to the distribution of such tax exempt retained earnings.
During the fourth quarter of 2021, the Company entered into a tax assessment with the Israeli Tax Authorities for the years 2017-2020. The settlement of the tax

assessment finalized in February 2022 will allow the Company to distribute dividends from these earnings in the future with no additional corporate tax liability. The
dividend distributed in April 2024 was tax-free under this settlement.
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Note 20 - Income Taxes (cont’d)
C. Details regarding the tax environment of the Non-Israeli companies

Non-Israeli subsidiaries are taxed according to the tax laws in their countries of residence under local tax laws and regulations. The tax rates range from 16.5-30%.

D. Composition of i before i taxes and income tax expense

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)

Income before income taxes:

Israel 125,399 84,186 82,933
Non-Israeli 5,839 3,444 5,255
131,238 87,630 88,188
Income tax expense:
Current:
Israel 11,325 8,054 6,973
Non-Israeli 3,781 2,198 2,043
15,106 10,252 9,016
Deferred tax (benefit) expense:
Israel 262 109 2)
Non-Israeli (2,645) (1,363) (775)
(2,383) (1,254) (777)
12,723 8,998 8,239

In addition, $632 of income tax income was allocated to the gains and losses on intra-entity foreign currency transactions that are of a long-term investment nature component of other
comprehensive income. ($611 of income tax expense was allocated in 2023.)
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Note 20 - Income Taxes (cont’d)
E. Reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory rate to actual income tax expense

The following is a reconciliation of the theoretical income tax expense, assuming all income is taxed at the statutory income tax rate applicable to Israeli companies, the standard income tax
rate of the Company’s country of tax residence, and the actual income tax expense:

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)

Income before income taxes 131,238 87,630 88,188
Statutory tax rate 23% 23% 23%
Theoretical income tax expense 30,185 20,154 20,283
Increase (decrease) in income tax expense resulting from:
Non-deductible expenses (*) 912 651 358
Income tax rate differential (18,816) (12,417) (12,702)
Other 442 610 300
Actual income tax expense 12,723 8,998 8,239

(*) Including non-deductible share-based compensation and FRT transaction expenses.
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Note 20 - Income Taxes (cont’d)
F. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
The tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented below:

December 31,
2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Deferred revenue 2,076 2,186
Accrued expenses 601 647
Operating lease obligations 2,020 442
Other temporary differences 1,662 762
Total deferred tax assets 6,359 4,037

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment (1,158) (938)
Inventories (*) 407) (1,430)
Intangible assets (*) (3,772) (4,885)
Right of use assets (2,020) (442)
Undistributed earnings (1,518) (1,241)
Total deferred tax liabilities (8,875) (8,936)
Net deferred tax liabilities (2,516) (4,899)

(*) Related to FRT acquisition
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Note 20 - Income Taxes (cont’d)

F. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’d)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities were presented on the consolidated balance sheet as below:

Deferred tax asset, net
Deferred tax liabilities, net

Net deferred tax liabilities

December 31,

2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
3,090 2,642
(5,606) (7,541)
(2,516) (4,899)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the anticipated tax benefits associated with operating loss carryforwards, tax credit carryforwards and deductible temporary differences. If it is more
likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, the deferred tax credits are reduced by a valuation allowance.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, Management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The
ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.

At December 31, 2024 and 2023 the Company had no valuation allowance.
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Note 20 - Income Taxes (cont’d)
G. Accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company recorded an unrecognized tax benefit of $1,393 and $1,718 respectively, as result of a tax position taken during the current
period. In addition, the Company does not expect that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change significantly within the next twelve months. For the year ended December 31,
2022, the Company did not have any significant unrecognized tax benefits.

As of December 31, 2024, the entire amount of the unrecognized tax benefits could affect the Company’s income tax provision and the effective tax rate.

The Company accounts for interest and penalties related to income taxes as a component of income tax expense. For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, no interest and
penalties related to income taxes have been accrued.

H. Tax assessments
The Company files its income tax returns in Israel while its principle foreign subsidiaries file their income tax returns in Belgium, Germany, Hong Kong, and United States of America. The
Israeli tax return of Camtek is open to examination by the Israeli Tax Authorities for the tax year 2021 -2024, while the tax returns of its principal foreign subsidiaries remain subject to

examination for the tax years beginning 1999 in Belgium, 2019 in Germany, 2017 in Hong Kong and 2020 in the United States of America.

Note 21 - Balances and Transactions with Related Parties

A. Balances with related parties:
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
U.S. Dollars (in thousands)
Due from related parties 15 18

The related party balances are recorded in the Other Current Assets line item on the consolidated balance sheets.
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Note 21 - Balances and Transactions with Related Parties (cont’d)
B. Registration Rights Agreement with Priortech

On March 1, 2004, the Company entered into a registration rights agreement providing for the Company to register with the SEC certain of its ordinary shares held by Priortech. This
registration rights agreement may be used in connection with future offerings of ordinary shares, and includes, among others, the following terms: (a) Priortech is entitled to make up to
three demands that the Company registers its ordinary shares held by Priortech, subject to delay due to market conditions; (b) Priortech will be entitled to participate and sell the Company’s
ordinary shares in any future registration statements initiated by the Company, subject to delay due to market conditions; (c) the Company will indemnity Priortech in connection with any
liabilities incurred in connection with such registration statements due to any misstatements or omissions other than information provided by Priortech, and Priortech will indemnify the
Company in connection with any liabilities incurred in connection with such registration statements due to any misstatements or omissions in written statements by Priortech made for the
purpose of their inclusion in such registration statements; and (d) the Company will pay all expenses related to registrations which the Company has initiated, except for certain underwriting
discounts or commissions or legal fees, and Priortech will pay all expenses related to a registration initiated at its demand in which the Company is not participating.

On December 30, 2004, the Registration Rights Agreement with Priortech was amended. The amendment concerns primarily the grant of unlimited shelf registration rights thereunder to
Priortech with respect to its holdings in the Company, and the assignability of those shelf registration rights to its transferees.

On May 13, 2015, following the approval of the Company’s Audit Committee and Board of Directors the Registration Rights Agreement with Priortech was renewed for an additional 5 year
period effective as of December 31, 2014.

In 2019, the Company entered into a Second Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement with Priortech and Chroma which replaced the previous Registration Rights Agreement,
according to which Chroma is entitled to the same rights Priortech has with respect to registration of the Company’s shares.

Technological Cooperation Agreement with Chroma
In 2019, the Company entered into a Technological Cooperation Agreement with Chroma under which the Company granted Chroma a license for an application under Company’s
triangulation technology platform.

Employment Agreements with the Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the employment agreement with the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO"), the CEO dedicates 10% of his time in providing consulting and management services for Priortech
through Amitec — Advanced Multilayer Interconnect Technologies Ltd. — a wholly owned subsidiary of Priortech ("Amitec"). The CEO receives from the Company 90% of a full-time
salary and is compensated directly by Amitec for the remaining 10% of his time.

The CEO serves as the Chairman of Priortech.




Camtek Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Notes to the C lidated Financial S

ts as at December 31, 2024

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Note 22 - Fair Value Measurements

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which an asset or liability is classified is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, aggregated by the level in the fair-value

hierarchy within which those measurements fall:

Quoted Prices

in
Active Significant
Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
Description 2024 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S. Dollars
Assets
Marketable securities (current assets) 30,813 1,016 29,797 -
Marketable securities (non-current assets) 87,115 6,911 80,204 -
Total Assets 117,928 7,927 110,001 -
Quoted Prices
in
Active Significant
Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
Description 2023 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S. Dollars

Assets
Marketable securities (current assets) 18,816 6,988 11,828 -
Marketable securities (non-current assets) 73,576 6,981 66,595 -
Total Assets 92,392 13,969 78,423 -

The Company’s accounting policy is to recognize transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy on the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

Marketable securities that are classified within Level 2 are classified as such because these assets are valued using quoted market prices or alternative pricing sources and models utilizing

market observable inputs. See also Note 5.




Item 19. Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Exhibit

1.1 Memorandum of Association of Registrant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Amendment No. | to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form F-1, File
No. 333-12292, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 21, 2000);

1.2 Articles of Registrant, as amended*.

2.1 Description of Registrant’s Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934*

4.1 2018 Share Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, File No. 333-227931, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on October 22, 2018).

4.2 Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A to the Registrant’s Report of Foreign Private Issuer on Form 6-K, File No. 000-30664
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 04, 2018).

4.4 Share Purchase Agreement by and between Chroma ATE Inc. and the Registrant dated February 11, 2019 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 20-F, File No. 000-30664, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 2020).

4.5 Share Purchase Agreement dated September 17, 2023, by and among Camtek Ltd. Ltd., Camtek Germany Holding GmbH, FormFactor GmbH, FormFactor, Inc. and FRT
GmbH (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 20-F, File No. 000-30664, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 21, 2024).

8.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 8.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 20-F, File No. 000-30664, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on March 21, 2024).

111 Insider Trading Policy of the Registrant*.

12.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer required by Rules 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.*

122 Certification of Chief Financial Officer required by Rules 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.*

13.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

15.1 Consent of Somekh Chaikin, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, a member firm of KPMG International.*

97.1 Camtek Ltd. Policy for Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 97.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 20-F,
File No. 000-30664, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 21, 2024).

101 Inline XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

b3 English translations from Hebrew original.

* Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

The Company hereby certifies that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form 20-F and that it has duly caused and authorized the undersigned to sign this Annual Report on its
behalf.

CAMTEK LTD.
By: /s/ Rafi Amit
Name: Rafi Amit
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 19, 2025
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Exhibit 1.2
THE COMPANIES LAW, 5759-1999
ARTICLES
OF
CAMTEK LTD.
INTERPRETATION AND DEFINITIONS

In these Articles each term specified below shall have the definition appearing beside it, except if the context otherwise dictates.

including including without limitation

The Companies Law the Companies Law, 5759-1999, as amended from time to time (together with the Regulations).

The Office the registered office of the Company.

Majority (1) with respect to voting at meetings of the Shareholders - a simple majority determined in accordance with the voting rights attached to the Shares;

provided, however, that abstaining votes are not counted;

(2) with respect to voting at meetings of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof - a simple majority determined in accordance with the
number of voting Directors; provided, however, that abstaining votes are not counted.

Officer an Office Holder (“Noseh Misra”), as defined in the Companies Law.

Presence of a Shareholder

[at a General Meeting] the presence of a Shareholder in person or by proxy.

Proxy Card as the term is used in the Companies Law (“Ktav Hatzba'ah”) or any other applicable law.
The Regulations Regulations promulgated under the Companies Law, as amended from time to time.

Share Certificate (“Te’udat Menaya”) as the term is used in the Companies Law.




3.1

32

4.1

42

43

44

4.5

Capitalized terms contained in these Articles shall have the meanings assigned to them herein; capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the Companies
Law, as shall be in effect from time to time.

Sections 4,5,6,7,8 and 10 of the Interpretation Law, 5741-1981, shall apply, mutatis mutandis, to the interpretation of these Articles.

The captions contained in these Articles are for convenience only and shall not be deemed a part hereof or affect the interpretation or construction of any provision hereof.
TuE NAME OF THE COMPANY

In Hebrew: n"va punp

In English: Camtek Ltd.

THE OBJECTIVES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS PURPOSE

The Company may conduct any legal business.
The Company may contribute a reasonable amount for a worthy cause, even if such contribution is not within the framework of the Company’s business considerations.

THE AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

The authorized share capital of the Company is NIS 1,000,000, divided into 100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NIS 0.01 each. All Ordinary Shares issued by the Company shall be issued in
registered form.

The rights attached to the Ordinary Shares will be all the rights in the Company, and Ordinary Shares shall entitle the holders thereof to vote at shareholders” meetings and to participate, parri
passu and in accordance with the nominal value of the Ordinary Shares held by such Shareholder, in distributions of dividends and in distributions of funds and surplus assets in the
liquidation of the Company.

The Company may, by resolution adopted by a Majority of the Shareholders voting at the General Meeting, increase the authorized share capital of the Company, and may cancel authorized
share capital that has not been issued if there is no undertaking of the Company, including a contingent undertaking, to issue such shares.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Company may, by a resolution adopted by a Majority of the Shareholders voting at the General Meeting, amend the rights attached to all
or any of its authorized share capital, whether issued or not, create new classes of shares, and/or attach different rights to each class of shares, including special or preferential rights and/or
different rights from those attached to the existing shares, including redeemable shares, deferred shares, et cetera.

The Company may, by resolution adopted by a Majority of the Shareholders voting at a General Meeting, consolidate, divide and/or redistribute the share capital of the Company to shares
without any par value and/or to shares with a higher or lower par value and/or to different classes of shares.




5.1

52

6.1

6.2

6.3

8.1

LiaBiLiTY OF THE SHAREHOLDERS

The liability of a Shareholder for the obligations of the Company will be limited to the amount of the consideration (including the premium) for which his shares were issued to him, but not
less than the par value of such shares; except in the event that said shares have been issued to him lawfully for a consideration which is below the par value, in which event his liability will be
limited to the amount of the consideration for which said shares were issued to him.

The Company may not alter the liability of a Shareholder or obligate him to acquire additional shares, without his consent.

AMENDING THE ARTICLES

The Company may amend these Articles by resolution of the Majority of the Shareholders voting at a Special Meeting, except as otherwise provided in the Companies Law.

Any amendment to these Articles will become effective on the date of the resolution adopting such amendment, unless the Companies Law or said resolution provides that such amendment
will come into force at a later time.

The Company may not amend a provision contained in these Articles requiring a special majority to amend or to change these Articles or any provision hereof, except by a resolution of the
General Meeting adopted by that majority.

TRANSACTIONS WITH AN OFFICER OR A CONTROLLING PERSON

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Company may enter into a transaction with an Officer and/or a Controlling Person, or with another person with respect to which the
Officer and/or the Controlling Person has a Personal Interest, provided that such transaction does not adversely affect the interests of the Company.

EXEMPTION, INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Granting an Exemption from the Duty of Care

The Company may grant an Officer, in advance, an exemption from his liability, in whole or in part, for damages resulting from a breach of his duty of care to the Company, subject to and in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law, and provided that the Company shall not exempt any Officer from liability arising from any of the following:

(a)  abreach of the duty of loyalty, except, to the extent permitted by the Companies Law, for a breach of a duty of loyalty to the Company while acting in good faith and having reasonable
cause to assume that such act would not prejudice the interests of the Company;

(b)  abreach of the duty of care made intentionally or recklessly (“pzizuth”), unless committed through mere negligence;
(c)  any Action taken with the intention of making an unlawful personal gain; or

(d)  afine, civil fine, financial sanction or monetary settlement in lieu of criminal proceedings (“Kofer”) imposed on such Officer.




8.2  Insurance

©)

@

8.3  Indemnification

(2)

The Company may, subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law, enter into an insurance policy to insure all or part of the liability of any Officer imposed
upon him by virtue of an Action taken by him in his capacity as an Officer, with respect to any of the following:

()
(i)

(iii)

Breach of duty of care to the Company, or to another person;

Breach of duty of loyalty to the Company, provided the Officer acted in good faith and had reasonable grounds to assume that such act would not adversely affect the
interests of the Company.

A financial obligation imposed upon the Officer in favor of another person.

Without derogating from the aforementioned, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and the Securities Law, 5728-1968 (the "Securities Law"), the Company may also enter
into a contract to insure an Officer, in respect of each of the following:

@

(i)

Expenses, including reasonable litigation expenses and legal fees, incurred by an Officer in relation to a proceeding instituted against such Officer: (1) pursuant to the
provisions of Chapter H'3 ("Imposition of Financial Sanctions by the Israeli Securities Authority") of the Securities Law, or (2) pursuant to the provisions of Chapter H'4
("Imposition of Administrative Enforcement Measures by the Administrative Enforcement Committee") of the Securities Law, or (3) pursuant to the provisions of Chapter
I'l ("Arrangement for the Avoidance of taking or Cessation of Proceedings, subject to Conditions") of the Securities Law; and

Payment to an injured party, pursuant to section 52ND(a)(1)(a) of the Securities Law.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and the Securities Law, the Company may indemnify an Officer with respect to liabilities or expenses, as specified below, imposed on
or incurred by him as a result of an Action taken in his capacity as an Officer, as follows:

(O]

()

A financial liability imposed upon him in favor of another person by a court judgment, including a judgment given by way of compromise, or an arbitration award approved
by court;

Reasonable litigation expenses, including attorney's fees, incurred by the Officer or imposed upon him by a court, in a claim filed against him by the Company or on the
Company’s behalf, or by another person, or in connection with a criminal charge from which he was acquitted, or a criminal charge in which he was convicted of an offense
that does not require proof of criminal intent (mens rea);




3) Reasonable litigation expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred by him as a result of an investigation or proceeding instituted against him by a competent authority, which
concluded without the filing of an indictment against him and without the imposition of any financial liability in lieu of criminal proceedings, or which concluded without
the filing of an indictment against him but with the imposition of a financial liability in lieu of criminal proceedings concerning a criminal offense that does not require proof
of criminal intent or in connection with a financial sanction (the phrases "proceeding concluded without the filing of an indictment" and "financial liability in lieu of criminal
proceeding" shall have the meaning ascribed to such phrases in section 260(a)(1a) of the Companies Law);

4) Expenses, including reasonable litigation expenses and legal fees, incurred by an Officer in relation to a proceeding instituted against such Officer: (1) pursuant to the
provisions of Chapter H'3 ("Imposition of Financial Sanctions by the Israeli Securities Authority") of the Securities Law, or (2) pursuant to the provisions of Chapter H'4
("Imposition of Administrative Enforcement Measures by the Administrative Enforcement Committee") of the Securities Law, or (3) pursuant to the provisions of Chapter
I'l ("Arrangement for the Avoidance of taking or Cessation of Proceedings, subject to Conditions") of the Securities Law; and

5) Payment to an injured party, pursuant to section 52ND(a)(1)(a) of the Securities Law.

(b)  The total aggregate indemnification amount that the Company shall be obligated to pay to all of its Officers, shall not exceed an amount equal to twenty five percent (25%) of the
shareholders' equity at the time of the indemnification.

(¢)  The Company may undertake to indemnify an Officer as aforesaid, (i) prospectively, provided that in respect of Article 8.3(a)(1), the undertaking is limited to events which in the
opinion of the Board of Directors are foreseeable in light of the Company's actual operations when the undertaking to indemnify is given, and to an amount or criteria set by the Board
of Directors as reasonable under the circumstances, and further provided that such events and amount or criteria are set forth in the undertaking to indemnify, and (ii) retroactively.

The provisions of Articles 8.1, 8.2 and 8.3 above are not intended, and shall not be interpreted, to restrict the Company in any manner in respect of the procurement of insurance and/or in
respect of indemnification (i) in connection with any person who is not an Officer, including, without limitation, any employee, agent, consultant or contractor of the Company who is not an
Officer, and/or (ii) in connection with any Officer to the extent that such insurance and/or indemnification is not specifically prohibited under law; provided that the procurement of any such
insurance and/or the provision of any such indemnification shall be approved by the Audit Committee of the Company.




9. SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
9.1  General

The Company may have shares of different classes, redeemable Securities, Debentures, Secured Debentures, Series of Debentures or other Securities.
9.2 Redeemable Securities

(a)  The Company may create and/or issue redeemable Securities.

(b)  The Company may attach to redeemable securities the characteristics of shares, including voting rights and/or rights to participate in profits of the Company and/or the right to receive
dividends or bonus shares and/or other rights, or additional rights attached to the shares of the Company.

(¢)  The Company may redeem redeemable Securities in an amount, at the times, in the form, and from the sources specified by resolution of the Company.

(d)  Redeemable Securities will not be deemed part of the equity of the Company, unless the right of the Company to redeem such Redeemable Securities has been limited to the winding-
up of the Company after having satisfied all of the obligations of the Company to its creditors. In the event that the right of redemption has been limited as aforesaid, the provisions of
sub-Article (c) above will not apply, and the Company may redeem such Redeemable Securities in the same fashion as it may acquire shares of the Company.

10.  ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES

10.1 The issuance of shares and other Securities shall be in the authority of the Board of Directors, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law.

10.2 The Board of Directors may issue shares and convertible Securities up to the limit of the authorized share capital of the Company, assuming the conversion of all convertible Securities at the
time of their issuance.

10.3  The Board of Directors may issue shares for cash or for other consideration, against immediate or subsequent payment.

10.4 The Board of Directors may issue Debentures, Secured Debentures or Series of Debentures, within the scope of its authority to borrow on behalf of the Company. The aforesaid does not
preclude the authority of the General Manager or any other person designated for such purpose by the Board of Directors to borrow on behalf of the Company and to issue Debentures,
promissory notes, or bills of exchange within the limits of his authority.

10.5 The Board of Directors will not issue a share the consideration for which is not to be paid in full in cash, unless the consideration for the shares has been detailed in a written document.

10.6 The Board of Directors may issue shares at a price below their par value, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law.




10.7

10.8

11.

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.6

12.

12.

13.1.

132

The Company may, by resolution of the Board of Directors, pay a commission for underwriting and/or subscription and/or consent to subscribe and/or to underwrite shares or Securities of the
Company, whether conditional or not. Such commission may be paid in cash and/or in shares and/or other Securities, or any combination thereof.

The Board of Directors will arrange for the registration of the issuance of shares in the Shareholders Register immediately upon their issuance.

SHARE CERTIFICATE

A Shareholder registered in the Shareholders Register may receive from the Company, with respect to the fully paid-up shares registered in his name in the Shareholders Register, one (1)
Share Certificate confirming such Shareholder's ownership in the shares registered in his name, or, if approved by the Board of Directors, several Share Certificates each for one or more of
such shares.

A Share Certificate will be issued bearing the signatures of those persons authorized to sign on behalf of the Company.

A Share Certificate in the name of two or more persons will be delivered to the person whose name appears first in the Shareholders Register.

In the event that a Share Certificate is lost, defaced or spoiled, a new one may be issued in its place once the Shareholder requesting the replacement has fulfilled the conditions with respect to
proof of the aforesaid, indemnification, etc., as determined by the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors will determine the amount of the fee to be paid to the Company for issuing more than one Share Certificate to each Shareholder and/or for exchanging a Share
Certificate.

The Board of Directors of the Company will specify the form, the content and the method of preparing or printing the Company's Share Certificates, except where the aforesaid is specified by
the Regulations.

RESERVED

CALLS ON SHARES

The Board may, from time to time, at its discretion, make calls upon Shareholders in respect of any sum unpaid on their shares (hereinafter: an “Obligation”) which has become due or which
is not, by the terms of issuance of which shares, payable at a fixed time. Each Shareholder shall pay to the Company the amount of every call so made upon him at the time(s) and place(s)
designated in such call. A call may contain a call for payment in installments.

Notice of any call shall specify the amount of the Obligation and shall be given in writing to the Shareholder(s) in question not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the time of payment as

fixed therein, provided that at any time before the due date of any such payment the Board may, by a notice to the Shareholder(s), revoke such call, or postpone the designated date(s) of
payment.




13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

12.

14.1

14.2

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

The joint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in respect thereof. A call duly made upon one of the joint holders shall be deemed to have been duly made upon
all of the joint holders.

If under the terms of issue of any share or otherwise, the payment in respect of such share is to be made in whole or in part by installments, whether such payment is at premium or at nominal
value, then each such installment shall be paid to the Company on the due date for payment thereof, and it a call shall be deemed made by the Company with proper notice on such shares with

respect to each such installment, and the provisions in these Articles which concern the call on shares shall be applicable to such installments.

Any Obligation shall bear interest from the date on which it is payable until actual payment thereof at a rate equal to the then prevailing rate of interest for unauthorized overdrafts as charged
by Bank Leumi Le-Israel B.M. Notwithstanding the aforementioned, the Board of Directors may waive the interest payments in whole or in part.

The Board of Directors may, upon adoption of a resolution to such effect, allow any Shareholder to prepay any amount not yet payable in respect of his shares, and may approve the payment
of interest for such prepayment at a rate as may be agreed upon between the Board and the shareholder so prepaying.

The provision of this Article 13 shall in no way derogate from any rights or remedies the Company may have pursuant to these Articles or any applicable law.

CHARGE, FORFEITURE AND SURRENDER

The Company shall have a charge, first in rank, over all the shares which are registered in the name of a shareholder but which are not fully paid, as well as over the proceeds from their sale,
for the purpose of securing an Obligation of such a shareholder to the Company, whether personally or jointly with others, whether or not payment is due. The above mentioned charge shall

apply to all the dividends declared from time to time on such shares, unless otherwise decided by the Board.

The Board of Directors may, upon the adoption of a resolution to such effect, forfeit any shares issued with respect to which an Obligation exists and has not been paid by its due date, and
following such forfeiture may sell the forfeited shares.

TRANSFER OF SHARES

Shares and other Securities of the Company may be transferred subject and pursuant to the provisions of this Article 16.

Subject to the provisions of this Article 16, fully paid shares may be transferred without approval of the Board of Directors.

A share may be transferred in whole only, and not in part; however, if a share(s) has joint owners, any of the joint owners may transfer his rights in the share(s).

A transfer of shares shall require the delivery to the Company of a share transfer deed signed by the transferor and the transferee. If the Board of Directors does not refuse or decline to register
such transfer of shares in accordance with the provisions of these Articles, the Company will register the transfer of shares in the Shareholders Register as soon as is practicable. The transferor

will remain a the owner of the shares to be transferred, until the name of the transferee is recorded in the Shareholders Register as the owner of the shares.

A share transfer deed will be in the form specified below or such similar or other form approved by the Board of Directors.




SHARE TRANSFER DEED

We, the undersigned, of (hereinafter: the “Transferor”) hereby transfer to of
(hereinafter: the “Transferee”) Shares of NIS __ each in the undertaking called Camtek Ltd. to hold unto the Transferee, subject to

the conditions under which we held the same immediately before the execution hereof, and we, the Transferee, do hereby agree to accept and take the said Shares subject to the conditions

aforesaid.

IN WiTNEss WHEREOF we have affixed our signature on this ___ day of the month of year 20__.

Signature of the Transferor
Witness to the signature:
Signature of the Transferee
Witness to the signature:
16.6 The Board of Directors may:
(a)  refuse to transfer a share with respect to which an Obligation exists;
(b)  suspend the registration of share transfers in the 10 (ten) days prior to convening a General Meeting;

(c) decline to recognize a share transfer deed until a Share Certificate for the shares transferred, or other proof that the Board of Directors may demand in order to clarify the ownership of
the transferor, shall be attached to the shares being transferred;

(d)  decline to transfer shares until the Company has been paid a transfer fee as specified by the Board of Directors.
16.7  All Share Transfer Deeds will be delivered to the Company at the Office. A Share Transfer Deed which is recorded in the Shareholder Register will remain with the Company, and any Share
Transfer Deed which the Board of Directors refuses or declines to approve will be returned, upon demand, to whomever delivered it to the Company, together with the Share Certificate, if

delivered.

16.8 The person entitled to shares by an act of law is entitled to be recorded in the Shareholders Register as a Shareholder thereof.




17.

17.1

17.2

17.3

17.4

17.5

18.

18.1

18.2

THE ORGANS OF THE COMPANY AND THEIR AUTHORITY

The organs of the Company are:

(1)  The General Meeting;

(2)  The Board of Directors; and

(3)  The General Manager, if the Company has appointed a General Manager.

The authorities of the different organs of the Company will be as specified in the Companies Law and in these Articles.

Each organ of the Company has all the ancillary rights required for implementing his or its authority.

An authority not assigned in these Articles or in the Companies Law to another organ of the Company may be exercised by the Board of Directors, which shall have a residual authority.
An action taken without authority or in excess of authority may be approved retroactively by the proper organ of the Company.
GENERAL MEETING

The place of the General Meeting

(a)  The General Meeting will take place in Israel.

(b)  If the shares of the Company have been offered to the public outside of Israel or are registered or listed for trade outside of Israel, a General Meeting may also be conducted outside of
Israel if the Board of Directors so resolves.

Participation in the General Meeting
(a)  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, a Shareholder may participate in the General Meeting.

(b) A Shareholder entitled to participate in a General Meeting will be one who is a Shareholder at the date determined by the Board of Directors, subject to the Provisions of the
Companies Law and the Regulations.

(c) A Shareholder who is not registered in the Shareholders Register and who wishes to vote at a General Meeting shall prove to the Company his ownership in the shares, in the method
specified in the Regulations.

(d) A Shareholder who is the registered owner of more than one share of the Company may appoint different proxies for different shares of which he is the registered owner, provided that
with respect to each specific share, only one person - who may be either the Shareholder or a duly appointed proxy - may be present and vote at any General Meeting.
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(e)

(8)

(h)

@

@

()
M

A company or other corporate legal entity may authorize any person to be its representative at a General Meeting or execute and deliver a proxy on its behalf.

In the event a share is jointly owned, the joint owner whose name appears first in the Share Registry may participate in the General Meeting. If he is not present at the General Meeting,
the joint owner whose name appears thereafter may participate in that General Meeting, and so forth.

A Shareholder shall designate a proxy by signing an instrument of proxy in the form specified below, or in a similar or customary form which is acceptable to the Board; or, if shares of
the Company are traded outside of Israel, in a form which is in accordance with the applicable laws, rules or customs of the country and the stock market in which the Company’s
shares are registered or listed for trade.

To: (the Company)

APPOINTMENT OF PROXY
I/we the undersigned, of , the owner of Ordinary Shares in the Company, hereby appoint , ID / Company No. , or in his
absence , ID No. , as our proxy to participate and vote in the General Meeting of the Company convened for the __ day of s , and in any
adjourned meeting, with respect to of my aforesaid Ordinary Shares.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have affixed our signature on this ___ day of .20

[Shareholder’s Signature]

The appointment of a proxy will be valid only if the proxy appointment notice is delivered to the Office or to another place specified by the Board of Directors 4 hours prior to the
beginning of the meeting or presented to the Chairman at such meeting.

If both a Shareholder and his proxy are present at a General Meeting with respect to the same shares, the appointment of the proxy shall be void with respect to such shares.

A vote cast in accordance with the instructions contained in any instrument appointing a proxy shall be valid, notwithstanding the death of the grantor or the revocation of the proxy,
unless notice in writing of the death or revocation had been received at the office of the Company, or by the chairman of the meeting, prior to the vote.

In the case of any dispute with respect to the right to participate in the General Meeting, the Chairman of the meeting will decide and his decision will be final and binding.

The Chairman of the General Meeting may prevent the participation therein of a person who is neither a Shareholder nor a proxy of a Shareholder, unless the General Meeting shall
otherwise resolve. The General Meeting may resolve to prohibit the participation of a person who is neither a Shareholder nor a proxy of a Shareholder.
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18.3  Annual Meeting

(a)

®)

©

Convening an Annual Meeting

(1) The Company will conduct each year an Annual Meeting (to the extent required by the Companies Law, no later than 15 (fifteen) months following the previous Annual
Meeting).

2) 1f the Board of Directors does not convene an Annual Meeting as aforesaid, any Shareholder or Director may apply to the court to order that a Meeting be convened.

3) If it is impractical to convene an Annual Meeting or to conduct it in the manner fixed in these Articles and/or the Companies Law, the court may, upon application by the
Company, by a Shareholder entitled to vote at the General Meeting or by a Director, order that the Meeting be convened and conducted in the manner specified by the Board
of Directors.

Agenda

(1) The agenda of an Annual Meeting will include a discussion of the audited financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors, and may also include the following:

(i) the appointment of Directors;

(i) the appointment of an Auditor;

(iii) any other matter specified by the Board of Directors;

(iv) any matter requested by shareholders of the Company entitled to request, according and to the extent set forth under the Companies Law, that the Board of Directors include
a matter on the agenda of a General Meeting (“Proposing Shareholder(s)”), provided that the matter is appropriate;

2) Resolutions may be adopted at an Annual Meeting only in those matters specified in the agenda.

Shareholder Proposal

(1) Any Proposing Shareholder(s), shall have the right to request that the Board of Directors shall include a matter on the agenda of a General Meeting, provided that the Board
determines that the matter is appropriate to be considered at a General Meeting (a “Proposal Request”).

2) The Proposal Request must comply with the requirements of and the timeline set by, these Articles, the Companies Law, and any applicable law. The Proposal Request must

be in writing, signed by all the Proposing Shareholder(s) making such request, delivered, either in person or by certified mail, postage prepaid, and received by the Secretary
(if serving), the Chief Executive Officer, and the Chairman of the Company. The announcement of an adjournment or postponement of a General Meeting shall not
commence a new time period (or extend any time period) for the delivery of a Proposal Request as described above.
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(©)

“)

In addition to any information required to be included under any applicable law, a Proposal Request must include the following: (i) the name, address, telephone number and
email address of the Proposing Shareholder (or each Proposing Shareholder, as the case may be) and, if an entity, the name(s) of the person(s) that controls or manages such
entity; (ii) the number of shares held by the Proposing Shareholder(s), directly or indirectly (and, if any of such shares are held indirectly, an explanation of how they are
held and by whom), which shall be in such number no less than as is required to qualify as a Proposing Shareholder, accompanied by evidence satisfactory to the Company
and the Board of Directors of the record holding of such shares by the Proposing Shareholder(s) as of the date of the Proposal Request, which complies with the Companies
Law, and a representation that the Proposing Shareholder(s) intends to appear in person or by proxy at the General Meeting; (iii) the matter requested to be included on the
agenda of a General Meeting, all information related to such matter and all supporting documentation, the reason that such matter is proposed to be brought before the
General Meeting, the complete text of the resolution that the Proposing Shareholder proposes to be voted upon at the General Meeting, (iv) a description of all arrangements
or understandings between the Proposing Shareholders and any other Person(s) (naming such Person or Persons) in connection with the matter that is requested to be
included on the agenda and a declaration signed by all Proposing Shareholder(s) of whether any of them has a personal interest in the matter and, if so, a description in
reasonable detail of such personal interest; (v) a description of all Derivative Transactions (as defined below) by each Proposing Shareholder(s) during the previous thirty six
(36) month period, including the date of the transactions and the class, series and number of securities involved in, and the material economic terms of, such Derivative
Transactions; and (vi) a declaration that all of the information that is required under the Companies Law and any other applicable law to be provided to the Company in
connection with such matter, if any, has been provided to the Company.

The Board of Directors, may, to the extent it deems necessary in its reasonable discretion, (a) request that the Proposing Shareholder(s) provide additional information and
supporting documentation necessary so as to include a matter in the agenda of a General Meeting, as the Board of Directors may reasonably require and (b) revise the
matter’s text as set forth under sub-item (c)(iii) above, to comply with the Companies Law.

A “Derivative Transaction” means any agreement, arrangement, interest or understanding entered into by, or on behalf or for the benefit of, any Proposing Shareholder or
any of its affiliates or associates, whether of record or beneficial: (1) the value of which is derived in whole or in part from the value of any class or series of shares or other
securities of the Company, (2) which otherwise provides any direct or indirect opportunity to gain or share in any gain derived from a change in the value of securities of the
Company, (3) the effect or intent of which is to mitigate loss, manage risk or benefit from security value or price changes, or (4) which provides the right to vote or increase
or decrease the voting power of, such Proposing Shareholder, or any of its affiliates or associates, with respect to any shares or other securities of the Company, which
agreement, arrangement, interest or understanding may include, without limitation, any option, warrant, debt position, note, bond, convertible security, swap, stock
appreciation right, short position, profit interest, hedge, right to dividends, voting agreement, performance-related fee or arrangement to borrow or lend shares (whether or
not subject to payment, settlement, exercise or conversion in any such class or series), and any proportionate interest of such Proposing Shareholder in the securities of the
Company held by any general or limited partnership, or any limited liability company, of which such Proposing Shareholder is, directly or indirectly, a general partner or
managing member.




18.4  Special Meetings

(a)

Convening a Special Meeting:

(O]

()
(3)

The Board of Directors will convene a Special Meeting:

[6)] upon its resolution to such effect;
(ii) upon a demand made by the lesser of (a) 2 (two) Directors or (b) one-fourth of the Directors then serving;
(iif) upon a demand made by Shareholders entitled to request, according and to the extent set forth under the Companies Law, that the Board of Directors convene a

General Meeting;
If a demand is made to the Board of Directors to convene a Special Meeting as aforesaid, it will convene such Meeting in accordance with the Companies Law.
In the event that the Board of Directors fails to convene the Special Meeting, then the Director(s) who demanded the meeting, or part of the demanding Shareholder(s) that
hold at least half of the voting rights of such demanders, shall be permitted to publish a notice of a General Meeting or issue a proxy card only in the circumstances
mentioned under Section 64 of the Companies Law..

A Special Meeting as aforesaid will take place, insofar as possible, in the same fashion as a General Meeting convened by the Board of Directors.

In the event such a meeting has been convened, the Company shall bear the reasonable expenses necessary to convene the meeting which were incurred by the Director or
the demanders, as the case may be, and the Directors responsible for not convening the meeting will reimburse those expenses to the Company.
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(b)  Agenda
(1) The agenda at a Special Meeting will be set by the Board of Directors; and if the Special Meeting is convened upon demand as specified in sub-Article(a) above, those
matters specified by the Directors or Shareholders who demanded that the Special Meeting be convened shall be included in the agenda, provided that such matters are
suitable, in accordance with the Companies Law and these Articles, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, to be included in the agenda of a General Meeting.
2) Only matters included on the agenda will be discussed at a Special Meeting.

(¢)  Shareholder Convening a Special Meeting

The provisions set out in Article 18.3(c) shall apply to any shareholder or shareholders of the Company who is/are entitled to request, according and to the extent set forth
under the Companies Law that the Board of Directors convene a Special Meeting, as detailed under Article 18.4(a)(1)(iii) above, mutatis mutandis.

18.5 Notice of a General Meeting and the Date for its Publication
(a) The form of notice of a General Meeting:
(1) The notice of a General Meeting shall include:
(i) the agenda;
(i)  proposed resolutions;
(iii)  with respect to a General Meeting in which it is possible to vote by way of Proxy Card- arrangements to vote by way of Proxy Card;

(iv)  if the shares of the Company are traded or listed for trade outside of Isracl — any other matter that is required under the laws, rules or customs of the country and the
stock market in which the Company’s shares are registered or listed for trade.

The aforesaid will be as determined by the Board of Directors, unless provisions with respect thereto are set forth in the Regulations and/or in any applicable other law,
regulations or rules.

2) A General Meeting may adopt a resolution different from that specified in the notice, if so provided under a Regulation.
(b)  Publication of notice of a General Meeting.

(1) The Company shall not be required to deliver or serve notice ("Hodaa") of General Meeting or any adjournment thereof to any Shareholder.
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2) Without derogating from the provisions of Article 18.5(b)(1) above, and subject to applicable law and stock exchange rules and regulations, the Company will publicize the
convening of a General Meetings in any manner reasonably determined by the Company and any such publication shall be deemed to have been duly made, given and
delivered to all shareholders on the date on which it is first made, posted, filed or published, as applicable. The date of publication in respect of a General Meeting as set
forth in this Article, and the date of the meeting, shall be counted as part of the days comprising any notice period with respect to such General Meeting

18.6  Quorum

(a) No discussion shall be held in a General Meeting unless a quorum is present at the beginning of the meeting.

(b) A quorum for a General Meeting is the presence, within one half an hour from the time specified for commencing the meeting, of at least 2 (two) Shareholders who hold in the
aggregate at least 33% of the voting rights of the Company.

(c) If a share is jointly owned, the joint owner’s name that appears first in the Shareholders Register will attend the General Meeting. If he does not attend, the joint owner whose name
appears thereafter may attend the General Meeting, and so forth.

(d)  deleted

(e) A Shareholder who is not entitled to vote at the General Meeting will not be deemed present at a General Meeting for the purposes of calculating a quorum.

() If a quorum is not present within one half hour of the time specified for the commencement of the General Meeting, the General Meeting, if convened upon requisition under Sections
63(b)(1) or (2), 64 or 65 of the Companies Law, shall be dissolved, but in any other case the General Meeting will be adjourned for one week to the same day, the same hour and the
same place, or to a later date if so specified in the notice of the General Meeting.

(g)  Ifaquorum is not present within one half hour from the time set for commencing the adjourned General Meeting the General Meeting will take place regardless of whether a quorum is

18.7

present.

Validity Notwithstanding Defect

(@

(b)

Subject to any applicable law, a resolution adopted by the General Meeting shall be valid and have full force and effect notwithstanding any defect in the notice, convening, procedure
or conduct of the General Meeting in which it was adopted, unless and until such resolution is cancelled by the court at the request of a Shareholder, in accordance with the provisions
of Section 91 of the Companies Law.

With respect to a defect in the time, place or manner in which a General Meeting was convened, a Shareholder who arrived at that General Meeting despite the defect shall not petition
the court for the cancellation of a resolution adopted at such General Meeting.




18.8  The Chairman of the Meeting
(a) A Chairman shall be elected for a General Meeting.

(b)  The Chairman, if any, of the Board of Directors, or any other Director or Officer of the Company which may be designated for this purpose by the Board of Directors, shall preside as
Chairman of the General Meeting.

(¢)  The Chairman of the General Meeting will not have a casting vote.
18.9 Postponing a General Meeting

(a) A General Meeting at which a quorum is present may adjourn the meeting, or the discussion or resolution in any item on the agenda for the meeting, to another time or place to be
specified.

(b)  Atan adjourned General Meeting, the only matters to be discussed will be those matters on the agenda of the General Meeting with respect to which no resolutions have been adopted.

(c) In the event the General Meeting is adjourned for more than 21 (twenty-one) days, the Company shall provide notices of the adjourned General Meeting in same manner required
hereunder for the convening of a General Meeting.

(d)  If at the adjourned General Meeting a quorum is not present within one half hour from the time set for the commencement of the meeting, the General Meeting will take place
regardless of the number or aggregate voting power of the Shareholders present.

18.10 Voting at the General Meeting

(a) Persons entitled to vote at the General Meeting:

(1) Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and these Articles, a Shareholder entitled to participate in a General Meeting may vote at that General Meeting.

2) No shareholder shall be entitled to vote at a General Meeting with respect to a specific share, unless he has paid all calls and all amounts then due by him in respect of the
said share.

3) With respect to voting for jointly owned shares, the joint owner whose name first appears in the Shareholders Register will be entitled to vote; if he is not present, the joint

owner appearing thereafter who attends the meeting may vote, and so forth.

4) In the event of disputes with respect to voting rights, the Chairman of the meeting shall prevail and his decision shall be final and binding.
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(b)  Voting at General Meetings

(O]

()

(©)

Q)

(5

Subject to special rights, conditions, privileges and/or restrictions which may be attached to a specific class of shares, each holder of share(s) which entitle their holder to
vote, shall have one vote for each share held by him.

A Shareholder may vote at a General Meeting in person or by proxy, with respect to each share held by him which entitles him to vote, in accordance with Article 18.2(d)
above. A shareholder who is entitled to participate and vote at a General Meeting in respect of more than one share may vote on a resolution in one direction (in favor of,
against, or abstain) in respect of any part of his shares, and on the same resolution, in other directions in respect of any other part or parts of his shares.

In addition (a) a Shareholder may vote by way of Proxy Card in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law or any other applicable law, on the matters specified
therein, and provided it is completed and returned to the Company in accordance with its terms ; and (b) a Shareholder who holds shares through member of the Tel Aviv
Stock Exchange ("TASE"), may vote electronically via the electronic voting system of the Israel Securities Authority, upon terms and instructions received from the TASE
member through which the Shareholder holds his or her shares.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and these Articles, all resolutions at a General Meeting will be adopted by a count of votes, in which a Majority of votes cast
are in favor of the adoption of the resolution.

The announcement of the Chairman of the meeting that a resolution has been adopted or rejected, unanimously or by a certain majority, will be prima facie proof thereof.

18.11 Minutes of a General Meeting

19.

19.1

19.2

(a)  The Company will prepare, at the Chairman's responsibility, minutes of the proceedings at a General Meeting; these minutes shall be signed by the Chairman of the General Meeting.

(b)  Minutes signed by the Chairman of the General Meeting will be deemed prima facie proof of their content.

(¢) A Shareholder may review the minutes of the General Meeting and receive, upon his request, copies of such minutes.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The duties and authorities of the Board of Directors will be as provided in the Companies Law and in these Articles.

The number of the members of the Board of Directors shall be as set from time to time by resolution of the General Meeting, provided that there will be no fewer than 5 (five) nor more than
10 (ten) Directors (including External Directors, as such term is defined in the Companies Law).
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19.3  Appointment of Directors

(2)

®)

©

A Director, who is not an External Director, will be appointed by the Annal General Meeting and will serve until the conclusion of the next Annual Meeting. A Director appointed by
an Annual General Meeting shall commence serving at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting in which he or she was appointed, unless a later date for the commencement of
his or her tenure was specified in the resolution by which he was appointed.

The Board of Directors may appoint a Director to fill the place of a Director whose appointment has expired during the term, and may appoint a Director(s) if the number of Directors
then serving falls below the minimum number specified in Article 19.2 above. A Director so appointed shall commence his tenure from the date of his appointment, and will serve until
the end of the next Annual General Meeting following his appointment; such a Director may be reappointed by such Annual General Meeting.

In the event that the tenure of a Director expires, or that the number of Directors then serving shall fall beneath the minimum number set forth in Article 19.2 above, the Board of
Directors may continue to act, provided that the number of Directors then serving shall be no fewer than half of said minimum number of Directors. In the event that the number of
serving Directors shall fall below half of the minimum number set forth in Article 19.2 above, the Board of Directors shall act only in an emergency and in order to convene a General
Meeting for the election of Directors.

19.4 Additional Nominees.

(2)

Any Proposing Shareholder requesting to include on the agenda of an Annual General Meeting a nomination of a Person to be proposed to the Shareholders for election as
Director (such person, an “Additional Nominee”), may so request provided that it complies with these Articles, the Companies Law, and any other applicable law. Unless otherwise
determined by the Board, a Proposal Request relating to Additional Nominee is deemed to be a matter that is appropriate to be considered only at an Annual General Meeting in which
Directors are to be appointed in accordance with the provisions of these Articles. The Proposal Request relating to an Additional Nominee shall include all the information and
supporting documentation required pursuant to Articles 18.3(c) and 18.3(d), all the information and supporting documentation required to be included such Proposal Request in
accordance with these Articles, the Companies Law and any other applicable law , and shall also include: (i) the name, address, telephone number, fax number and email address of
the Additional Nominee and all citizenships and residencies of the Additional Nominee; (ii) a description of all arrangements, relations or understandings between the
Proposing Shareholder(s) or any of its affiliates and each Additional Nominee, including any Derivative Transaction; (iii) a declaration signed by the Additional Nominee that he or she
consents to be named in the Company’s notices and proxy materials relating to the Annual General Meeting, if provided or published, and, if elected, to serve on the Board of Directors
and to be named in the Company’s disclosures and filings, (iv) a declaration signed by each Additional Nominee as required under the Companies Law and any other applicable law
and listing rules and regulations for the appointment of such an Additional Nominee and an undertaking that all of the information that is required under law and listing rules and
regulations to be provided to the Company in connection with such an appointment has been provided (including, information in respect of the Additional Nominee as would be
provided in response to the applicable disclosure requirements under Form 20-F, Form 10-K, Schedule 14A or any other applicable form or schedule prescribed by the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”); (v) a declaration made by the Additional Nominee of whether he or she meets the criteria for an independent director and/or External Director,
if applicable, of the Company under the rules of the stock exchange on which the Company’s ordinary shares are then listed for trading, the Companies Law and/or under any
applicable law, and if not, then an explanation of why not; and (vi) any other information required at the time of submission of the Proposal Request by applicable law. In addition, the
Proposing Shareholder shall promptly provide (prior to and as a condition to including any requested Additional Nominee on the agenda for the applicable Annual General Meeting)
any other information reasonably requested by the Company. The Board of Directors may refuse to acknowledge the nomination of any person not made in compliance with the
foregoing. The Company shall be entitled to publish any information provided by a Proposing Shareholder pursuant to this Articles, and the Proposing Shareholder shall be responsible
for the accuracy and completeness thereof.




19.5 The expiration of the term of a Director

19.6

The term of a Director shall expire in any of the following instances and any other instance provided under the Companies Law:

(2)
(b)
(©
(d)
(e

®

Upon his death.

If he is found to be non compos mentis.

Upon his resignation.

Upon his removal by a resolution of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Upon his removal by a resolution of any General Meeting of the Company for Cause. For the purposes hereof “Cause” shall mean the occurrence of any of the circumstances listed
under Sections 226-226A to the Companies Law.

In the event he or she has been declared bankrupt; or if a legal entity - it has adopted a resolution of voluntary liquidation or winding-up, or a liquidation order has been issued with
respect thereto.

Alternate Director

(2)

A Director may appoint, dismiss and/or replace an individual who is qualified to serve as a director and who is not then a Director, as an Alternate Director. The appointment,
replacement and/or dismissal of an Alternate Director shall be by written notice by the appointing Director either to the Company or to the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Upon the expiration or termination of the tenure of the appointing Director, the tenure of the Alternate Director appointed by him will also expire.
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19.7

(b)
(¢)

An Alternate Director will not be entitled to participate or vote at a meeting of the Board of Directors at which the appointing Director is present.

An Alternate Director shall have all the rights and obligations of the appointing Director, excluding the right to appoint an Alternate Director.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors

(2)
(b)

(c)
(d)

Subject to the Companies Law, the Board of Directors may appoint a Chairman of the Board of Directors from amongst its members, by a resolution adopted by a Majority of votes.

The term of office of the Chairman of the Board shall be until the earlier of the termination of his tenure as a director and the adoption of a resolution as to the termination of his office
as Chairman.

The Board of Directors may appoint a deputy and/or alternate Chairman of the Board of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall conduct the meetings of the Board of Directors and sign the minutes of the meeting. In the event that the Chairman of the Board of
Directors is not present at a meeting of the Board of Directors or is unable to fulfill his position, his position will be filled by the Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors (if a
Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors has been appointed), who shall then have the authority of the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

If both the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors (if a Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors has been appointed) are absent from a
meeting of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors shall appoint at the commencement of the meeting one of its members to chair the meeting and to sign the minutes of the
meeting.

Neither the Chairman of the Board of Directors nor another Director appointed to chair a meeting of the Board of Directors, including the alternate or Deputy Chairman, shall have an
additional or casting vote.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

(@

Convening meetings of the Board of Directors and their location
(1) The Board of Directors will convene meetings as dictated by the needs of the Company, and at least once every three (3) months.

2) Each meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held in the registered Office of the Company, unless the Board of Directors otherwise resolves. If a meeting of the Board of
Directors shall take place outside of Israel, the Company will bear travel and other reasonable expenses of the Directors incurred due to their participation in the meeting.
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(3)
“)

The Chairman of the Board of Directors may convene a meeting of the Board of Directors at any time, subject to sub-Article (c) below.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall convene a meeting of the Board of Directors without delay, subject to sub-Article (c) (1) below, upon the demand of any two
Directors, or if the Board of Directors has at such time five or fewer serving Directors — upon the demand of one Director.

The Agenda at Board Meetings

(O]

@

The Agenda of the meetings of the Board of Directors shall be specified by the Chairman of the Board of Directors and will include all of the following:
(a)  matters specified by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, if any;

(b)  any matter which a Director or the General Manager has requested that the Chairman of the Board of Directors include in the Agenda of that meeting, within a
reasonable time prior to the scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors;

(c)  amatter for the discussion and/or resolution of which a Director has requested to convene a meeting of the Board of Directors;

The Agenda at a meeting of the Board of Directors which is to be convened, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law, by a Director and/or by the General
Manager and/or by the Auditor, shall include those matters for discussion and/or resolution of which said meeting of the Board of Directors has been convened.

Notices of Meetings of the Board of Directors

M

@
(©)

Notice of the meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given to each Director orally or in writing, a reasonable time prior to the time of the meeting but not less than 48
hours prior to that meeting; provided, however, that in urgent cases, and with the approval of the majority of the members of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors
may convene without giving any prior notice.

The time and place at which the meeting will be convened will be specified in the notice in reasonable detail, in addition to the items on the agenda of said meeting.

Notice of the meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given to each Director at his last address provided by him to the Company.
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O]

Q)

At the meeting of the Board of Directors, only matters specified on the agenda will be discussed, unless all of the Directors are present at the meeting and have agreed to
discuss a matter not on the Agenda.

Participation in meetings of the Board of Directors

(O]

@

(©)

Quorum

M

@
(©)

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and these Articles, any Director and/or Alternate Director, as the case may be, may participate in the meetings of the Board
of Directors.

The General Manager may participate in Meetings of the Board of Directors and so may an Officer or another person invited to participate by the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, by a Director and/or by the Board of Directors.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors shall be entitled to prevent any person who is not a Director or an Alternate Director from being present at meetings of the
Board of Directors.

The quorum required to commence a meeting of the Board of Directors shall be a majority of the members of the Board of Directors then serving who are not prevented
under the Companies Law from participating in the meeting, but in no event less than two Directors.

No discussion shall be held at a meeting of the Board of Directors unless at the beginning of the meeting a quorum is present.
If within one-half hour from the time set for commencing the meeting of the Board of Directors, a quorum is not present, the meeting will be adjourned to the following day

at the same place and at the same time. If at such adjourned meeting of the Board of Directors a quorum is not present within a half an hour from the time set for
commencing said adjourned meeting, the meeting may be held, and resolutions may be adopted, regardless of the number of participants.

Postponing a Meeting of the Board of Directors

(O]

()
(3)

At a meeting of the Board of Directors in which a quorum is present, the Board of Directors may resolve to adjourn the meeting to another time. At an adjourned meeting as
aforesaid, only those items which were on the agenda for the original meeting but with respect to which no resolution was adopted, may be discussed.

If a meeting of the Board of Directors is adjourned, the Company shall notity all of those Directors who were not present at such meeting, of the postponement.

In the event that a meeting of the Board of Directors has been adjourned as aforesaid for more than 7 (seven) days, the Company will notify all of the Directors of the
adjourned meeting.
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19.9

(8)

(h)

@

@

(k)

Voting and the Adoption of Resolutions at Meetings of the Board of Directors

(1) Each Director shall have 1 (one) vote.

2) Resolutions of the Board of Directors will be adopted by a Majority of all of the Directors voting with respect thereto.
Minutes of the Board of Directors

(1) The Company shall prepare, at the responsibility of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, minutes of all of the procedures of the Board of Directors; these minutes shall be
signed by the Chairman of the meeting.

2) Minutes approved and signed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors or by the Chairman of the meeting shall be prima facie proof of the contents thereof.
Holding Meetings of the Board of Directors by Telecommunications

(1) The Board of Directors may hold meetings by any means of telecommunications, including video or telephone conference, provided that all of the Directors participating
may hear each other simultaneously.

(2) All participants in a meeting by telecommunications shall be deemed present at the meeting of the Board of Directors.

Adopting a Resolution of the Board of Directors without Meeting

(1) The Board of Directors may adopt resolutions without convening a Meeting, providing that all of the Directors entitled to participate in and vote at the meeting have agreed
thereto.
2) In the event a resolution has been adopted without convening as aforesaid, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, and if there is no Chairman, the Director who initiated the

resolution, shall record the minutes of such resolution and affix thereto the signatures of all of the Directors. Those minutes shall be deemed to be minutes of the Meeting of
the Board of Directors.

Validity Notwithstanding Defect

Subject to any applicable law, a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors shall be valid and have full force and effect notwithstanding any defect in the notice, convening,
procedure or conduct of the meeting in which it was adopted.

Committees of the Board of Directors

(@)
®)

The Board of Directors may establish committees and appoint members thereto as it deems fit (hereinafter: “Committees of the Board of Directors”).

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and these Articles, the Board of Directors may delegate its authority to Committees of the Board of Directors and determine the
framework of the authority and the actions of the Committees of the Board of Directors.
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(c) A resolution adopted, or an action taken, by a Committee of the Board of Directors with respect to a matter which the Board of Directors has delegated to it, shall be deemed a
resolution adopted or an action taken by the Board of Directors.

(d)  Committees of the Board of Directors shall report to the Board of Directors regarding their resolutions or recommendations requiring Board of Directors' approval, a reasonable time
prior to the meeting of the Board of Directors in which they are brought for discussion and approval.

(e)  Subject to sub-Article 20.4 below, procedural provisions applying to the Board of Directors will also apply to Committees of the Board of Directors, mutatis mutandis.
(f) Resolutions of the Committees of the Board of Directors, other than Audit Committee, shall be adopted by a Majority of the votes of the Directors participating in the vote.

(g)  Subject to sub-Article 20.4 below, minutes of the Committees of the Board of Directors shall be prepared, signed and kept in the same manner as minutes of the Board of Directors,
mutatis mutandis.

(h)  Subject to the Companies Law, the Board of Directors may cancel a resolution of a Committee of the Board of Directors and may revoke the delegation of authority, in whole or in part,
to Committees of the Board of Directors; provided that any cancellation or revocation as aforesaid will not derogate from a resolution upon which the Company has acted in connection
with a third party who is not aware of its cancellation or revocation.

Miscellaneous

(a)  Actions taken by or pursuant to resolutions of the Board of Directors, by a Committee of the Board of Directors or by any person serving as a Director shall be valid and effective

notwithstanding that it is subsequently discovered that there was a defect in the appointment of the Directors or the aforesaid Committee, or all or part of the Directors were

unqualified, as if each of the Directors had been properly and legally appointed and all of them were qualified to serve as Directors, or as if the Committee had been appointed lawfully.

(b)  The General Meeting may approve any Action taken by the Board of Directors without authority or in excess of authority; and from the time of approval, such approved Action shall be
deemed taken within the authority of the Board of Directors.

(¢)  The Board of Directors may approve any Action within the scope of its authority, which was taken by a Committee of the Board of Directors without authority or in excess of authority;
and from the time of approval, such approved Action shall be deemed taken within the authority of the Committee of the Board of Directors.
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22.

22.1

AupIiT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors shall appoint from amongst its members an Audit Committee of at least three members designated by the Board of Directors, in which most members shall be
Independent Directors, as such term is defined in the Companies Law, and each of the External Directors shall be a member.

The chairman of the Audit Committee shall be an External Director.

Resolutions of the Audit Committee, shall be adopted by a Majority of the votes of the Directors participating in the vote, provided that such Majority shall consist of Independent Directors,
out of which at least one director shall be an External Director.

The duties and authorities of the Audit Committee, shall be as provided by applicable law and/or applicable rules of any stock exchange on which the shares of the Company are traded.
Procedural requirements applying to the Audit Committee shall be as provided in the Companies Law.

THE GENERAL MANAGER
The Company shall appoint one or more General Managers to the Company.

The General Manager will be appointed and/or dismissed by the Board of Directors. The terms of the General Manager’s employment shall be decided in accordance with the applicable
procedure required under the Companies Law.

The General Manager shall be responsible for the general management of the Company’s affairs, within the framework of the policies set by the Board of Directors, and subject to the
directives of the Board of Directors.

The General Manager shall have all management and executive authorities of the Company not assigned in these Articles or under the Companies Law to another organ of the Company.

The General Manager shall report to the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors may direct the General Manager how to act in a given matter; and should the General Manager fail to execute such a directive, the Board of Directors may then
exercise the authority required to implement the directive in his stead. Without derogating from the aforesaid, The Board of Directors may assume any authority otherwise given to the General

Manager, for a specific purpose or for a specific period of time which shall not exceed the necessary period of time required under the circumstances.

In the event that the General Manager is unable to exercise his authority, the Board of Directors may appoint a Director to exercise such authority in his stead for as long as such exercise is
necessary under the circumstances.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Board of Directors shall appoint an Internal Auditor, upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee.
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The Internal Auditor shall report to the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

The duties and authorities of the Internal Auditor shall be as provided in the Companies Law.

AUDITOR

Appointment of an Auditor

(a)  The Company will appoint a certified accountant to be an Auditor. The Company may appoint several Auditors to conduct the audit jointly.

(b)  An Auditor will be appointed at each Annual Meeting and will serve in his position until the end of the following Annual Meeting, or until a later time determined by the General
Meeting, provided that an Auditor shall serve no longer than until the end of the third Annual Meeting after the Annual Meeting in which he was appointed. An Auditor who has

completed a period of appointment as aforesaid may be reappointed.

(¢)  In the event the position of Auditor has become vacant and the Company does not have an additional Auditor, the Board of Directors shall convene a Special Meeting as soon as
possible to appoint an Auditor.

(d)  The position, authorities and duties of the Auditor shall be as provided in the Companies Law. The Audit Committee of the Company shall have the authority to recommend to the
Board of Directors with respect to the remuneration of the Auditor for his services, as well as to supervise the Auditor's work and remuneration.

SECRETARY

The Board of Directors may appoint a Secretary to the Company, may dismiss the Secretary and appoint another in his stead, and may determine the remuneration and terms of service thereof.
The Secretary will prepare and conduct the minutes, documents, books of records, registers and reports which the Company must maintain and/or safe keep and/or submit to the Registrar of
Companies or any other authority, and will fulfill the duties assigned to him by the Board of Directors. The Secretary of the Company may sign on behalf of the Company documents and
reports to be submitted to the Registrar of Companies.

RIGHTS OF SIGNATURE AND STAMP OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Directors will determine the stamp and/or seal of the Company.

The Board of Directors will designate the persons authorized to sign on behalf of the Company and the form of signature.

Without derogating from the aforesaid, documents and/or reports or notices to the Registrar of Companies may also be signed by the Secretary.

FINANCIAL REPORTS

The Company will keep books of account and will prepare Financial Reports as required under any applicable law.
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The Audited Financial Reports will be approved by the Board of Directors as provided under any applicable law.

DiviDENDS AND BONUS SHARES

General

(a) A Shareholder shall be entitled to receive only such dividends and/or bonus shares as the Company may resolve to distribute, if any.
(b)  The distribution of dividends and the issuance of bonus shares shall be within the authority of the Board of Directors.

(c)  The Shareholders entitled to a dividend and/or bonus shares, as the case may be, shall be those Shareholders who are Shareholders at the time of the adoption of the resolution to
distribute such dividend or bonus shares, or at such later date as may be provided in such resolution (hereinafter: the “Ex-dividend Date™).

(d)  Dividends and/or bonus shares distributed by the Company will be distributed pro rata to the par value of each share.

(e)  Notwithstanding the aforesaid, in the event that the Company has shares with different rights, dividends and/or bonus shares distributed by the Company will be distributed in
accordance with the rights attached to its shares with respect to dividend and/or bonus shares.

® In the event that a Shareholder has not rendered payment to the Company in full of the consideration then due to the Company for the Shares issued to him, he will be entitled to a
dividend and/or bonus shares with respect only to a number of shares proportionate to the amount paid or credited as of the Ex-Dividend Date, pro rata temporis, on account of the
consideration then due.

Distribution of Dividends

(a) The Company may distribute dividends subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law.

(b)  Where a share with respect to which a dividend is to be distributed is jointly owned, any dividend distributed by the Company with respect to such jointly-owned share will be paid to
that joint owner whose name appears first in the Share Registry.

Distribution of Bonus Shares
(a)  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Board of Directors may issue bonus shares.

(b)  In the event that bonus shares are distributed, the Company shall convert to share capital, by resolution of the Board of Directors, a portion of its profits and/or premium paid to it on
shares and/or from any other source included in its equity in accordance with the latest Financial Statements, an amount equal to the par value of the Bonus Shares.
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(c)  As part of any resolution with respect to the distribution of Bonus Shares, the Board of Directors will empower a person to sign the allotment agreement of Bonus Shares on behalf of
the Shareholders.

THE OFFICE

The Company shall maintain a registered office in Israel, to which any notice to the Company may be submitted (hereinafter: the “Office”).

Subject to Article 28.1 above, the Company may change the address of the Office, as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.

THE SHAREHOLDERS REGISTER

The Company will maintain a Shareholders Register and a Material Shareholders Register in accordance with the Companies Law.

The Shareholders Register will be prima facie proof of the content thereof in the case of any conflict between the content of the Shareholders Register and that of any Share Certificate.

All reports received by the Company under the Securities Law with respect to the shareholdings of Material Shareholders will be kept in the Material Shareholders Register.

Modifying and A ding the Shareholders Register

The Company shall change the registration of ownership of shares in the Shareholders Register and, where applicable, in the Material Shareholders Register, in any of the following cases:
(a)  The Company has received a Share Transfer Deed in accordance with Article 16 hereinabove, and the Board of Directors has not declined to transfer the shares.

(b) It has been proven to the Company that the conditions for transferring the shares have been fulfilled.

(c) The Board of Directors is convinced that there is an error in the content of the Shareholders Register.

(d)  Any other circumstances constituting sufficient cause, in accordance with these Articles or the Companies Law, to record a change in the Shareholders Register, including assignment
of the shares by operation of law.

(e)  The Company has received a court order to change the Shareholders Register.
Additional Shareholders Register outside Israel
The Company may maintain an additional Shareholders Register outside of Israel, in which case the Company shall record in its primary Shareholders’ Register the number of shares recorded

in the aforesaid additional Shareholders Register and, if such shares are numbered, the serial numbers of those shares recorded in said additional Shareholders Register. Other procedures
regarding said additional Shareholders Register shall be determined by the Board of Directors, to the extent they are not set forth in the Regulations.
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INSPECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS REGISTER
The Shareholders Register and the Material Shareholders Register shall be open for inspection by any person.
DIRECTORS REGISTER

The Company will maintain a Directors Register, which shall contain a listing of the names and addresses of the Directors of the Company and their Alternates, in accordance with the
Companies Law.

ENCUMBRANCES REGISTER

The Company will maintain an Encumbrances Register which will include:

(a)  Encumbrances placed upon specific assets of the Company.

(b)  Floating charges on the Company’s enterprise and property.

The Encumbrances Register will be kept at the Office, together with copies of any documents creating or placing an encumbrance.

The Encumbrances Register, together with copies of the documents set forth in Article 31.2 above, will be open for inspection, free of charge, by any Shareholder or creditor of the Company.

The Encumbrances Register will be open for inspection by any person other than a Shareholder of creditor of the Company, for a fee in such amount as may be determined by the Company
from time to time, provided however that the amount of such fee shall not exceed the maximum amount specified in the Regulations..

THE REGISTER OF SECURED DEBENTURE HOLDERS

The Company will maintain a Register of Secured Debenture Holders, in which the name of each Secured Debenture Holder, the amount of any Debenture, the interest thereupon, the date of
payment thereof and the encumbrance given as security for the Debenture, will be entered.

The Debenture Holders Register will be maintained in the Office, together with a copy of a Debenture from each Series of Debentures issued by the Company.

The Debenture Holders Register and copies of Debentures as provided in 32.2 above will be open for inspection by Shareholders and Debenture Holders; provided, however, that the Board of
Directors may resolve to close same for a period or periods of time not exceeding, in the aggregate, 30 (thirty) days in each calendar year.

NoOTICES

Notices to shareholders and other documents delivered to the Shareholders registered in the Shareholders Register (hereinafter: “Notices™) shall be delivered to such Shareholders personally,
by mail or facsimile transmission, or by electronic mail, to the address recorded in the Shareholders Register.

A Notice delivered personally shall be deemed received by the Shareholder upon its delivery. A Notice sent by facsimile transmission or by electronic mail shall be deemed received by the
Shareholder on the business day following the day on which it was sent. A Notice sent by mail shall be deemed received by a Shareholder whose address is in Israel 72 hours after its delivery

or, if the address of a Shareholder is outside of Israel, within 120 hours after the Notice is delivered to a post office in Israel.
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Exhibit 2.1
DESCRIPTION OF CAMTEK LTD.
SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

»

Camtek Ltd., an Israeli corporation (the “Company,” “we,” or “our”), currently has one class of securities registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
the Company’s ordinary shares, par value NIS 0.01 per share. The following is a summary of some of the terms of our ordinary shares based on our articles of association, as may be amended and
restated from time to time, and Israeli law.

The following summary is not complete and is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the provisions of our articles of association and Israeli law.

Name of exchange on which registered: Our ordinary shares were registered for trading began trading on the NASDAQ in July 2000, and later that year began trading on the Tel Aviv Stock
Exchange Ltd.

Restrictions on Securities: The ownership or voting of ordinary shares by non-residents of Israel is not restricted in any way by our articles of association or the laws of the State of Israel,
except for anti-terror legislation and except that citizens of countries which are in a state of war with Israel may not be recognized as owners of ordinary shares.

Registration.

The Company was incepted and registered with the Israeli Registrar of Companies in 1987, under registration number 511235434.

Purpose of the Company. The purposes of the Company, as provided by Article 3 of our Articles, is to engage in any legal activity, both in Israel and abroad.
Share Capital.

Our authorized share capital consists of 100,000,000 ordinary shares, par value 0.01 per share. All of our issued and outstanding shares are validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. Our
ordinary shares are not redeemable and do not have any preemptive rights.

The Company currently has one class of ordinary shares, 0.01 NIS par value per share. The Articles provide that the board of directors may decide on a distribution, subject to the provisions
set forth under the Israeli Companies Law, 5759-1999 (the “Companies Law”) and the Articles. Under the Companies Law, dividends may be paid out of net earnings, as calculated under that law,
for the two years preceding the distribution of the dividend and retained earnings, provided that there is no reasonable concern that the dividend will prevent the company from satisfying its existing
and foreseeable obligations as they become due. For more information, see the Company’s balance sheet and the statement of shareholders’ equity in the financial statements.

Each ordinary share entitles its holder to the following rights:

« the equal right to participate in and vote at general meetings of the shareholders, and each share entitles its holder thereof, who is present and participating in the vote, whether in
person or by proxy, to one vote;

« the equal right to participate in any distribution; and
« the equal right to participate in the distribution of assets available for distribution in the event of liquidation of the company.
Transferring Shares

According to the Articles, our shares may be freely transferred, unless the transfer is restricted or prohibited by another agreement, undertaking or any applicable law.




Changes of Rights of Holders of the Shares.

According to the Articles, any change in the rights and privileges of the holders of any class of shares requires the approval of a class meeting of such class of shares by a simple majority
(unless otherwise provided by the Companies Law or the regulations thereto or by the terms of issue of the shares of that class).

Amendments to the Articles of Association.

Our Articles may be amended by a simple majority vote of our shareholders.

Shareholders Meetings.

An annual meeting should be convened at least once every calendar year, and no later than 15 months after the preceding annual meeting, to review the Company’s financial statements and
to transact any other business required pursuant to the Articles or to the Companies Law, and any other matter which the board of directors places on the agenda of the annual meeting, at a time and
place that the board of directors will determine. A special meeting may be called by the board of directors and at the demand of any of the following: two directors or one-quarter of the directors then
serving; one or more shareholders who hold at least ten percent of the issued and outstanding capital stock and at least one percent of the voting rights in the Company; or one or more shareholders
who hold at least ten percent of the voting rights in the Company.

According to the Articles, the quorum required for an ordinary meeting of shareholders is at least two sharecholders present in person or by proxy who together hold or represent in the
aggregate 33% or more of the voting power. A meeting adjourned for lack of a quorum is reconvened week to the same day, the same hour and the same place, or to a later date if so specified in the
notice of the General Meeting. At the reconvened meeting, if a quorum is not present within one half hour from the time set for commencing the adjourned meeting, the required quorum will consist
of any number of members present in person or by proxy, regardless of the number of shares represented. The Companies Law and regulations determine that prior notice of no less than 21 days
should be given to the company’s shareholders, prior to convening a meeting. In the event that the issue to be resolved is an issue subject to the Israeli proxy rules, a notice of no less than 35 days
should be given to the company’s shareholders. In some cases, a prior notice of not less than 14 days may be given to the company’s shareholders.

Changes in Capital.

Our share capital may be increased or decreased by a vote of our shareholders in accordance with the Companies Law, either by creating new shares of an existing class or of a new class.
Furthermore, and subject to applicable law, our shareholders may resolve to make the following changes to our share capital:

« alter or add classes of shares, including shares with preference rights, deferred rights, conversion rights or any other special rights or limitations;
« consolidate and/or split all or any of its share capital into shares of larger or smaller par value than the existing shares;
« cancel any registered shares not yet allocated, provided we have made no commitment to allocate such shares; and
« reduce our share capital and any reserved fund for redemption of capital.
Modification of Rights

According to our Articles, if our share capital is divided into different classes of shares, any change to the rights and privileges of the holders of such class will require the approval of a
meeting of such class of shares by a simple majority vote.

Borrowing Powers

Pursuant to the Companies Law and our articles of association, our board of directors may exercise all powers and take all actions that are not required under law or under our articles of
association to be exercised or taken by a certain organ of the Company, including the power to borrow money for company purposes.




Acquisition of a Controlling Stake.

According to the Companies Law, an acquisition pursuant to which a purchaser will hold a “controlling stake”, that is defined as 25% or more of the voting rights if no other shareholder
holds a controlling stake, or an acquisition pursuant to which such purchaser will hold more than 45% of the voting rights of the company if no other shareholder owns more than 45% of the voting
rights, may not be performed by way of market accumulation, but only by way of a special tender offer (as defined in the Companies Law) made to all of the company’s shareholders on a pro rata
basis. A special tender offer may not be consummated unless a majority of the shareholders who announced their stand on such offer have accepted it (in counting the total votes of such
shareholders, shares held by the controlling shareholders, shareholders who have personal interest in the offer, shareholders who own 25% or more of the voting rights in the company, relatives or
representatives of any of the above or the bidder and corporations under their control, shall not be taken into account). A shareholder may be free to object to such an offer without such objection
being deemed as a waiver of his right to sell its respective shares if the transaction is approved by a majority of the company’s shareholders despite his objection. Shares purchased not in accordance
with those provisions will become “dormant shares” and will not grant the purchaser any rights so long as they are held by the purchaser.

Acquisition.

A person wishing to acquire shares or a class of shares of an Israeli public company and who would, as a result, own more than 90% of the target company’s issued and outstanding share
capital or of certain class of its shares, is required by the Companies Law to make a full tender offer (as defined in the Companies Law) to all of the company’s shareholders for the purchase of all of
the issued and outstanding shares of the company or class of shares. If either (i) the shareholders who do not accept the offer hold, in the aggregate, less than 5% of the issued and outstanding share
capital of the company or of the applicable class, and more than half of the shareholders who do not have a personal interest in the offer accept the offer, or (ii) the shareholder who do not accept the
offer hold less than 2% of the issued and outstanding share capital of the company or of the applicable class, then all of the shares that the acquirer offered to purchase will be transferred to the
acquirer by operation of law. However, a shareholder that had its shares so transferred, whether or not it accepted the tender offer (unless otherwise provided in the offering memorandum), may,
within six (6) months from the date of acceptance of the tender offer, petition the court to determine that the tender offer was for less than fair value and that the fair value should be paid as
determined by the court. If the shareholders who did not accept the tender offer hold at least 5% of the issued and outstanding share capital of the company or of the applicable class of shares, the
acquirer may not acquire shares of the company that will increase its holdings to more than 90% of the company’s issued and outstanding share capital or of the applicable class from shareholders
who accepted the tender offer.

The Companies Law provides that corporate mergers require the approval of both companies’ boards of directors and shareholders. In the event, however, that shares of the target company
are held by the acquiring company or by a person holding 25% or more of any type of controlling means of the acquiring company, the merger will not be approved if a majority of the shareholders
of the target company attending and voting at the meeting at which the merger is considered (without taking into account, for that purpose, the shares held by the acquiring company or by a person
holding 25% or more of any type of controlling means of the acquiring company) object to and do not vote in favor of the merger. If a person holds 25% or more of any type of controlling means of
more than one merging company, the same provisions shall apply with regard to the shareholders’ vote with respect to each such company. Upon the request of a creditor of either party to the
proposed merger, the court may delay or prevent the merger if the court concludes that there exists a reasonable concern that as a result of the merger the surviving company will be unable to satisty
the target company’s obligations. Furthermore, a merger may not close unless at least 30 days have passed from the time that the general meeting of each of the merging companies was held and at
least 50 days have passed from the date on which the merger proposal was sent to the Isracli Registrar of Companies.




Exhibit 11.1
CAMTEK LTD. INSIDER
TRADING POLICY
(Updated September 2023)

The following is the insider trading policy of Camtek Ltd. (“Camtek” or the “Company”) and outlines the procedures that all Camtek personnel must follow. This policy and the
related procedure arises from our responsibilities as a public company. Failure to comply with regard to trading in Camtek shares could result in a serious violation of the securities laws by you and/
or Camtek and can involve both civil and criminal penalties. It is important that you review our policy carefully. The insider trading policy provides as follows:

L Definition of Insider: Reason for Policy

An “insider” is a person who possesses, or has access to, inside information concerning Camtek that has not been fully disclosed to the public (see below for a definition of “inside
information™). Insiders may be subject to criminal prosecution and/or civil liability for trading (purchase or sale) in Camtek shares or passing on to others non-public material information when they
know inside information concerning Camtek that has not been fully disclosed to the public.

Under U.S. law, persons found liable for insider trading face penalties of up to three times the profit gained or loss avoided, a criminal fine of up to $1 million, and up to 10 years in
jail. Under certain circumstances, liability may also be imposed on Camtek and senior employees as “Controlling Persons” if a Camtek employee whom they control engages in insider trading or
tipping. Illegal trades expose the Company to substantial civil penalties, as well as adverse publicity, embarrassment and potential private civil litigation. Finally, in addition to the potential criminal
and civil liabilities mentioned above, in certain circumstances Camtek may be able to recover any benefit or advantage received by an insider, plus collect other damages.

Without regard to the penalties that may be imposed by others, willful violation of this policy constitutes grounds for dismissal from the Board of Directors, termination of your
employment or, with respect to Camtek Representatives (as defined below), termination of their contract.

Insider trading proscriptions are not limited to trading by the insider alone; it is also illegal to advise others to trade on the basis of undisclosed inside information. Liability in such
cases can extend both to the “tippee" - the person to whom the insider disclosed inside information—and to the “tipper,” the insider himself. Additionally, pursuant to the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Rule 10b5-2, a presumption exists that any material, non-public information transmitted (even if not transmitted as a “tip”) to a close personal relation will be kept in
confidence by the recipient. If such a recipient then trades while in possession of material, non-public information, liability under SEC Rule 10b-5 may attach.

Finally, insider trading can cause a substantial loss of confidence in Camtek and its shares on the part of the public and the securities markets. This could obviously have an adverse
impact on Camtek and its shareholders.

1L Applicability of Policy

This policy applies to all transactions in Camtek securities by “insiders.” As a rule of thumb insiders are (1) members of the Board of Directors and officers of Camtek, (2) any
employee of Camtek and its subsidiaries, or (3) any consultant, representative, or independent contractor (“Representative””) who knows inside information regarding Camtek that has not been fully
disclosed to the public. This policy also applies to the immediate families (defined as direct family members living in the same household) of such insiders. A person can be an insider for a limited
time with respect to certain inside information even though he or she is not an officer or director. For example, a secretary who knows that a large contract has just been received or that an
acquisition is about to occur may be an insider with respect to that information until the news has been fully disclosed to the public.

111 Definition of Full Disclosure

Full disclosure to the public generally means a press release. Public disclosure can also be accomplished by the filing of a SEC disclosure document or by a pre-announced publicly
accessible webcast or conference call. A speech to an audience, a TV or radio appearance, or an article in an obscure magazine does not qualify as full disclosure. Full disclosure means that the
securities markets have had the opportunity to digest the news. Generally, two full trading days following public disclosure of the announcement, is regarded as sufficient for dissemination and
interpretation of inside information.




Iv. Definition of Inside information

“Inside information” includes all material information about the Company, its customers and other entities involved in any way with the Company that is non-public. Information is
“non-public” if it is not generally known or available to the general public. Information becomes publicly known when it is announced to the media through a press release or other official
announcement and the investing public has had sufficient time to consider the information.

It is not possible to define all categories of material information, as the SEC has not established a “bright line” test. In general, information should be regarded as material if there is
a likelihood that it would be considered important by a reasonable investor in making a decision regarding the purchase or sale of Camtek shares within the total mix of material information.
Although it may be difficult under this standard to determine whether certain information is material, there are various categories of information that would almost always be regarded as material.
Examples of such information are:

Major corporate partnering transactions or proposed acquisitions or divestitures

Resignation of key personnel

Receipt, cancellation or deferral of significant purchase orders

New project or product announcements of a significant nature

Material pricing changes

Proposed commencement or changes in dividends

Planned stock splits

New equity or debt offerings

Significant litigation exposure

Any other factors which would cause the Company’s financial results to be substantially different from analyst estimates.
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If any insider has questions as to the materiality of information, he or she should contact the Chief Financial Officer of the Company for clarification.

Further, any officer, director or employee who believes he or she would be regarded as an insider who is contemplating a transaction in Camtek shares must contact the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company prior to executing the transaction to determine if he or she may properly proceed. Officers and directors should be particularly careful, since avoiding the
appearance of engaging in share transactions on the basis of material undisclosed information can be as important as avoiding a transaction actually based on such information.

In addition to the requirement that employees not trade in Camtek shares when in possession of inside information, all employees are prohibited from trading during “black-out”
period trading window defined below in “Specific Requirements”.

V. Almost No Exceptions

There are almost no exceptions to the prohibition against insider trading. For example, it does not matter that the transactions in question may have been planned or committed to
before the insider came into possession of the undisclosed inside information, regardless of the economic loss that the person may believe he or she might suffer as a consequence of not trading. It
also does not matter whether the inside information was pertinent to the insider’s decision to trade (unless pursuant to a Qualified Trading Plan), or whether the insider perceives the information to be
positive or negative, any trading by an insider while in possession of material inside information could be considered insider trading in violation of SEC Rule 10b-5.

As noted above, this policy applies to the immediate families of insiders. Although immediate family is narrowly defined, an employee should be especially careful with respect to
family members or to unrelated persons living in the same household.




Finally, remember that there are no limits on the size of a transaction that will trigger insider trading liability; relatively small trades have in the past occasioned SEC investigations
and lawsuits.

VL Specific Requirements

1. Prior to disclosure to any third party, any officer, director or employee who is aware of any inside information concerning Camtek (see “Definition of Inside Information”
above) that has not been disclosed to the public should report the intention to disclose such information promptly to the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and obtain approval to do so.

2. Employees, officers and directors may not engage in a transaction (purchase or sale) in Camtek shares at any time between the date on which any non-public inside
information becomes known to the individual and the close of business on the second Nasdaq trading day affer such information is publicly disclosed.

3. In addition to the restriction set forth in paragraph 2 above, no employee, officer or director may engage in a transaction (purchase or sale) in Camtek shares during the
period commencing seven days prior to the end of the third calendar month of each fiscal quarter and the close of business on the first business day after the financial results of the Company’s
operations for such quarter are publicly announced. It is recommended but not obligatory that all directors and officers engage in transactions (purchase or sale) only in accordance with a Qualified
Trading Plan.

4. No insider may engage in transactions of a speculative nature at any time. All insiders are prohibited from short-selling Camtek shares or engaging in transactions
involving Camtek-based derivative securities. “Derivative Securities” are options, warrants, share appreciation rights or similar rights whose value is derived from the value of an equity security,
such as Camtek shares. This prohibition includes, but is not limited to, trading in Camtek-based put and call option contracts, transacting in straddles, and the like. However, as indicated below,
holding and exercising options or other derivative securities granted under Camtek’s employee share option or equity incentive plans is not prohibited by this policy.

5. All Vice-President levels and above and all directors of Camtek must inform the Camtek’s Chief Financial Officer whenever they intend to execute a trade in Camtek
securities, including the placing of limit orders. At the time of executing a trade in Camtek securities, such individuals will be responsible for verifying that Camtek has not imposed any restrictions
on their ability to engage in trades. If the individual has not completed the trade within five (5) business days of notification of the intention to trade, then the individual must re-confirm with
Camtek’s Chief Financial Officer that they intend to execute a trade and the individual must re-verify the nonexistence of any restrictions on such trade.

6. The Chief Financial Officer of Camtek has the authority to impose restrictions on trading in Camtek securities by appropriate individuals at any time, in addition to the
automatic restriction imposed pursuant to paragraph 3 above. In such event, the Chief Financial Officer will notify the affected individuals of the restrictions, either personally or by voicemail.

7. Any individual who has placed a limit order or open instruction to buy or sell Camtek securities shall bear responsibility for canceling such instructions immediately in the
event restrictions are imposed on his/her ability to trade in accordance with either paragraph 3 or 6 above.

8. The only exceptions to the policy are set forth below. It does not matter that the “insider” may have decided to engage in a transaction before learning of the undisclosed
inside information or that delaying the transaction might result in economic loss. It is also irrelevant that publicly disclosed information about Camtek might, even aside from the undisclosed inside
information, provide a substantial basis for engaging in the transaction. You simply cannot trade in Camtek shares while in possession of undisclosed inside information about Camtek. The only
exceptions to the policy are as follows:

(a) Exercise of a share option under Camtek’s employee share option plans, as may be adopted and/or amended by Camtek’s board of directors from time to time.
Note that this exception does not include a subsequent sale of the shares acquired pursuant to the exercise of the option under such plans.




(b) Acquisition of shares under any Camtek employee share purchase plan that may be adopted by Camtek’s board of directors, but this exception does not apply to a
subsequent sale of the acquired shares.

(c) Bonafide gifts of securities are not deemed to be transactions for the purposes of this policy. Whether a gift is truly bonafide will depend on the circumstances
surrounding each gift. The more unrelated the donee is to the donor, the more likely the gift would be considered “bonafide” and not a “transaction”. For example, gifts to charities, churches and
service organizations would clearly not be “transactions”. On the other hand, gifts to dependent children followed by a sale of the “gift” securities in close proximity to the time of the gift may imply
some economic benefit to the donor and, therefore, make the gift non-bonafide.

(d) Trades made pursuant to a “Qualified Trading Plan.” A Qualified Trading Plan is a written plan for selling Camtek shares which meets each of the following
requirements: (1) The plan is either (a) adopted by the insider or temporary insider during a period when the quarterly trading window is open or (b) if the quarterly trading window is closed at the
time the plan is adopted, selling pursuant to the plan does not begin until the quarterly trading window is next scheduled to re-open: (2) the plan is in writing; (3) the plan is adhered to strictly by the
insider or temporary insider; (4) the plan either expressly specifies sales of shares in the amounts, and at the prices, and on the dates at which the insider or temporary insider sells the shares, or
provides a written formula or algorithm for determining the amounts, prices and dates of sales; and (5) at the time it is adopted the plan conforms to all other requirements of Rule 105b-1(c)(1)(C) as
currently adopted or amended by the SEC and any other restrictions applicable to your trading of shares (e.g., Rule 144). A Qualified Trading Plan cannot be established when an insider or
temporary insider is already in possession of inside information, even if the trading window is open.

VIIL. Procedural Guidelines for Transactions by Officers and Directors
1. The following procedures must be followed by officers and directors with respect to any purchase or sale of Company securities:
(a) Despite the above provisions, there may be times when there exists a corporate basis for requesting that each officer or director refrain from trading in Camtek’s

securities even though such trading would otherwise be permitted under Section VI.

(b) Before each transaction in Camtek securities, each officer and director is required to contact the relevant plan administrator regarding compliance with SEC Rule
144, if required.

(c) All outside requests for information, comments or interviews (other than routine product inquiries) which may result in the dissemination of information must be
directed to the Chief Financial Officer.

2. Please sign the attachment acknowledging that you have read and agree to abide by this Policy in your transactions in Camtek securities and return it to Human Resources.

3. If you have any questions, please contact Camtek’s Chief Financial Officer, at (general number) 972-4-6048100.




ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Please sign below acknowledging that you have read and agreed to abide by Camtek’s Insider Trading Policy.
I received, reviewed and agree to be bound by Camtek’s Insider Trading Policy.

Dated:

Signature

Name

Title

Return this Acknowledgment to Human Resources.




Exhibit 12.1
Chief Executive Officer Certification
Required by Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
1, Rafi Amit, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 20-F of Camtek Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13(a)-15(f) and 15(d)—15(f)) for the company and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the annual report that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the company’s auditors and the audit committee
of the company’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the company’s internal controls over financial reporting.
Date: March 19, 2025
By: /s/ Rafi Amit

Name: Rafi Amit
Title: Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 12.2
Chief Financial Officer Certification
Required by Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
1, Moshe Eisenberg, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 20-F of Camtek Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13(a)-15(f) and 15(d)—15(f) for the company and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the annual report that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the company’s auditors and the audit committee
of the company’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the company’s internal controls over financial reporting.
Date: March 19, 2025
By: /s/ Moshe Eisenberg

Name: Moshe Eisenberg
Title: Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 13.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

We, Rafi Amit, Chief Executive Officer of Camtek Ltd., and Moshe Eisenberg, Chief Financial Officer of Camtek Ltd., each hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report for Camtek Ltd. on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2024 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that information contained in the Annual Report on Form 20-F fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of Camtek Ltd.

Date: March 19, 2025

By: /s/ Rafi Amit
Name: Rafi Amit
Title: Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ Moshe Eisenberg
Name: Moshe Eisenberg
Title: Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Camtek Ltd. and will be retained by Camtek Ltd. and furnished to the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 15.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors
Camtek Ltd:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 333-271348) on Form F-3 and (Nos. 333-238705, 333-227931, 333-201286, 333-174165, 333-156287 and
333-113139) on Form S-8 of our report dated March 19, 2025, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Camtek Ltd. and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

Somekh Chaikin
A member firm of KPMG International

Tel Aviv, Israel

March 19, 2025
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